
 

 

CITY OF LOCKPORT 
CORPORATION PROCEEDINGS 

 
Lockport Municipal Building 

 
Regular Meeting 
Official Record 

 August 23rd, 2023 
 6:30 P.M. 
 

Mayor Michelle M. Roman called the meeting to order. 
 

ROLL CALL 
 

The following Common Council members answered the roll call: 
Aldermen Beakman, Devine, Fogle, Swanson-Gellerson, Kantor, and Lupo. 

 
 

INVOCATION 
 

MAYOR’S UPDATE - STATE OF THE CITY ADDRESS 
  

RECESS 
Recess for public input. 
 
082323.1          APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
On motion of Alderman Beakman, seconded by Alderman ___________________, the 
minutes of the Regular Meeting of August 9th, 2023 are hereby approved as printed in the 
Journal of Proceedings.  Ayes _____.  Carried. 
 

FROM THE MAYOR 
 
Appointments: 
 
 

FROM THE CITY CLERK 
 
The Clerk submitted payrolls, bills for services and expenses, and reported that the 
Department Heads submitted reports of labor performed in their departments. 
Reviewed by the Finance Committee. 
 
Communications (which have been referred to the appropriate City officials) 
 
6/8/2023 Niagara Celtic Heritage Festival Society requesting permission to hang banner in 
promotion of this year’s Niagara Celtic Festival to be held 9/16 and 9/17. 
 
8/7/2023 Judith Kelley from Pot-O-Gold provided notice of their license renewal request 
being sent to the New York State Liquor Authority. 
 
 



 

 

8/9/2023 Anthony Molinaro, Assistant Principal at Lockport City School District requesting 
permission to hold the Homecoming parade on Saturday October 7th 2023. 
 
8/11/2023 Amanda Sandolfini, letter of notification of her request to the New York State 
Liquor Authority to open and serve beginning at 8:00am on Sunday October 8th due to the 
Buffalo Bills game being played in London, England. 
 
8/15/2023 Sarah K. Lanzo – notification that the bid proposals for Professional Accounting 
and Auditing Services received on 8/11 is as follows: 
 

Contractor Name:   Lumsden McCormick 
Year 

 
Amount Hourly  

Annual 2023 $32,250 w/audit $150/hour 

Annual 2024 $34,000 w/audit $157/hour 

Annual 2025 $36,300 w/audit $165/hour 

Annual 2026 (optional year) $38,000 w/audit $173/hour 

Annual 2027 (optional year) $40,200 w/audit $182/hour 

 
Notice of Complaint: 
8/16/2023 Kelly Chciuk, 211 West Avenue, Lockport. Sidewalk fall. 
 
Referred to the Director of Highways, Parks and Water Distribution. 
  
Notice of Claim: 
8/16/2023 Barbara and Kaz Borkowski vs. the City of Lockport. 
8/16/2023 Daniel Warmus, d/b/a Auditng Erie County vs. City of Lockport. 
 
Referred to the Corporation Counsel. 
 
Notice of Petition: (Small Claims Assessment Review) 
Zachary Nolan, 50 Utica Street, Lockport NY. 
 
MOTIONS & RESOLUTIONS 
  
082323.2 
By Alderman:________________________ 
 

Resolved that pursuant to their request, the Niagara Celtic Heritage Society, Inc. is 
hereby granted permission to erect a banner at least 17' from the ground across East Avenue 
at Davison Road to promote the 2023 Niagara Celtic Heritage Festival & Highland Games. 
Banner is to be erected from September 1 thru September 18, 2023 based on a schedule 
approved by the City Clerk, and be it further 

Resolved that said permission is subject to the Niagara Celtic Heritage Society, Inc. 
filing a certificate of insurance with the City Clerk naming the City of Lockport as additional 
insured and subject to payment of $50, and be it further 
 Resolved that the City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to make arrangements 
with city forces to erect the banner. 
 

Seconded by Alderman ___________________ and adopted. Ayes ______. 



 

 

 
082323.3  
By Alderman:__________________________ 

 
Whereas the City of Lockport (City) has received a Downtown Revitalization Initiative 

(DRI) Grant to fund improvements to the Spaulding Mill (Project); and 
Whereas per 6 NYCRR Part 617, commonly known as State Environmental Quality 

Review Act, or “SEQRA,” the City is required to determine the level of environmental review 
required for the proposed project; and 

Whereas, the City has completed Parts 1, 2, and 3 of the New York State 
Environmental Assessment Form (EAF); 
Now therefore, be it:  

Resolved that the City does hereby determine that the Project is an Unlisted Action as 
defined under SEQRA, and that based upon review of the EAF it has been determined that the 
project will not result in any significant adverse environmental impacts.   
 

Seconded by Alderman ___________________ and adopted. Ayes ______. 
 
082323.4 
By Alderman:__________________________ 

 
Whereas the City of Lockport (City) has received a New York State Canalway Grant to 

fund improvements to the comfort station on Market St. near the North Adam St. bridge and 
plans to add a pavilion and other miscellaneous improvements (Project); and 

Whereas per 6 NYCRR Part 617, commonly known as State Environmental Quality 
Review Act, or “SEQRA,” the City is required to determine the level of environmental review 
required for the proposed project; and 

Whereas the City has completed Parts 1, 2, and 3 of the New York State Environmental 
Assessment Form (EAF); 
Now therefore, be it:  

Resolved that the City does hereby determine that the Project is an Unlisted Action as 
defined under SEQRA, and that based upon review of the EAF it has been determined that the 
project will not result in any significant adverse environmental impacts.   
 

Seconded by Alderman ___________________ and adopted. Ayes ______. 
 

082323.5 
By Alderman:_________________________________ 
 

Resolved that pursuant to their request, Trinity Buildings and Construction 
Management Corporation, 1 Jewel Drive #322, Wilmington, MA 01887 is hereby granted 
permission to place three dumpsters (40-yard dumpsters) in the parking spaces directly in front 
of 77 Main Street, where they have a project taking place. Said permission is subject to Trinity 
Buildings and Construction Management Corporation filing a certificate of insurance with the 
City Clerk naming the City of Lockport as additional insured and follow all rules and regulations 
as set forth in the Lockport City Code Section 156 – Roll off Containers. 
 

Seconded by Alderman ___________________ and adopted. Ayes ______. 
 

082323.6 
By Alderman:_________________________________ 



 

 

 
 Whereas permission was granted to the Lockport Wildcats Minor Professional Adult 
Football Team to use the field for purposes of playing semi-professional football,  
 Whereas due to weather, a league game was unable to complete and the entire league 
post season scheduled must be pushed back, the Lockport Wildcats requested to add 
Saturday September 9th to the schedule that was approved in May 2023. 
 Now therefore be it resolved that said permission is subject to Lockport Wildcats 
Minor Professional Adult Football Team filing a certificate of insurance with the City Clerk 
naming the city of Lockport as additional insured and subject to Corporation Counsel approved 
and be it further 
 Resolved that the Lockport Wildcats maintain the conditions of the Exchange Field at 
Outwater Park and the Rotary Club Community Pool’s Locker Rooms when in use. 
 

Seconded by Alderman ___________________ and adopted. Ayes ______. 
 
 
082323.7 Being prepared. 
 
 
082323.8 
By Alderman:___________________________________ 
 

PAYMENT IN LIEU OF TAXES AGREEMENT 
BY AND AMONG 

HARRISON LOFTS HOUSING DEVELOPMENT FUND COMPANY, INC., 
HARRISION LOFTS LIMITED PARTNERSHIP, AND 

THE CITY OF LOCKPORT 

 

Whereas the Harrison Lofts Housing Development Fund Company, Inc. is a New York 
Not-for-Profit corporation organized pursuant to Article XI of the Private Housing Finance Law 
(“PHFL”), having its principal place of business at c/o YWCA of the Niagara Frontier, Inc., 32 
Cottage Street, Lockport, NY 140494 (“HLHDFC”); and  

Whereas HLHDFC was formed for the purpose of providing residential rental 
accommodations for persons of middle income and low-income; and 

Whereas HLHDFC is, or will be, the legal owner of record, as nominee for Harrison Lofts 
Limited Partnership, a New York limited partnership having its principal place of business at c/o 
The Kearney Realty & Development Group Inc., 57 Route 6, Suite 207, Baldwin Place, New 
York 10505 (“Partnership”), of real property located at 160 Washburn Street, Lockport, New York 
14094 (SBL # 109.14-4-20.1), being Part of Lot 8, 10 & 12, Section 15, Township 14, Range 6 
of the Holland Land Company’s Survey in the City  of Lockport, County of Niagara and State of 
New York more particularly described in the Nussbaumer & Clarke, Inc. Survey Project No. 
1905-0035, dated December 23, 2019 annexed hereto as Exhibit A (the “Property”); and  

Whereas HLHDFC and the Partnership will develop, own, construct, maintain and 
operate a mixed use of commercial use and residential housing project for persons of middle 
income and low income at the Property (the “Project”); and 

Whereas HLHDFC’s and the Partnership’s plan for the use of the Property constitutes a 
“housing project” as that term is defined in the PHFL; and 

Whereas HLHDFC is a “housing development fund company” as the term is defined in 
Section 572 of the PHFL; and 

Whereas pursuant to Section 577 of the PHFL, the local legislative body of a municipality 



 

 

may exempt the real property of a housing project of a housing development fund company from 
local and municipal taxes, including school taxes, other than assessments for local 
improvements, to the extent of all or a part of the value of the property included in the completed 
project; and 

Whereas Section 577 of the PHFL permits housing development fund companies and 
local legislative bodies of a municipality to enter into a Payment in Lieu of Taxes (“PILOT” or 
“Tax Exemption”) Agreement; and   

Whereas the Common Council Members of the City of Lockport, New York, by Resolution 
adopted _______________, 2021, approved and authorized the execution of a PILOT  
Agreement; and 

Whereas the City of Lockport Common Council has considered the land use and financial 
implications and other policy issues relating to the Tax Exemption, 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE UNDERSIGNED PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS:  
  

 1. Pursuant to Section 577 of the PHFL, the City hereby exempts from local and 
municipal taxes, other than assessments for local improvements, one hundred percent (100%) 
of the value of the Property, including both land and improvements,.  “Local and Municipal Taxes” 
shall mean any and all real estate taxes levied by Niagara County, the City of Lockport (“City”) 
and the Lockport City School District or other taxing jurisdiction (collectively, the “Taxing 
Jurisdictions”), but exclude any sales tax that may be due and owing from commercial tenants. 
 
 2. The tax exemption will commence on the date HLHDFC acquires the Property and 
expire on the thirty-first (31st) anniversary of the date the Project obtains a Certificate of 
Occupancy.  This PILOT Agreement shall not limit or restrict the HLHDFC’s or the Partnership’s 
right to apply for or obtain any other tax exemption to which it might be entitled upon the 
expiration of this PILOT Agreement.  As stated above, the exemption extended pursuant to 
Section 577 of the PHFL and this PILOT Agreement does not include exemption from special 
assessments and special ad valorem levies.  During the term of this PILOT Agreement, the 
Partnership shall pay any service charges, special ad valorem levies, special assessments and 
improvement district charges or similar tax equivalents which are or would be levied upon or with 
respect to the Project by the Taxing Jurisdictions or any other taxing authority. 
 
 3. So long as the exemption hereunder continues, commencing one year after the 
Project obtains a Certificate of Occupancy, the Partnership shall make annual PILOT payments 
in the amount set forth below, which payments shall cover all Local and Municipal Taxes owed 
in connection with the Property and the Project, and which payments shall be shared by the 
Taxing Jurisdictions on the same basis as property taxes would be shared if the Property and 
the Project were fully taxed.  The PILOT payments shall be in the initial amount of $80,000 per 
year, increasing by two percent (2%) annually.  So long as the tax exemption remains in effect, 
tenant rental charges shall not exceed the maximum established or allowed by law, rule or 
regulation, and the Property shall be operated in conformance with the provisions of Article XI 
of PHFL.  PILOT payments shall be due on February 15 of the calendar year following each 
taxable year to which this PILOT Agreement applies. Payments shall be mailed via First Class 
mail through the United States Postal Service or personally delivered to the City of Lockport 
Treasurer One Locks Plaza, Lockport, New York 14094, or such other address as the City may 
specify in writing. 
 
 4. The tax exemption will continue for the term described above provided that (a) the 
Property continues to be used as housing facilities for persons of middle income and low income 
in accordance with the income and rent limitations, and (b) any of the following occur (i) the 



 

 

HLHDFC and the Partnership operate the Property in conformance with Article XI of the PHFL; 
(ii) the HLHDFC assumes sole legal and beneficial ownership of the Property and operates the 
Property in conformance with Article XI of the PHFL; or (iii) in the event an action is brought to 
foreclose a mortgage upon the HLHDFC, and the legal and beneficial interest in the Property is 
acquired at the foreclosure sale or from the mortgagee, or by a conveyance in lieu of such sale, 
by a housing development fund company organized pursuant to Article XI of the PHFL, and such 
successor in interest shall operate the Property in conformance with Article XI of the PHFL. 
 
 5. The failure to make any required PILOT payment will be treated as failure to make 
payment of taxes and will be governed by the same provisions of law as apply to the failure to 
make payment of taxes, including, but not limited to, enforcement and collection of taxes to the 
extent permitted by law.  In addition to failure to pay any amount when due, HLHDFC and the 
Partnership shall be in default of this PILOT Agreement in the event of material failure to observe 
and perform any other covenant, condition of this PILOT Agreement on its part to be observed 
and performed, and continuance of such failure for a period of thirty (30) days after written notice 
specifying the nature of such failure and requesting that it be remedied; or any warranty, 
representation or other statement by or on behalf of HLHDFC and/or the Partnership contained 
in this PILOT Agreement shall prove to have been false or untrue in any material respect on the 
date when made or on the effective date of this PILOT Agreement.  Any payment not received 
by its due date shall accrue interest and penalties at the rates provided for late payment of taxes 
to the Taxing Jurisdictions. 
 
 6. All notices and other communications hereunder shall be in writing and shall be 
sufficiently given when delivered to the applicable address stated above (or such other address 
as the party to whom notice is given shall have specified to the party giving notice) by registered 
or certified mail, return receipt requested or by such other means as shall provide the sender 
with documentary evidence of such delivery.  
 
  7. This PILOT Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon the 
City, HLHDFC and the Partnership and their respective successors and assigns, including the 
successors in interest of HLHDFC and the Partnership.  There shall be no assignment of this 
PILOT Agreement except with consent of the other parties, which consent shall not be 
unreasonably withheld, provided that the assignee or its general partner or managing member 
shall be a housing development fund company subject to Article XI of the PHFL, the assignee 
shall have assumed the obligations of this Agreement in writing reasonably satisfactory to the 
City, and the assignee shall have provided such financial and other information as shall be 
reasonably requested by the City in order to assure the proper completion and operation of the 
housing project and the compliance with the terms of this PILOT Agreement and all applicable 
laws, regulations and covenants. 
 
 8. This PILOT Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the 
laws of the State of New York.  If any provision of this PILOT Agreement or its application is held 
invalid or unenforceable to any extent, the remainder of this PILOT Agreement and the 
application of that provision to other persons or circumstances shall be enforced to the greatest 
extent permitted by law. 
 9. This PILOT Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts with the 
same effect as if all the signing parties had signed the same document.  All counterparts shall 
be construed together and shall constitute the same instrument. 
 
 10. This PILOT Agreement constitutes the entire agreement of the parties relating to 
payments in lieu of taxes with respect to the Property and supersedes all prior contracts, or 



 

 

agreements, whether oral or written, with respect thereto. 
 
 11. Each of the parties individually represents and warrants that the execution, delivery 
and performance of this PILOT Agreement, (i) has been duly authorized and does not require 
any other consent or approval, (ii) does not violate any article, by-law or organizational document 
or any law, rule, regulation, order, writ, judgment or decree by which it is bound, and (iii) will not 
result in or constitute a default under any indenture, credit agreement, or any other agreement 
or instrument to which it is a party.  Each party represents that this PILOT Agreement shall 
constitute the legal, valid and binding agreement of such party, enforceable in accordance with 
its terms. 
 

Seconded by Alderman ___________________ and adopted. Ayes ______. 
 

082323.9 
By Alderman:______________________________ 
 

Whereas the City of Lockport is the successor in interest to the Lockport Urban 
Renewal Agency, and its Urban Renewal Plan (the Plan) that was adopted by the Common 
Council on February 20, 1963 and revised in June 1964; and 

Whereas the Plan placed covenants, conditions, restrictions and right of reverter upon 
all properties within its footprint; and 

Whereas the Plan included within its scope certain real property located at 116 Main 
Street and 120 Main Street, Lockport, New York, currently owned by E.A. Granchelli 
Developer, LLC; and 

Whereas the City transferred the property at 116 Main Street, Lockport to Elmer A. 
Granchelli, predecessor in title, subject to the Plan for a period of forty (40) years; and 

Whereas E.A. Granchelli Developer, LLC now wishes to transfer said property without 
the encumbrances of covenants, conditions, restrictions and right of reverter of the Plan; and 

Now be it resolved that the Mayor, subject to approval by the Corporation Counsel, is 
hereby authorized to enter into a Release and Termination with E.A. Granchelli Developer, 
LLC, for any remaining encumbrances that the Plan might otherwise impose on the property. 
 

Seconded by Alderman ___________________ and adopted. Ayes ______. 
 
 
082323.10 
By Alderman:______________________ 
 

Whereas the responsibility for enforcement of the City sign ordinances is vested in the 
Building Inspections Department which is currently short-staffed; and 

Whereas the general election for various elective offices will occur within eleven weeks 
of today; and 

Whereas a strict application of the relevant ordinance would require any sign placed 
between the sidewalk and roadway be removed or the property owner cited for violating said 
ordinance; now be it 

Resolved that a moratorium shall be placed on enforcement of City Ordinance 
§190.125(B) (8) with respect to the placement in front of a resident’s property between the 
sidewalk and the roadway for calendar year 2023. 
 

Seconded by Alderman ____________ and adopted.  Ayes _____. 
 



 

 

 
082323.11 
By Alderman:_____________________________ 
 

Whereas the City of Lockport has collective bargaining agreements with various unions 
that cover virtually all of its employees with the exception of a few managerial and confidential 
employees; and 

Whereas the City of Lockport enacted an Unrepresented Employees Policy on October 
24, 2018 to provide the general terms of employment and respective compensation; and 

Whereas the City has determined that it is necessary to update this policy; and 
Whereas the Common Council has reviewed that attached Unrepresented Employees 

Policy and approve the same; and 
Now therefore be it resolved that the City of Lockport hereby adopts and approves the 

Unrepresented Employees Policy. 
 

Seconded by Alderman ____________ and adopted.  Ayes _____. 
 
 
082323.12 
By Alderman:______________________________ 
 

Whereas on July 14, 2023, the City published a request for proposal on the City 
website and newspaper to procure bids for the City’s annual auditing services; and  

Whereas one bidder provided a proposal by the deadline of August 11, 2023, Lumsden 
McCormick LLP for three year contract beginning with services for the FY 2023 audit; and  

Whereas the members of the City audit committee have provided a recommendation to 
pursue said contract, now therefore be it  

Resolved that the Mayor is hereby authorized to enter into said contract with Lumsdem 
McCormick LLP.   

 
Seconded by Alderman ____________ and adopted.  Ayes _____. 

 
 
082323.13 
By Alderman:_________________________________ 
 

Whereas in review of the FY 2023 General Fund budget, a number of line items have 
tilted towards deficiency; and  

Whereas fund and cash flow projections for said fund remain positive for the fiscal year, 
and other line items within the fund can be modified to eliminate line item deficiencies; and  

Whereas the City of Lockport is dedicated to maintaining a fiscally responsible and 
balanced budget to effectively serve its residents; now therefore be it  

Resolved that the FY 2023 General Fund is amended as follows:  
 

Revenue  
Increase 
A.0000.32401  Interest and Earnings   $600,000 
A.1355.33089  Other State Revenue   $26,000 
A.3620.32555  Building Permits    $15,000 
Decrease 
A.3410.31640  Ambulance Charges   $200,000 



 

 

 
Expenditures 

Increase 
A.1420.51040   Part Time Wages    $15,000 
A.1640.54300   Vehicle Maintenance and Repair  $20,000 
A.3410.51100   Overtime     $400,000 
A.7140.51060   Temporary Seasonal   $10,000 
A.7180.51060   Temporary Seasonal   $6,000 
A.1620.51010  Full Time Wages    $23,440 
A.1620.58010   FICA      $1,793 
A.1620.58020   Workers Compensation   $1,792 
A.1620.58050  Retirement     $2,578 
A.1620.58040   Medical Insurance    $11,641 
Decrease 
A.8510.54515  Special Supplies    $10,000 
A.7110.51010   Full Time Wages    $23,440 
A.7110.58010  FICA      $1,793 
A.7110.58020   Workers Compensation   $1,792 
A.7110.58050  Retirement     $2,578 
A.7110.58040   Medical Insurance    $11,641 
 
 

Seconded by Alderman ____________ and adopted.  Ayes _____. 
 
 
082323.14 
By Alderman:______________________________ 
 
           Whereas the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (ARPA) provided the City with 
$2,082,558 in Federal funding to be used within established parameters; and 
           Whereas the City of Lockport has $800,000 allocated for the Lockport Raw Water Pump 
Station in remaining unencumbered funds available; and; 
           Whereas the City’s Engineering Consultant, Nussbaumer & Clarke, Inc., issued a Notice 
to Bid for interested contractors for the Lockport Raw Water Pump Station Generator Purchase 
Specification project and subsequently received and publicly opened and read bids at the 
Municipal Building on July 21, 2023 at 2:00 pm as follows; 
 

CONTRACTOR Frey Electric Construction Co. 

TOTAL BID AMOUNT $188,000.00 

 
And 
           Whereas Nussbaumer & Clarke, Inc. has determined that Frey Electric Construction Co. 
has submitted the lowest complete and responsible bid and recommends that the City award the 
contract to Frey Electric Construction Co., for a total amount of $188,000.00; now, therefore, be 
it 
           Now therefore be it resolved that the Mayor is authorized to execute an Agreement with 
Frey Electric Construction Co., 100 Pearce Avenue, Tonawanda, New York 14150, in the 
amount of $188,000.00, contingent upon corporation counsel approval. 
 
 



 

 

           Seconded by Alderman                      and adopted. Ayes            . 
 
 
082323.15 ADJOURNMENT 
 

At ______ P.M. Alderman Beakman moved the Common Council be adjourned until 
6:30 P.M., Wednesday September 13th, 2023. 
  

Seconded by Alderman ___________________ and adopted.  Ayes _____. 
 

SARAH K. LANZO 
City Clerk 

 
 
 



AfRfftEL:"'.1:,,1:
0447 lllrillips Itrl. Ilurt, N<rrv Yoll< 1402u 71(t.7711.5730 rvwrv.rriagartrceltic.conr

Sarah K Lanzo

City Clerk

One Locks Plaza

Lockport, New York 74094

June 8, 2023

Dear Ms Lanzo,

On behalf of the Niagara Celtic Heritage Society, lnc., an educational 50L(c)3, I

would like to ask permission from the City of Lockport to display a banner in the city. The
location would be in front of the Town & Country Club of Lockport on East Avenue.

Our society's annual fundraiser/outreach event is the Niagara Celtic Heritage
Festival & Highland Games. The Festival will take place on September l-5th and 17th at the
Niagara County Fairgrounds (Cornell Cooperative Extension - Niagara). The banner would be
promoting the Festival and the dates. We understand that we will need to update the banner
used in 2022, that will meet your specifications, in terms of size and strength, and will work
with the local company, D & T Graphics, to have that ready by the third week of August, if
granted permission by the City.

lf you have any questions about our organization, please see our website
www.ntasar aceltic.com lf you have questions about the Festival or the banner, please call me
at716.345.0050 or 716.778.5730. Thank you for your time.

Sincerely yours,

Beth Ann Banks

Festival Director

Board member, Niagara Celtic Heritage Society, lnc.



UFFILE U5E UNLY

Q Original Q Amended Date.rli,-,.,1. 
:1l11ii:\ ; lrl*iri

' ,1rili1i1r';1\.
49

Standardized NOTICE FORM for Provid 30- Advance Ning
to a local MunicipaliW or Communitv Board 0 s 2lJ23

1. Date Notice was Sent: 1a. Delivered by:

2. Select the type of Application that will be filed with the Authority for an On-Premises Alcoholic Beverage License:

QNewApplication (fRenewal QAheration Qcorporatechange QRemoval Qclasschange Qtvtetnoaofoperationchange

For New applicants, answer each question below using all information known to date
For Renewal applicants, answer all questions
For Alteratlon applicants, attach a complete written description and diagrams depicting the proposed alte ration(s)
For Corporate Change applicants, attach a list ofthe current and proposed corporate principals
For Bemoval applicants, attach a statgment of your current and proposed addresses with the reason(s) for the relocation
For Class Change applicants, attach a statement detailing your current llcense type and your proposed license type
For Method of Operation Change applicants, although not required, if you choose to submif attach an explanation detailing those changes

Please include all documents as noted above, Failure to do so may result in disapproval of the applicatlon.
This 30-Day Advance Notice is Being Provided to the Clerk of the Following Local Municipality or Community Board:

3. Name of Municipality or Community Board:

Applicant/Licensee lnformation:

4. Licensee Serial Number (if applicable): Expiration Date (if applicable):

5. Applicant or Licensee Name:

6. Trade Name (if any):

€

o

lO ll' rp(7. Street Address of Establishment;

8. City, Town or Village:

9. Business Telephone Number of

10. Business E-mail of Applicant/Licensee:

11. Type(sl of alcohol sold or to be sold: Q Oeer &

12. Extent of Food Service:

O futt tooa menu; full kitchen run by a chef or cook

13. Type of Establishment:

, NY ZiP Code:

f]Recorded Music f] Karaoke

Q Wine, Beer & Cider $Liquor, Wine, Beer & Cider

meets legal minimum food availability requirements; food prep area at minimum

f]SeasonalEstablishment flJukeaox f]DiscJockey

fl tive Music (give details i.e., rock bands, acoustic, jazz, etc.):

E] Patron Dancing tr
f] Video/Arcade Games Party Promoters f] Security Personnel

fl Other (specify):

ftttton" fl ratio or Deck f] Rooftop I Garden/Grounds f] Freestanding Covered structure

14. Method of Operation;
(check all that apply)

15. Licensed Outdoor Area:
(check all that apply)

)oR

f] Sidewalk cafe I other (specify):

Page 1 of 2



Q originat Amended Date

49

16. List the floor(s) of the building that the establishment is located on:

17. List the room number(s) the establishment is located in within the building if appropriate:

18. ls the premises located within 500 feet of three or more on-premises liquor establishments? Q Ves O No

19. Will the license holder or a manager be physically present within the establishment during all hours of operation? QYes O ttto

20. lf this is a transfer application (an existing licensed business is being purchased) provide the name and serial number of the licensee:

Name

21. Does the applicant or licensee own the building in which the establishment is located? QYes (if YE$ sl(lP 23-26) Ono

22. Building Owner's Full Name:

23. Buildins Qwner's Street Address:

24. City, Town or Village

25. Business Telephone Number of Building Owner:

26. Representative/Attorney's Full Name:

Owner of the Euilding in Which the Ucensed Establishment is Located

State: Zip Code:

Representative or Attorney Representing the Applicant in Connection with the
Application for a License toTraffic in Alcohol at the Establishment ldentified in this Notice

tnh k
*ilb

0 r^,

27. Representative/Attorney's Street Address:

28. City, Town or Village: State: Zip Code:

29. Business Telephone Number of Representative/Attorney:

30. Business E-mail Address of Representative/Attorney:

I am the applicant or licensee holder or a principal of the legal entity that holds or is applying for the license.
Representations in this form are in conformity with representations made in submitted documents relied upon by

the Authority when granting the license. I understand that representations made in this form will also be relied
upon, and that false representations may result in disapproval of the application or revocation of the license.

By my signature, I affirm - under Penalty of Perjury - that the representations made in this form are true.

31. Printed Principal Name:

)

t/'nR k

I i I kq ll?.r,

Principal Signature:

Title

Page? of 2



Lockport City School District

Lockport Hlgh School
250 Lincoln Avenue, Lockport, NY 14094

Mrs. Down Wglke, Prlnclpol
Mr. Anthong Molinoro, Asslstont Princlpol
Mr. Michoel Pickreign, Assistont Principol
Ms. Amonodo Schous, Assistont Principol

(716> 478-450 Phone:
(716) 478-498 Fox:

August gth,2023

Soroh K. Lonzo,
Citg Clerk
1 Locks Plozo
Lockport, NY 14094

RECENEP

Auti 
'1 A ?s?3

c\1\ '- "-'

Deor Ms. Lonzo:

I om drofting this letter to request permission to hold our troditionol Homecoming Porode before the
footboll gome on Soturdog, October 7th,2023. Chief Abbott hos olso been notified regording this porode
ond the need for o potrol con

We will begin lining up for the porode in the Lockport High School Locust Street porking lot ot 9:00 o.m.
The porode will leove the porking lot promptlg ot 11 o.m. The route is os follows:

Turn left onto Lincoln Avenue

Turn right onto Pine Street

Turn right onto Wolnut Street

Turn right onto Locust Street

Turn right into the circle ot LHS

Thonk gou for gour conslderotlon in this motter. lf gou would llke to correspond through emoil, I con be
reoched ot omolinoro@lockportschools.net

Sincerelg,

z-a
Anthong Molinoro,
Assistont Principol



RECEIVED

AUB 1 4 2023Niagara Hotel
58 N Transit St
Lockport, NY 14094 c; i'/ tr€ai( t : /'.--r.r J-JVjJ

August 11,2023

Office of the City Clerk
Saralr Lanzo
Lockport Municipal Building
One Locks Plaza
Lockport, NY 14094

Dear Ms. Lanzo,

Enclosed please find the New York State Liquor Authority Standardized Notice Form for
Providing 30-DayAdvanced Notice to a Local Municipality for Sunday On-Premises Sales
Permit.

We are seeking the approval of theAuthority to open at 8:00 a.m. on Sunday, October 8,2023 for
the Buffalo Bills game being broadcast from London, England. It is our intent to open early on
that date and offer a brunch to our patrons, as well as hold a fundraiser to benefit Lockport Little
Loop Football and Cheer.

Please consider this the City's notice of our intent to do so

Thank you for your time and attention to this matter.

Sincerely,

Amanda

enclosure



Sunday On- Premises Sales Permit
30

Standardized NorlcE FORM for Providing 30-Day Advanced Notice to a
Lo.al Municipafity fot sunday on-premises sales permit(sl

2. This form must be submitted to the clerk or Local Municipality when filing for a Sunday On-Premises Sales permit

This 30'DayAdvance Notice is Being Provided to the Clerk of the following Local Municipality

l. Date Notice Was Sentl

3. Name of Municipality:

4. License Serial Number:

08t11t2023 1a. Delivered by:

3011417

AMANDA SANDOLFINI VI A tf,S US€F/I

5. Permit Date(s): 10108t2023

CITY OF LOCKPORT

Licensee lnformation

6. License name: MY DOG DAISEY INC.

7. Trade Name (if any): NIAGAM HOTEL

8. Street Address of Establishment: 58 NORTH TRANSIT STREET

9. City,Town orVillage: Zip Code

1 0. Business Telephone Number of Applicant/Licensee; 716-201-1974

1 1. Business Fax Number of Applicant/Licensee: N/A

12. Business E-mail of Applicant/Licensee: NIAGARAHOTELl MAIL.COM

Representative or Attorney representing the licensee in connection with this permit

I 3. Representative/Attorney's Full Name: N/A

LOCKPORT NY 14094

14. StreetAddress:

15. City, Town or Village: State: Zip Code

1 6. Business Telephone Number of Representative/Attorney:

17. Business Email Address :

I am the licensee that is applying for the permit and I certifiT that I know the contents of the above application and the statements and
answers therein; that the same are true to my knowledge; that I have been authorized, by order of the Board of Directors of said licensee
to make the statements and answers in this application on behalf of said licensee with the same force and effect as if said licensee made

such statements and answers itself.
By my signature, I affirm - under Penalty of Perjury - that the representations made in this form are true.

17. Printed Name:

Signature: X

e PRESIDENT

The above captioned is applying for a permit with the State Liquor Authority to sell alcoholic
beverages on their premises on Sunday between the hours of 8AM to l OAM for the date indicated above.

Please forward any concerns regarding the issuance of this permit to the attention of
The New York State Liquor Authority, Permit Unit fax {5181474-9804 or e-mail licensing.inforrnation@sla.ny.gov

AMANDA SANDOLF]NI

1012812016 Page 4 of4



At{ INOIPTNPENI I,IT}lBTN OF

BDO
ALLIANCE UsA

Professional Accounting and Auditing Services Proposal
August L0,2023

Sara M. Dayton, CPA

716-856-3300
sdayton@ Lu msdenCPA.corn

Lumsden llll
McCormicki Cyclorama Sullding

pr716.8563300 I
| 369FranklinStreet I Buffato,NYt4202
f: 716.856,2624 | www.LumsdenCPA,com

CERTIFI€D FUBLIC ACCOU NTANTS Co m prehensive. Proactive. Accessible.



CITY OF IOCKPORT, NEW YORK

Professional Accounting and Auditing Services Proposal
TABLE OF CONTENTS

page #

TRANSMITTAL TETTER L

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 2

FIRM QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE

Firm Overview
Firm Qualifications
Firm Description
Peer Review Report
Similar Engagements with Other Municipalities
Select Government Clients

4

PARTNER, SUPERVISORY, AND STAFF QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE 11

SUMMARY OF SERVICES 15

SPECIFIC AUDIT APPROACH L6

PROPOSED FEES

Appendix A: Fee Specification Sheet for City of Lockport
19

APPENDICES

Appendix B: Required Disclosure of Relationships to City
Appendix C: Required Disclosure of Criminal, Civil, or Disciplinary Actions
Appendix D: Non Collusion Statement General Municipal Law Section 103-d

20



Lumsden
McCormic

m
ki c\nloramaBullding I 369Franklinsffeet I Buffalo, NY14202

CERTI FIED FU BI-IC ACCOUNIANTS p:71S.856.3300 | f: 716"856.2624 I www"Lumsden0PA.com

August 10,2023

Ms. Sarah Lanzo, City Clerk
City of Lockport, New York
One Locks Plaza

Lockport, NY 14094

Dear Ms. Lanzo and Members of the City Council

Lumsden McCormick is pleased to present this proposalto continue to serve as the independent certified public
accountants for the City of Lockport, New York (the City) forthe years ending December 31,2023 through 2025
with the option to renew for two additional one-year periods through 2027. Our knowledge and past
experience working with the City together with our expertise serving local municipalities and other
governmental agencies throughout New York State makes us uniquely qualified to deliver the services you
require. As you review the proposals you have received, you may ask what differentiates one firm from another.
Our Executive Summary offers insight as to our previous experience and the reasons why we would like to
continue our working relationship.

We are fully aware of the scope requirements outlined in your request for proposal and are committed to
continuing to meet alldeadlines between commencement of the audit and delivery of final reports each year.
We are proud of our core values and are dedicated to consistently delivering timely and quality services.

Our total all-inclusive proposed fee as documented herein represents our irrevocable offer to provide the
services described herein. The fee is based upon the assumption that there will be no unanticipated material
changes in conditions and circumstances that will affect the scope and performance of our audit.

Working with Lumsden McCormick adds strength to the efforts of your management team. Through our
diversified experiences, we can provide the indispensable objectivity of an outsider to interpret financial
information, identify issues that may impede progress of your financial goals, and recommend solutions.

Thank you for the opportunity to present this proposal. We look forward to the opportunity to meet with you
and detail how our continued service approach can be of benefit to the City.

As a partner in Lumsden McCormick, I certify that I am empowered to submit our proposal and sign
engagement letters stipulating the terms of the engagement.

Sincerely,
lumsden & McCormick, LLP

gfLrt $A. vtrtAt{n
Sara M. Dayton, CdA

Managing Partner

Enc.

Professional Accounting and Auditing Services Proposal for the City of Lockport
Submitted by Lumsden McCormick



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

While our proposal contains detailed information about our Firm and our capabilities, this summary
highlights some important information for your consideration.

Understanding of the Services to be Performed
We understand our responsibility will be to audit the basic financial statements and supplementary
information, including the schedule of expenditures of federal awards, in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of Am erica, Government Auditing Standords issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, and Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awords (Uniform Guidance). We will also audit
and provide a report regarding internal controls over financial reporting and compliance, if required by
Gove r n me nt Auditi ng Sta nda rds.

Experience in the Governmental Arena
Our clients include over 100 governmental entities, including numerous counties, towns, and villages.
Specializing in audits of governmental entities is a fulltime service area of our Firm with over 25 people
dedicated to this sector. Pages 9 - 10 include a summary of the governmental clients we have the privilege
to serve and provide the professional qualifications of the specific engagement leaders who will serve you,
A majority of those clients include single audit services. We also perform a variety of other consulting services
for municipalities, including assisting the City with budget preparation, prior to our role as your external
auditors.

Knowledge of Governmental Accounting
Certified public accountants who work on government audits are required to obtain at least 24 hours of
government-specific continuing education within each two-year period. We strive to match this education
with the specific needs of the individual as well as the specialty areas applicable to our clients. We also
ensure that our professional staff receive education hours at seminars both inside and outside the firm, and
most far exceed the minimum requirements.

Full-Service Firm
As a full-service accounting and advisory firm with dedicated industry specialists, we provide the same level of
expertise as firms which limit their practice to the governmental area, while also offering a wide array of
additional resources that may be required by exempt organizations. Our experience with exempt organizations
has given us the opportunity to develop specialized services designed for their needs.

ln addition to traditional auditing and accounting services, we have the expertise to offer solutions related to
exempt and payroll taxation, financial reporting, budgeting, forecasting, agreed-upon procedures relative to
bond issuances, strategic planning, computer technology and software, fraud detection and prevention, internal
control and efficiency audits, and many other operational concerns. Additionally, as we have demonstrated to
our clients, the size of our staff affords us the ability to provide continuity on engagements as well as deliver
timely, quality services. We routinely assist our government clients with questions on payroll and other
informationa I tax forms.

Professional Accounting and Auditing Services Proposal for the City of Lockport
Submitted by Lumsden McCormick

2



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Our unique qualifications include:

Professionals already familiar with auditing and accounting requirements for municipalities. An audit
team with industry experience and historical knowledge of your City increases audit efficiencies and
facilitates quality service. We provide staff continuity, balanced with "fresh eyes" achieved through
periodic rotation of field personnel. Given oursize and experience, we have several partners with specific
governmental expertise, allowing for seamless partner rotation, if requested.

A professional dedicated audit team that concentrates primarily in the government sector and possesses

specific knowledge of operations which minimizes the transition to a new accounting firm and disruption
to your daily routine. This audit team has expertise related to the implementation of recent accounting
pronouncements, including GASB 87, the new accounting standard for leases, and GASB 96, which
changes the reporting requirements for subscription-based information technology arrangements,

Proactive service approach. Our philosophy encourages regular communication with clients throughout
the year to discuss issues and address complex areas as they occur, which reduces year end audit
adjustments. Our engagement partners are very involved in the audit process and available whenever
needed.

Professional development. We recognize it is often difficult to remain current with financial accounting,
repofting, and continuing professional education requirements. Therefore, Lumsden McCormick sponsors
an annual Exempt Organizations seminar each fall; this year/s event is scheduled to take place on November
30 and December L, 2023. The conference addresses pertinent topics relative to governmental
organizations, often featuring nationally recognized speakers, We also offer continuing professional
education courses to clients directly through our membership affiliation in the BDO Alliance USA (see Global
Resources below).

lndustry knowledge and participation. To stay current with governmental industry trends and issues,
our Firm is a qualified member of the AICPA GovernmentalAudit Quality Center (GAaC) and Benefit Plans
Audit Quality Center. Additionally, members of our governmental services niche are active participants
in a number of relevant extracurricular organizations, including the New York State Government Finance
Officers' Association and the New York State Society of CPA's Government Accounting and Auditing
Committee.

Global resources provided through our membership in BDO Alliance USA. The Alliance is a nationwide
association of independently owned local and regional accounting, consulting, and service firms operated
by BDO, an international accounting network that provides advisory services in t44 countries.

Given our experience auditing the City's financial statements, we understand the diverse business categories
present within the City. We have experience auditing these areas and do not have any concerns regarding
the scope of the audit services requested. A list of current clients is listed on page 10. Over our 70-year
history we have performed similar services for many entities, including cities, other municipalities, school
districts, towns, counties, and villages.

Professional Accounting and Auditing Services Proposal for the City of Lockport
Submitted by Lumsden McCormick

3



FIRM QUAIIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE

Firm Overview

Founded I Ownership I Total Staff | Gor/t Group
1952 | 18 Partners 1145 with 68 CPAs | 40

Peer Review Report, Most Recent
2O2t- Passed (highest distinction available)

Professional Affiliations
American lnstitute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA)

Employee Benefit Plan Audit Quality Center
Governmental Audit Quality Center {GAaC)

New York State Society of Certified Public Accountants (NYSSCPA)

Government Accounting and Auditing Committee
Health Care Committee
N ot-For-Profit Orga nizations Committee
Public Schools Committee
Technology Assurance Committee

Registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (PCAOB)

BDO Alliance USA

Association of Government Accountants
Association of Certified Fraud Examiners
Government Finance Officers' Association (GFOA)

lnstitute of lnternal Auditors (llA)
New York State Association of School Business Officials
Western New York Association of School Business Officials

Services
Auditing and Accounting, GASB lmplementation Assistance, Annual Comprehensive Financial Reports,
lnternal Audit Services, the Uniform Guidance, Governmental Reporting, Consolidation Studies, Personal and
Corporate Tax, Financial Statements, Estate Tax Planning, lnternational Taxation

Client Types
Municipalities, Governmental Agencies, Public Authorities, School Districts, BOCES, Fire Districts, Community
Colleges, Private Colleges, Universities, Private Schools, Religious, Performing Arts, Museums, Associations,
Clubs, Foundations, Pension/Welfare Plans, Human Service, Health Care, Hospitals

Service Experience
Contract Close-out Audits, FAR Audits, Audit and Tax, Uniform Guidance, HUD Projects, Cost Reporting, GFOA

Award Program for Annual Financial Reports, Consolidated Fiscal Reports, Medicare/Medicaid, Financial
Reporting, Financing, Unrelated Business lncome Tax, Municipal Studies, Compensation Surveys, lnternal
Control Systems, IRS Representation, Business Plan Procedures, Budget and Forecasting, Cost Control
Studies, Banking & Financing, Fraud Policy Manual

Computer Technology
Software, lmplementation/Training for accounting applications designed for exempt organizations

So,"ro ffi spcAoB ffitu@ffi*MrrxwFG{OC Mcmb.r

4Professional Accounting and Auditing Services Proposal for the City of Lockport
Submitted by Lumsden McCormick



FIRM QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERI ENCE

Firm Qualifications

Firm lndependence
Lumsden McCormick maintains strict adherence to professional quality control standards. This includes annual
written representation by all professional staff members of any relationships that would prevent us from
rendering an opinion on an entity's financial statements. We are independent as defined by auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America and the U.S. Government Accountability Office's
Government Auditing Standards (Yellow Book 2011 Revision).

License to Practice in New York State
All of our qualified professionals are licensed by the New York State Department of Education as Certified Public
Accountants and are members of the American lnstitute of Certified Public Accountants and the New York State
Society of Certified Public Accountants. Each professional staff member must have a college undergraduate
degree with a concentration in accounting and meet the qualifications necessary to sit for the Uniform Certified
Public Accountancy Exam. Many have earned graduate degrees and specialized certificates.

Continuing Professional Education
All partners and professionals are required to complete at least 40 hours of continuing professional education
each year and most far exceed this minimum. All partners and staff pedorming governmental audits receive a

minimum of 24 hours of continuing professional education within a two-year period specific to governments to
meet the more stringent requirements of Government Auditing Standards. Qualified in-house technicians and
professional instructors provide training courses in topics of general appeal to all CPAs and specialized programs
gearedtotheneedsofourclientsoranindividual'sareaofspecialization. Alargeportionofeducationalhours
is accumulated at out-of-town seminars and conferences,

Desk and Field Reviews
Our work has been subject to normal and routine Federal and State desk reviews conducted by the Single Audit
Clearinghouse and the New York State Department of Education over the past three years. There have been
no findings or recommendations. None of our work has been subjected to field reviews by state regulatory
bodies or professional organizations, and the Firm has not been subjected to any disciplinary action.

Equal Employment Opportunity and Non-Discrimination
Lumsden McCormick is committed to diversity and fair employment practices and supports adherence to all
federal, state, and local laws and regulations dealing with discrimination and equal employment opportunity.
The Firm does not tolerate discriminatory practices with regard to conditions of employment on the basis of
any legally protected characteristic, such as: race, creed, color, age, sex, sexual orientation, familial status,
domestic violence victim, religion, military or veteran status, physical or mental disability, genetic
characteristics, national origin, citizenship, gender, gender identity and expression including a person's actual
or perceived genderself-image, appearance, behavior, expression, regardless of the sex assigned at birth. lt
is the responsibility of all employees to give our policy of Equal Employment Opportunity full support. To
support the goals of this policy, the Firm conducts diversity and inclusion training on a regular basis.

Conflicts of lnterest
To the best of our knowledge, no member of our Government Services Team or our Firm staff conflicts with
or has a relationship with the City of Lockport.

Professional Accounting and Auditing Services Proposal for the City of Lockport
Submitted by Lumsden McCormick

5



FIRM QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE

Firm Description

Lumsden McCormick is a New York State partnership founded in 1952 and located in Buffalo, New York. With
approximatelyone hundred employees, we are one of the largest locally owned certified public accountingfirms
in Western New York.

Lumsden McCormick serves exempt organizations (cities, counties, towns, villages, public authorities, fire
districts, schooldistricts, and nonprofit organizations), privately held businesses, and individuals. The size of our
clients varies from those with a few employees and modest revenues to large, multi-million-dollar entities. The
foundation of our Firm has always been the personal, confidential, and high-quality services we render to our
clients.

Becauseofthespecializedinterestsandneedsofourclients,ourFirmhasaproactiveapproachtoservice, Our
partners and managers work with our clients as advisors to supplement their management team. Your goals are
similar to our goals; your success is a measure of our success.

Since a substantial portion of our practice consists of governmental organizations, we have professionals who
devote the majority of their time to serving this important market segment and staying informed of current
developments. All professionals on our government services team are qualified to perform audits in conformity
with Government Auditing Stondords and the standards embodied by the Uniform Guidance.

Lumsden McCormick professionals understand the constraints as well as the opportunities in today's competitive
business environment. ln addition to providing recurring annual services, we offer specialized services designed
to assist in impoftant business decisions, which include:

. Accounting standards implementation

. Annual Comprehensive Financial Reports (ACFRs)

. Budgets and forecasts

. Employee and executive compensation

. lnternal control systems

. lnternal audit outsourcing

. Cash management consulting

. Cost control and cost accounting

. Management information systems

. Strategic planning

. Accounting policies and procedures

Banking relationships and financing
arrangements

Single Audit/Uniform Guidance
Development of indirect costs to establish

indirect cost rates

Consolidated Fiscal Reports (CFRs)

Medicare/Medicaid cost reports
Reimbursement & regulatory issues
Financing assistance

Audits of employee benefit plan

Annual Update Documents (AUDs)

Lumsden McCormick is registered with the AICPA Governmental Audit Quality Center, the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board, and is a member of the Center for Public Company Audit Firms of the AICPA.

Membership requires us to maintain strict adherence to professional quality control standards and submit to
a peer review of our control policies and procedures to demonstrate that adherence. We "passed" our 2O2L
peer review (most recent), receiving the highest designation available from the AICPA's National Peer Review
Committee. A copy of this report appears herein.

Our practice philosophy embraces not only a comprehensive range of accounting and business advisory services,
but also a commitment to providing them in the most professional manner possible. At every stage of an
engagement, Lumsden McCormick is committed to personal service. Close personal contact with those we serve
is the best way to add value to our service, and the only way to ensure that a service is matched with an
organization's needs and delivered in a way that meets those needs.

Professional Accounting and Auditing Services Proposal for the City of Lockport
Submitted by Lumsden McCormick

6



FIRM QUATIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE

Firm Description

We are an independent member of the BDO Alliance USA, a nationwide association of independently owned
local and regional accounting, consulting, and service firms. The BDO Alliance USA presents an opportunity for
firms to expand services to clients by accessing the resources of BDO USA P.A. and other Alliance members. The
BDO Alliance USA is a subsidiary of BDO USA, P.A. a Delaware professional services corporation. Membership in
these and other organizations provides a foundation for us to maintain the highest level of quality and a

multitude of resources that we offer our clients.

Publications and Communication
Our communication is continuous and regular. We keep you informed of current developments that may affect
your operations. ln addition, our Firm regularly conducts seminars and hosts a variety of other events to which
your personnel will be invited. You will receive all of our Firm's announcements, invitations, and published e-
newsletters. As mentioned previously, we have held an annual conference for 30 years related to issues
im pacting governmenta I entities and non-profit orga nizations.

Our professionals have taught the two-day GFOA Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting workshop
classes at various dates during 2OI4,2015, and 2019. We also presented at various WNY ASBO school district
seminars and presented on GASB Statements 68,7L,75, and 87 at NYS GFOA Annual Conferences. ln addition,
we presented on Reserve Plans at the NYS Association of School Business Officials Financial Management
Auditing & Accounting workshops held throughout New York State in Spring 2OL8, atthe Western Region GFOA
Conference in July 2023, and have presented various governmental auditing and accounting topics at the
Lumsden McCormick Exempt Organizations conference most years through 2022. fhe 2O22 Exempt
Organizations Conference was held as a virtual conference and recordings can be found on our website in the
Firm News section.

Rating Agencies and Official Statements
Our experience assisting governmental entities in their communication with rating agencies is well established.
Our in-depth knowledge of governmentalfinances and its particularfinancial statements allows us to assist with
agreed-upon procedures relative to issuance of officialstatements with yourfinancial advisors and bond counsel.

State and National Organization Affiliations
Our professional staff has extensive experience working with many state and national organization affiliates. Our
involvement at committee levels, as seminar speakers, and with key advisory personnel at various levels of
government enhances our expertise. Our professional staff is currently active in the following organizations:

. American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA)
. Certified in Financial Forensics (CFFs)
. Certified lnformationTechnologyProfessionals (ClTPs)

. Association of Government Accountants

. lnstitute of lnternal Auditors

. New York State Society of Certified Public Accountants (NYSSCPA)
. NYSSCPA Public Schools Accounting Committee
. NYSSCPA Government Accounting and Auditing Committee

' New York State Association of School Business Officials
. GovernmentFinanceOfficers'Association(GFOA)
. Western New York Association of School Business Officials
' Association of Certified Fraud Examiners - three professionals in our Firm are CFEs

Professional Accounting and Auditing Services Proposal for the City of Lockport
Submitted by Lumsden McCormick

7



FIRM QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE

Peer Review Report

J}M

loha, Nab &tuningb il{

RBPORT ON mIE flRM'S SY$TEIvI OF QUALITY COI{TROL

To thePartners of
Lumsdcn & lr,IcCormick, LLP
s.rrd thc Naticnal Pccr Rcvicw Committcs

Wt havc rsvicwcd thc system of qualiNy con8ol for ttrc accounting and auditing practicc of Lumsdcn & McCormick,
LtP (thc Jinu) applicnblc to cngagcmcnts not subjcct to ?CAOB pcrmanftt inspcction in cffcot for thc ycar cndcd
Iunc 30 2021. Our pecr rcvicw was conductcd in accordancc with the Standards for Pcrforming and Reporting on
Pcer Rcvisws c*tablished by the Pccr Rcvrerr Board of thc American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
{standards}.

A surrnary of the nature, objectives, scope, limitations o{ and the procedures perlormed in a System Review as

described in thc $andards rnay be found at www.aicoa.orslursumnarv. the zummary also includes an explanation of
how engegernen8 identified as notperformed or reporled in conforrnity with applicable professionrl standards, ifany,
arc waluatrd by a pcer revicwer to dcfcrminc a pccr rwiew rating.

Firnr ts Rerpon*lbillty

The frm is rcsponsiblo for designine a iystem of guality control and complying rvith it to provide tho firm with
Rasonablc assurancc of pafbrming and roporting in conformity with applicablcprofessional slandards in all matcrial
r.sppcte, Thc firm ir also rcsponsiblc for waluating actions to promptly ramedistc cngagcmcltts decmod ar not
pcrfonncd cr rcpodcd in confonnity with profxsional stsrdardq whcn appropfiatc, and for rcmodiating wcakncsscs
ia its systcm ofquality control, ifa[y,

Soer Rer:iewerts Responsibility

Our responsibility is to cxpress an ophion on tfte dcsign of thc systcm of quality control and thc lirm's compliancc
therewith based on our rwiow.

Requlred Selectlonr md Consldua{lnns

Eagaectnffit$ seleored fof rsvicw included errgagements performed un der Gwennznt Audittng Swidar&. including
compliancc audrts undcr thc Singlc Audit Act audits of cmploycc bcncfit plarx, and ataminations of scrvicc
orglnizntions (SOC I and SOC 2 engagememt$).

.{,s a part of our peer rruie*,, trrre corsidered rerriorvs by regulatory entities as cothrirunicated by rhe firm, if applicable,
ia detormining thc rxilure and exibnt ofourprocedures.

Oplnlon

ln our opirdorl the system of guality cohtnol for the accoudins snd auditipg pracdce of Lumsden & McCorrnick, LLP
applicable to engagem€nrs not subjeat [o PCAOB peimanent inspection ia effect for the year ended June 30, 202 I, has
been suitably designed and cor4plied with to provide fie firm with reasonable a$erance ofperfonning and reporting
in conformitlt with applicable professional s'tandards.in all material rcspects. Firms can receive a rating of pasr, pass
with deficiewy(ies) orlrt turnsder & McCormick. LLP has received a poer roriew ratihg ofpass.

fi*,'\"e'- 
; TltM*:/U P'<-

Louiw.ille, Kentuoky
Decenrber 22,2021

fu rtfsd RtHh Accorrt r$ ard,kkl..rg
101 West Main Stnet, $uite ll$ Louiwlb, Keftoky 44?02 tel: 50?.$S.0?48far; 50?.581.1680 wwjrmopa.com

Professional Accounting and Auditing Services Proposal for the City of Lockport
Submitted by Lumsden McCormick

8



FIRM QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE

Similar Engagements with Other Municipalities

All services provided by Lumsden McCormick will be served by the office located in downtown Buffalo at 50
Fountain Plaza.

Clinton Countv, New York
Revenue: 5239,054,000 | Hours: 750
Scope of Work: Audit, Single Audit, NYS DOT Single Audit, Agreed-Upon Procedures Reports for Landfill and
Passenger Facility Charges, CFR for Mental Health Department, Assistance with AUD
Date of Work: December 31, 2022 (ongoing)
Engagement Partners: Sara M. Dayton, Seth D. Hennard
Client Contact: Kimberly Davis, (518) 565-4730, kimberlv.davis@clintoncountvsov.com

Town of Clarence, New York
Revenue: $29,196,000 | Hours: 350
Scope of Work: Audit, Single Audit (as needed), NYS DOT Single Audit (as needed), Justice Reports, AUD
assistance, specia I departmental studies
Date of Work: December 3 L, 2022 (ongoing)

Engagement Partner: Sara M. Dayton
Client Contact: Peter DiCostanzo, Town Councilman, (716) 9O7-1762, pdicostanzo@clarence.nv.us

Kimberly lgnatowski, Director of Administration and Finance, (7L61407-8937, kisnatowski@clarence.nv.us

Town of Lockport, New York
Revenue: S20,4o8,ooo I Hours: 300
Scope of Work: Audit, Justice Reports and consulting
Date of Work: December 3L,2022 (ongoing)

Engagement Partner: Sara M. Dayton
Client Contact: Mark Crocker, Town Supervisor (716) 439-9520, crocker@elockport.com

Town of Cambria. New York
Revenue: 56,095,000 | Hours: 185

Scope of Work: Audit and consulting
Date of Work: December 31,2022 (ongoing)

Engagement Partner: Sara M. Dayton
Client Contact: Wright H. Ellis, Supervisor, (716)433-8523, supervisor@townofcambria.com

Buffalo Public Schools

Revenue: S1,114,881,000 | Hours: 1,200
Scope of Work: Audit, Single Audit, Agreed-Upon Procedures Reports for Bond lssuances, and consulting
Date of Work: June 30,2023 (ongoing)

Engagement Partners: Sara M, Dayton, Seth D. Hennard
Client Contact: Jim Barnes, Chief Financial Officer, (716) 816-3522, irbarnes@buffaloschools.ors

Professional Accounting and Auditing Services Proposal for the City of Lockport
Submitted by Lumsden McCormick

9



FIRM QUATIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE

Select Government Clients

Lumsden McCormick has a long history of serving governmental entities. The size of our clients varies from
those with a few employees and modest revenues to those with revenues in the hundreds of millions and
thousands of employees.

Municipalities
City of Lockport, New York

County of Clinton, New York

Town of Batavia, New York
Town of Bolivar, New York

Town of Cambria, New York

Town of Clarence, New York
Town of Darien, New York

Town of Evans, New York (consulting)

Town of Holland, New York
Town of Lancaster, New York (consultingl
Town of Lockport, New York

Town of North Collins, New York
Town of North Dansville, New York
Town of Pendleton, New York

Town of Stafford, New York

Village of Bolivar, New York
Village of Depew, New York

Village of East Aurora, New York

Village of LeRoy, New York
Village of Lewiston, New York

Village of Orchard Park, New York

Public Authorities
Buffalo & Erie County Workforce Development Consortium
Buffalo & Erie County Industrial Land Development Corp.
Buffalo & Erie County Regional Development Corp.
Buffalo & Fort Erie Public Bridge Authority
Buffalo Fiscal Stability Authority
Capital District Transportation Authority
Erie County lndustrial Development Agency
Erie Tobacco Asset Securitization Corporation
Greater Lockport Development Corporation
New York State Energy Research and Development Authority
Niagara Area Development Corporation
Niagara County Brownfield Development Corporation
Niagara County lndustrial Development Agency
Niagara County Development Corporation
Niagara Economic Development Fund

Niagara Frontier Transportation Authority
Niagara Power Coalition

Fire Districts and Companies
Bowmansville Volunteer Fire Association
Cambria Volunteer Fire Company, lnc.

Clarence Center Volunteer Fire Company
Clarence Center Volunteer Firefighters Benevolent Ass., lnc.
Cleveland-Hill Fire District
Darien Center Chemical Fire Company, lnc.
Eggertsville Fire District
Holland Fire District
Newstead Fire Company

Fire Districts and Companies (continued)
Pekin Fire Company, lnc.

Snyder Fire District
Town of Niagara Active Hose
West Seneca Fire District No. 4

School Districts: External Audit
Akron Central School District
Alden Central School District
Attica Central School District
Barker Central School District
Belfast Central School District
Board of Education, City of Buffalo (Buffalo Public Schools)
Byron-Eergen Central School District
Cheektowaga Central School District
Cheektowaga-Maryvale Union Free School District
Cheektowaga-Sloan Union Free School District
Clarence Central School District
Cleveland-Hill Union Free School District
Corning City School District
Depew Union Free School District {consultlng)
Erie 1 BOCES

Erie 2 Chautauqua - Cattaraugus BOCES

Grand lsland Central School District
Hamburg Central School District
Kenmore-Town of Tonawanda Union Free School District
Lewiston-Porter Central School District
Lockport City School District
Mount Morris Central School District
Newfane Central School District
North Collins Central School District
Pavilion Central School District
Pembroke Central School District
Royalton Hartland Central School District
Salamanca City Central School District
Sweet Home Central School District
Warsaw Central School District
Wilson Central School District
Wyoming Central School District
Yorkshire-Pioneer Central School District

School Districts: lnternal Audit
Amherst Central School District
Fredonia Central School District
Holland Central School District
lroquois Central School District
Lackawanna City School District
Medina Central School District
Monroe2-OrleansBOCES
North Tonawanda City School District
Orchard Park Central School District
Tonawanda City School District

Professional Accounting and Auditing Services Proposal for the City of Lockport
Submitted by Lumsden McCormick

10



PARTNER, SUPERVISORY, AND STAFF qUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE

We understand that communication and continuity of staff are
important to our clients. Your service team will always be available to
provide proactive and responsive service whenever needed.

It is important to work with a team of professional advisors who have
an understanding of both government operations and the rules and
regulations mandated by New York State, as well as the depth to deliver
the needed services. Governmentalservices are a full-time business in our
Firm. We maintain a dedicated staff of professionals that possess the in-depth knowledge to work with you and
guide you through the audit and financial reporting requirements. One of our service goals is to have several
professionalsonourstafffamiliarwithyouroperations. Thisensuresthatyoualwayshaveaccesstosomeone
who knows you and can provide responsive service. Our government audit staff consists of approximately 25%
of our professionals. The mixture of staff assigned is based on experience and the needs of each engagement.
You will not be a training ground for new staff. All associates have the proper daily supervision.

ln addition to the people named within this proposal, we have over sixty other professionals on staff. Each of
them has experienced unique business situations, and many of them possess specialtytechnicalor industry
skills. This is an important consideration when hiring professional advisors. lt is not unusual that a client will
use the services of someone in our Firm who is not a regular member of our service team, but has the skills and
knowledge needed to assist with a specific technical or operating issue.

On the following pages you will find the resumes of your engagement team. We are available to meet your
needs on a full-time basis throughout the year as the need for consultation arises. We do allthat is possible to
ensure continuity of highly dedicated and trained staff.

Your engagement team will include:
Partners: Sara M. Dayton, CPA

Seth D. Hennard, CPA, CGFM

Principal: Jeremy J, Smith, CPA

Other government services team members:
Partners: Donna M. Gonser, CPA

Jill M. Johnson, CPA, CFE, CITP, FHFMA

Principals: Cathleen M. Karpik, CPA

Elizabeth S. Krause, CPA

Mary F. Young, CPA

Managers: Matthew J. Cronmiller, CPA

Kyle J. Januszkiewicz, CPA

Elizabeth M. LaLonde

Colton Monroe, CPA

Jenna A. Sheehan, CPA

Numerous other accountants also service this important practice area and all staff resumes are available on
our website inthe People section.

Professional Accounting and Auditing Services Proposal for the City of Lockport
Submitted by Lumsden McCormick

Grest
Plsce
To
Work

,"?.,:#',L:"3
g:A

t7



PARTNE& SUPERVISORY, AND STAFF qUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE

Sara has extensive experience leading our Governmental Services Niche in the areas of external and internal
auditing, single audits, agreed-upon procedures, taxation, information returns, and financial reporting. As of
January 2023, she serves as the firm's managing partner. Sara also performs quality reviews of governmental
reports on engagements on which she does not have engagement responsibility. Sara's expertise includes leases,
pension and other postemployment benefit reporting requirements, internal audits, single audits, and providing
guidance to our clients on important compliance areas. She currently manages client expectations for many of
our governmental clients, including over a dozen municipalities, and maintains the continuing professional
education requirements of Government Auditing Standords.

Education
State University of New York at Geneseo, Bachelor of Science, Accounting
Harvard Business School Executive Education, 2016, Governing for Nonprofit Excellence

Continuing Professional Education

GoW Other Total

2022 19.0 2s.0 44.0

2021. 26.5 29.5 56.0

2020 30.s 30.5 61.0

2019 67.0 24.0 91.0

20L8 47.5 7.0 54.5

Professional
American lnstitute of Certified Public Accountants
New York State Society of Certified Public Accountants, Public Schools Accounting Committee
Govern ment Fi na nce Officers' Association, Advisory Com m ittee, WNY Cha pter
New York State Association of Counties
Western New York Association of School Business Officials
lnstitute of lnternal Auditors
Buffalo Business First,40 Under40, Honoree 2015, Judge 2Ot7 * present
Passed Series 7 and 66 securities exam - Financial Advisor*

Community
Erie County SPCA, Board Treasurer, past Board President
Cradle Beach Camp, lnc., Board Member
Buffalo-Erie Marathon Association, lnc., Board Treasurer

Representative Clients Served
County of Clinton, New York
Town of Cambria, New York
Town of Clarence, New York
Town of Lockport, New York

*Soro Doyton is a finoncial odvisor/registered representotive olfering
securlties thtough Avantox lnvestment Services SM, Member FINRA, SIPC

ond investment odvisory services thtough Avontax Advisory Services SM.

Professional Accounting and Auditing Services Proposal for the City of Lockport
Submitted by Lumsden McCormick

72



PARTNER, SUPERVISORY, AND STAFF QUAL|F|CAT|ONS AND EXPERTENCE

twenty years experience in service to exempt organizations incl ng 'municipa
governments, school districts, other governmental entities, and nonprofit organizations. He has extensive
knowledge in auditing and reporting in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, maintaining and
exceeding all continuing professional education requirements. Seth is an expert in single audits in
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, having performed the New York State Single Audit for a number of
years while with another firm. Seth possesses the CGFM (Certified Government Finance Manager)
professional certifications from the Association of Government Accountants recognizing the unique skills
and special knowledge required of today's government financial managers. Seth will provide secondary
partner review of the audit engagement.

Education
State University of New York at Buffalo, Master of Science, Accounting
State University of New York at Buffalo, Bachelor of Science, Business Administration

Continuing Professional Education
Govt Other

2022 77.O 30.8
2021 31.0 20.5
2020 41.5 19.5
20L9 77.0 26.0
2018 35.0 19.0

Total
47.8
51.s
61.0

L03.0
54.0

Professional
American lnstitute of Certified Public Accountants
New York State Society of Certified Public Accountants

' Government Auditing and Accounting Committee
Association of Government Accountants
Government Finance Officers' Association

' Special Review Committee for the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting
Program

Healthcare Financial Management Association, WNY Chapter, Past President

Representative Clients Served
Town of Batavia, New York
Town of Bolivar, New York
Town of Evans, New York
Village of Bolivar, New York

Professional Accounting and Auditing Services Proposal for the City of Lockport
Submitted by Lumsden McCormick

13



PARTNER, SUPERVISORY, AND STAFF qUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE

Jeremy's responsibilities include managing fieldwork, guiding staffing, coordinating efforts with management,
risk analysis, and detail review of our procedures. He has over ten years of experience working with
municipalities, school districts, and other governmental entities by providing both external auditing services
and consulting assistance. Jeremy will serve as our key client liaison and manage fieldwork, client
expectations, and preparation and review of our deliverables. ln addition, he will assist with overall
management of the audit engagement and will provide direct supervision of the audit fieldwork team and
review of the audit documentation. Jeremy maintains the continuing professionaleducation requirements of
Gove r n me nt Aud iti ng Sto nda rds.

Education
St. Bonaventure University, Master of Business Administration, Accounting
St. Bonaventure University, Bachelor of Business Administration, Accounting
Ja mestown Commu n ity College, Associate, Business Ad m in istration

Continuing Professional Education
Govt Other

2022 25.5 L7.5
202L 30.5 10.0
2020 18.5 23.5
2019 9.0 31.5
20t8 13.0 29.0

Total
43.0
40.5
42.0
40.5
42.O

Professional
American lnstitute of Certified Public Accountants
New York State Society of Certified Public Accountants

Representative Clients Served
City of Lockport, New York
Town of Batavia, New York
Town of Evans, New York
Town of Stafford, New York

Professional Accounting and Auditing Services Proposal for the City of Lockport
Submitted by Lumsden McCormick

t4



SUMMARY OF SERVICES

Scope

We will audit the basic financial statements and supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and Government Auditing Stondards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, if applicable. As needed, we will also perform procedures under the
Uniform Guidance and issue a repoft on the City's compliance with federalfunds received.

We will also review estimates for claims under the City's Workers' Compensation Self-lnsurance Program and
self-funded Medical lnsurance Program. Should the City be required to comply with New York State's DOT Single
Audit, we will prepare the appropriate report.

Reporting Requirements
We will prepare the following reports:

' A repoft on the City's basic financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America

- The financial statements will include Management's Discussion and Analysis, notes to the financial
statements, and supplementary lnformation, and we will continue to assist the City with
preparation as needed

- lf necessary the financial statements will also include a schedule of expenditures of federal awards
that will be audited in accordance with the Uniform Guidance

' A report for the New York State Department of Transportation Single Audit, as necessary
' A report on internal control over financial reporting and on compliance and other matters based on an

audit of financial statements performed in accordance with 6oyern ment Auditing Stondards.

Management Letter and Report to Those Charged with Governance
At the conclusion of our audit, we will present the City Council with a management letter describing any
matters noted relative to internal control or other items we believe should be brought to the attention of
management including significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. Our management letters contain
constructive comments to enhance effectiveness and efficiencies. We will also present a separate
communication to those charged with governance informing the City Council of key issues as required by our
professional standards.

Annual Update Document
We will continue to assist with compiling and filing your Annual Update Document (AUD) and will continue
to adhere to the April 30th deadline. We already have experience using the new AUD software which will be
required for your December 31,2023 AUD submission.

Communication
Reports will be reviewed with City Administration to ensure accuracy and agreement of any findings or
recommendations. Reports and results of the audit will be presented to the City Council to discuss financial
activity and pertinent information.

Other Assistance

Consulting time is included in our fee estimate for non-routine matters that arise throughout the year.

Professional Accounting and Auditing Services Proposal for the City of Lockport
Submitted by Lumsden McCormick

15



SPECIFIC AUDIT APPROACH

Our audit plan will embrace the philosophy of risk-based auditing, This approach places great emphasis on
looking beyond the accounting entries to the underlying operations and substance which give rise to those
accounting transactions. We believe that for our audits to be truly effective, they must be specifically designed
to examine the unique characteristics and risks in relation to the governmental environment, the needs of
financial statements users, and your goals.

Our plan requires that we gain a thorough understanding of your operational and administrative environment.
It is essential that we recognize internal and external factors that impact the City. lt is this understanding and
recognition that allow us to assess risk and evaluate your internal control. With this background, we are
prepared to conduct an effective and efficient audit.

Providing our services timely and professionally requires careful planning of the critical phases of our work and
adherence to a pre-established time plan, Our services will be performed both before and after the end of your
fiscal year. At all phases, service will be managed and directed by your engagement team management. Our
partners are active working members of the engagement team.

Our summary plan and methodology for the performance of the audit is as follows.

Entrance Conference
lf our proposal is accepted, we will schedule an entrance conference with management to discuss the nature
and timing of our work and the anticipated coordination between our Firm and the individuals with whom
we will be working. Our staff arrive fully equipped with laptops, printers, portable scanners, and the
appropriate software to conduct the audit efficiently. Our software application needs are currently met
through ProSystem fx Engagement Manager (paperless software), Mlcrosoft Word and Excel applications,
and Adobe Acrobat. ln addition, we use DataSnipper data extraction software to enhance audit coverage
and efficiency.

We will require a copy of the budget and yourtrial balances as part of our preliminary analysis. We will continue
to perform some of our audit fieldwork remotely with management's agreement. We will continue to provide
you with a comprehensive audit needs list through Suralink, a software that provides real-time updates to
our information requests on a secure platform. This helps us organize and monitor all information requests
in one place to ensure our audit remains efficient and to minimize disruption to your staff. Before our initial
meeting, we will have held an internal brainstorming session to begin focusing on fraud risk.

ldentification of Anticipated Potential Audit Problems
Based on our cumulative knowledge of the City, we do not anticipate any significant matters or audit issues
at this time. We will continue to inform management of new accounting pronouncements as they are
released and are available to assist with their implementation, including implementation of GASB 96,
Subscription-Bosed lnformotion Technology Arrangements,for 2023. Our philosophy is to address reporting,
accounting, or auditing concerns in a timely manner. We believe clients do not like surprises; likewise, we
prefer to maintain open lines of communication throughout the year to deal with matters as quickly as they
arise.

Ongoing Consulting Services
Throughout our services, we will keep officials informed of pending changes in reporting and regulatory
requirements.

Professional Accounting and Auditing Services Proposal for the City of Lockport
Submitted by Lumsden McCormick

16



SPECIFIC AUDIT APPROACH

Audit Timeline
The following segments of the audit are expected to be performed as indicated below to meet your deadlines
outlined in the Request for Proposal. All phases will be performed by two or three senior and staff associates
with supervision and review by appropriate partners, principals, or managers.

Planning and internal control testing can be performed at an interim date to reduce the amount of fieldwork
necessary at year end. Timing of interim procedures would occur at mutually agreed-upon dates.

Planning Considerations (February)
ln planning our audit, consideration will be given to ceftain matters in addition to those ordinarily connected
with an audit of financial statements in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and Government Auditing Standards. Matters that we will consider in planning all components
of the audit will include the following:

' Preliminary assessment of audit risk.

' ldentifying, obtaining information, and documenting the risks of material misstatement due to fraud.
' Preliminary analytical procedures using ratios, account comparisons, predictive analyses, and review

of the budget.
. Materiality.
. Compliancerequirements,
' Single audit and State single audit assessment to determine whether these audits are required.
' Audit follow-up on findings and recommendations from previous audits.
' lnitial meeting with you to discuss audit scope and coverage and to address concerns or questions

you may have.

At this time, we will also provide your accounting personnel with examples of workpapers and analyses that
will be needed as part of our audit. This internal preparation is normal in an audit environment and should
be a regular part of year end closing procedures. Much of the documentation we request is prepared and
kept up to date routinely throughout the year by your staff. Planning considerations are reexamined and
adjusted throughout the audit process as needed.

Consideration of lnternal Control (March - April)
We will obtain an understanding of internal control sufficient to assess control risk. This includes obtaining
knowledge about internal control relevant to compliance with laws and regulations that have a direct and
indirect effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. We will use this knowledge to:

. ldentify types of potential misstatements.

' Document our understanding of internal control by use of written narratives and flow charts.
. Consider factors that affect the risk of material misstatements.
. Design our substantive audit tests.

' Obtaining background data on the nature of the control environment, including key staff members.
' Establishing permanent file documents such as the personnel and union contracts, lease agreements,

capital projects approvals, bond documents, etc.

Professional Accounting and Auditing Services Proposal for the City of Lockport
Submitted by Lumsden McCormick

t7



'I SPEClFIC AUDIT APPROACH

Reviewing, documenting, and annually updating our understanding of the system and control
procedures through inquiry, narratives, observation, walk-throughs, flow charts, and other means.

Assisting management with preparation of the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and
understanding what major programs exist, if necessary. Annually, we will confirm the level of federal
funding to ensure a single audit is still required.

Assisting management with the identification of applicable laws and regulations in order to assess them
for completeness.

Testing effectiveness of internal control forfinancial audit purposes - cash disbursements, cash receipts,
and payroll systems will be the focus. Other areas may be added as a result of our detailed planning
procedures.

Procedures necessary to assume submission of a timely and accurate AUD.

After completion of our planning phase and preliminary review assessment, we will hold a meeting with
management to summarize the results of our work to date and discuss potential risks associated with the
controls tested.

Year End and Financial Statements (May - June)
After the close of your year, we will be prepared to resume audit activity as soon as your trial balances and
internally prepared schedules are available. We will commence our final fieldwork and perform procedures to
examine specific account activity and balances, and apply our judgment and expertise to determine if it is

necessary to propose adjustments to balances. This is a crucial phase of our audit since any proposed
adjustment has the potential to alter expected results. The senior, more experienced members of our team
will be supervising this activity.

We will audit all major balance sheet accounts based on auditor-determined materiality levels. Typically, major
accounts tested include cash and investments, receivables, capital assets, payables, debt, payroll and benefits
(including ERS, PFRS, and OPEB), and property taxes. We will plan on having draft reports before July 30th each
year, Also, if an audit under Uniform Guidance is needed we will assure that our responsibilities are completed
before the September 30th deadline.

Exit Conference and Draft Reports (April - May)
We will conduct an exit conference with the appropriate officials to summarize the results of our fieldworl!
review significant findings, and to discuss drafts of the reports to be issued. Once all reports are final we will
present the financial statements and audit results to the City Council by May 10 each year, as stipulated in your
request for proposal.

Submission of Final Reports
We will deliver the following reports:

!. Financial Statements
2. Management Letter
3. Communication with those Charged with Governance
4. Single Audit Report, if needed
5. Data Collection Form, if needed
6. New York State Department of Transportation Single Audit, if needed

Professional Accounting and Auditing Services Proposal for the City of Lockport
Submitted by Lumsden McCormick

18



PROPOSED FEES

APPENDIX A: FEE SPECIFICATON SHEET FOR CITY OF LOCKPORT

Fee should be a flat annual rate and include all necessary expenses, including but not limited to: travel, clerical,
administrative and overhead, report filing, and attendance on site, follow up work, advice and counsel to staff
throughout term of contract.

2023 Assistance with AUD Filing, due 04/30
Estimated 16 to 24 hours
2023 Single Audit Fee and Audited Financials

2023 Rate for Additional Services:
Describe:

$2,750

$zg,zso FS; 532,250 includes Single Audit*
StsO/hour, blended rate

2024 Assistance with AUD Filing, due 04/30
2024 Single Audit Fee and Audited Financials

2024 Rate for Additional Services:

Describe:

5z,tso
$30,500 FS; $34,000 includes Single Audit*
S157/hour, blended rate

2025 Assistance with AUD Filing, due 04/30
2025 Single Audit Fee and Audited Financials

2025 Rate for Additional Services:

Describe:

$3,ooo
$32,300 FS; 536,300 includes Single Audit*
$165/hour, blended rate

OPTIONAL YEARS:

2026 Assistance with AUD Filing, due 04/30
2026 Single Audit Fee & Audited Financials

2026 Rate for AdditionalServices:
Describe:

S3,ooo

$3+,ooo FS; 538,000 includes Single Audit*
St73/hour, blended rate

2027 Assistance with AUD Filing, due 04/30
2027 Single Audit Fee and Audited Financials

2027 Rate for AdditionalServices:
Describe:

S3,ooo

535,700 Fs; 540,200 includes Single Audit*
$L82lhour, blended rate

Personnel Hou rs Standard Hourly Rate Tota l* *

Pa rtners 20 $ 400 $ 5,600

Principals/Managers 45 289 9,100

Su pervisors 82 198 11",400

Staff 80 r43 8,000

Other 20 63 900

*A single oudit assumes no more than two programs will be required to be tested as mojor programs.
Costs for odditionol mojor programs will be 52,000 per progrom.
**Amounts are colculoted using discounted hourly rates; total assumes single oudit ond AIJD ossistance.

Professional Accounting and Auditing Services Proposal for the City of Lockport
Submitted by Lumsden McCormick

19



REQUIRED FORMS
APPENDIX B: REQUIRED DISCLOSURE OF RELATIONSHIPS TO CITY

Prior to execution of a contract by the City, a potential City contractor must complete, sign and return
this form to the City.

Contract Name and/or lD No.: Accounting and Audit Services

Name of Contractor: Lumsden & McCormick, ILP
(To be filled in by Controctor)

A.)Related Employees:
Are any of the employees that you will use to carry out this contract with City of Lockport also an official,
officer, employee, or member of any board or commission of the City, or the spouse, domestic partner,
parent, mother-in-law, father-in-law, child, spouse of child, grandchild, brother, sister, orspouse or child
of a brother or sister of such City official, officer, employee, board or commission member?

Yes No XX lf yes, please provide details

B.) Related Owners, Officers and Directors:
Are any owners, officers, or directors of your firm also an official, officer, employee, or member of any
board or commission of the City of Lockpoft, or the spouse, domestic partner, parent, mother-in-law,
father-in-law, child, spouse of child, grandchild, brother, sister, or spouse or child of a brother or sister of
such City official, officer, employee, board or commission member?

Yes No XX lf yes, please provide details

C.) lnterest in Contract

To answer the following question, the definition of the word "interest" shall mean a direct or indirect
pecuniary or material benefit accruing to a City of Lockport official, officer, employee, or member of any
board or commission of the City, or the spouse, domestic partner, parent, mother-in-law, father-in-law,
child, spouse of child, grandchild, brother, sister, or spouse or child of a brother or sister of such City
official, officer, employee, board or commission member, whether as the result of a contract with the City
or otherwise.

For purposes of this question, a City of Lockport official, officer, employee, or member of any board or
commission shall be deemed to have an "interest" in a firm or a subcontractor of a firm when the City
official, officer, employee, board or commission member, or the spouse, domestic partner, parent,
mother-in-law, father-in-law, child, spouse of child, grandchild, brother, sister, or spouse or child of a

brother or sister of such City official, officer, employee, board or commission member:

o has a contract with the firm or a subcontractor of the firm; and/or,
o is an officer, director, member, or employee of the firm; andf or,
o is an officer, director, member, or employee of a subcontractor of the firm; and/or,
. owns more than five (5%) percent of the outstanding capital stock of the firm or a

subcontractor of the firm.

Professional Accounting and Auditing Services Proposal for the City of Lockport
Submitted by Lumsden McCormick

20



REQUIRED FORMS
APPENDIX B: REQUIRED DISCLOSURE OF RELATIONSHIPS TO CITY

Does any City official, officer, employee, board or commission member, or the spouse, domestic partner,
parent, mother-in-law, father-in-law, child, spouse of child, grandchild, brother, sister, or spouse or child
of a brother or sister of any City official, officer, employee, board or commission member have an interest
in the firm or in any subcontractor that will be used by the firm for this contract?

Yes_ No XX lf yes, please provide details

ffiril $A.WNI
Proposer Signatureu

Sara M. Dayton, CPA Partner

Printed Proposer Name and Title

Professional Accounting and Auditing Services Proposal for the City of Lockport
Submitted by Lumsden McCormick

2L



REQUIRED FORMS
APPENDIX C: REQUIRED DISCLOSURE OF CRIMINAL, ClVlL, OR DISCIPLINARY ACTTONS

Prior to execution of a contract by the City, a potential City contractor must complete, sign and
return this form to the City

Contract Name and/or lD No.: Accounting and Audit Services

Name of Contractor: Lumsden & McCormick, LLP

(To be filled in by Contractor)

Has your firm or any owner, officer, or director of your firm ever been found guilty or pleaded guilty, no
contest or nolo contendere to a felony or misdemeanor crime in any court?

Yes No XX lf yes, please provide details,

Has your firm or any owner, officer, or director of your firm ever been found guilty or pleaded guilty, no
contest or nolo contendere to any civil action in any court?

Yes No XX lf yes, please provide details.

Has any licensing or disciplinary authority ever refused to issue a license or ever revoked, annulled,
cancelled, accepted surrender of, suspended, placed on probation, refused to renew a professional
license or certificate, or ever fined, censured, reprimanded or otherwise disciplined your firm or any
owner, officer, or director of your firm?

No XX lf yes, please provide details.

Are any criminal or civil charges or disciplinary actions pending against your firm, or any owner, officer
or director of your firm at this time?

Yes _ No XX lf yes, please provide details.

n4M
Proposer Signature

Sara M. Dayton, CPA

Printed Proposer Name and Title

August IO,2023

Yes

Date

22Professional Accounting and Auditing Services Proposal for the City of Lockport
Submitted by Lumsden McCormick



REQUIRED FORMS
APPENDIX D: NON COLLUSION STATEMENT GENERAL MUNICIPAL LAW SECTION 103-d

By submission of this proposal, each Vendor and each person signing on behalf of any Vendor, certifies, and
in the case of a joint proposal, each party thereto certifies as to its own organization, under penalty of perjury,
that to the best of his knowledge and belief:

1) The prices in this proposal have been arrived at independently without collusion,
consultation, communications oral agreement, for the purpose of restricting competition, as to any
matter relating to such prices with any other Vendor or with any competitor;

2l Unless otherwise required by law, the prices which have been quoted in this proposal have
not been knowingly disclosed by the Vendor and will not knowingly be disclosed by the Vendor prior to
opening, directly or indirectly, to any other Vendor or to any competitor; and

3) No attempt has been made or will be made by the Vendor to induce any other person,
partnership or corporation to submit or not to submit a proposal for the purpose of restricting
competition.

Lumsden & McCormick, LLP ffin rvt.va#{n
FIRM

Sara M. Dayton, CPA

BY

August 70,2023

PRINTED NAME DATE

Professional Accounting and Auditing Services Proposal for the City of Lockport
Submitted by Lumsden McCormick

23



,

ls

RECEIVED

AU? 1 6 2A23

crTy crenr< orplci

o/

/adh

fu//.'zm,24 b/t J hat<
d,tu#

fiJ/tzs-

2-tt ylcgtnrQ
LtWLptA xrU' \,{Jqq

'114

I - ?LLY



Milhrd Fiknore Stbtnban Hospital
t540 Maple Road

lMlliamsville, Ny 142?1
{716) 568€600

R€CF/
t,€o

ctrY
Aue

a6nrr

7 6 ?023

ofivr,s
&ergenc;i,Ileparhenf
Discharge Intnctioxs

Nam CIfl{.}I(KSILYH
MH 100002?665

PatFnt l{ane Ctf,tt( KEtLy H
FN*79807142

rxrBvt?3/tlws
AccH7980142

Dde/IIne ATDU?320.52:M

Ylbit Detefihs : i8fl ILEIS-,17€Br14

Iliagnosis: FaIl

PCP: No Primary &rsicirn

ED hrovrw*n EILICS,MICHAALA" MI'
Infinctions pped ty: GIIAFFARI, KEVIN A MD

l(ahida Health rroutd fike to " ^nk you for allowing us to asslstyou rvith you hatthcrrc nee&,

Ittu IMFORTAI\ITto see youTDOCTOR oTPRIMARYCAREPROVIIIER, F,mergency Care my
be incoryilete wifuut poper ftllo*r4r lfyou become solse in ary uay, ft fo foryortril tratyou callyowdoctor, ortrtuuto &c Erergeney DeparhenL Pleese rcrncmberto take ftese instnctbre toyownert docbds appolntnet,

Follon uplnstrwtbnsI

YITAIA INF1ORMATION

1 sl1?
IlnN 1$m22665



18 BR/min18 BR/mtulRespiratoryRate

117 rnnHg
rnnllg

117 rmollg
ffO mt}Ig

Blood Pressue

6.8 degC36.8 degCTenperahre
Oral

Tenperatme
Rectal

Terryeratne
Aflary
Tenperature
Terryoral

Tenperature
Ir{ravascular

95 kg95 kgS/eiglrt

hrlse Rate, 81 bpm I bpm

lVith: Ad&ess: Vlhen:

PCP UNKNOWN 77177"

Comments:
You were seen in tlre errergency deparfinetr aftr a frll X-rays, CT scan were

perbrmed withod any concerningerdiry. Anexaminationwas perfrrnred without any

corcemingffiings. Consilerirythb itb approprbte foryouto be disclralged hooe.
pbase coffinrrc bking Tybnolat brne as needed for aqy ongoingpain Retumto the

errergency depar@dl ifpu barre stlnifuant worsenilg ofyor.n painto ttre poirn where

youcamot waIc, develop sigpificarf difficr:tybreathing or ifyoudevelop any otlrer

concemi4signs or Errytomto You

Medication Info rmation:
Attergytrnfu

IVP Dye

hrmunizations:

Norrc gi\enthis visit
Fatbnt t'lane CttOl.il( KE-LY tl
Fht# 7980714?

2ol 12

unN 1000022665



rrlf









{
,.'i " r
i'ti.

,r '.1, 
.





RECEIVED

AUG 1 87473

IN THE MATTER OF THE CLAIM OF
BARBARA BORKOWSKI AND KAZ BORKOWSKI, CITY CLERK OFFICE

Claimants,

-vs-

NOTICE OF CLAIM
AND INTENTION TO SUE

THE CIry OF LOCKPORT, NEW YORK,

Defendants.

TO: THE CITY OF LOCKPORT, NEWYORK

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE, that, BARBARA BORKOWSKI and KM

BORKWOSIC/, pursuant to the statute in such cases made and provided, do hereby

make claim againstTHE CITYOF LOCKPORT, NEWYORK, and in support of such claim

do state the following:

1. The Claimants, BARBARA BORKOWSKI and KAZ BORKOWSK/, reside
at917 Hillside Drive Lewiston, NewYork 14092.

2. The Claimants are represented by IAW OFFICES OF JEFFREY E.

MARloN, JEFFREY E. MARloN, Eso., of counsel,5839 Main Street, Suite 104

Williamsville, New York 1 4221.

3. This claim is one for money damages on behalf of the Claimant,

BARBARA BORKOWSKI and KAZ BORKOWSKI, for injuries BARBARA BORKOWSKI

received as a result of a boat owned, operated, maintained, and supervised by THE



CITY OF LOCKPORT, NEW YORK capsizing in the Lockport Caves. Additionally,

Claimant KAZ BORKOWSKI makes this Claim for money damages due to the loss of

consortium and services of his spouse BARBARA BORKOWSKI. The crash that is the

subject of this claim occurred on June 12,2023 at the Lockport Cave and Underground

Boat Ride in the City of Lockport, County of Niagara, state of New york.

4. That a substantial factor in causing the aforesaid incident was

negligent operation, maintenance, and supervision, and entrustment of the boat that

capsized by THE Clry OF LOCKPORT, NEWYORK, and that the CITY OF LOCKPORT,

NEWYORK had actual, written notice of the dangerous condition of the boat.

5. Notice is hereby given that in the event that this claim for money

damages is not paid within thirty (30) days of the service herein, it is my intention to

commence litigation to recover for the damages which have been sustained.

DATED: August 14,2021

h L. I

t6rn& r. rvrnnroN, ESo.



VERIFICATION

STATEOFNEWYORK )
COLINTY OF EzuE ) ss.

BARBARA BORKOWSKI, being duly sworn, deposes and says:

I am the Claimant in this matter. I have read the foregoing NOTICE OF CLAIM and know thecontents thereof' The same are true to my knowledge] exiept as to matters therein stated to bealleged on information and belief and as to those -ui.i, I believe them to be true. To the best offily knowledge, information and belie4 formed after an inquiry reasonable under the
giryurytances, the presentation of these papers or the contentions therein are not frivolous asdefined in subsection (c) of section 130-1.i of the Rules of the chief Administrator (22 NycRR).

S.worn to before me this
15uV of /h.rccrs.r- ,202?

Public

^r,^'T5ffif;Hf;F-QUALIFIED II

,rrrr;",3#f;',3m$.%*



VERIFICATION

STATE OFNEWYORK )
COLTNTY OF ERIE ) ss.:

KAZ BORKOWSKI, being duly sworn, deposes and says:

I am the claimant in this matter. I have read the foregoing NOTICE oF CLAIM and know thecontents thereof' The same are true to my knowledgi ..*0, as to matters therein stated to bealleged on information and belief and as to those *ui"i, I believe them to be true. To the best ofm! knowledge, information and belief, formed after an inquiry reasonable under the
:it:"n:F ce1, the presentation of these papers or the contentions therein are not frivolous asdefined in subsection (c) of section 130-1.i oltrt. Rules of the chiefAdministrator (22 NycRR).

Kaz Borkowski

Wo* to before me this
tday of 1trr.rourr ,2023

Public

JEFFREY E, MARiON

NOTARY PUBLIC . _,
ouALiFlEb lN ERIE cg!ryrY*-dinru ot513grtilldrop

MY COMMISSION E}



RECEIVED

AIJG 1 62023

OTY CLERK OFFICE

SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK
COUNTy 9p ERIE

DANIEL WARMUS
d/b/a AUDITING ERIE COUNTY

Plaintiff/Petitioner
- against -

CITY OF LOCKPORT
lndex No.81019012023

DefendanURespondent.

NOTICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING
(Gonsensual Gase)

(Uniform Rule g 202.5-b)

You have received this Notice because:

1) The Plaintiff/Petitioner, whose name is listed above, has filed this case using the
New York State Courts E-filing system ('NYSCEF"), and

2) You are a DefendanVRespondent (a party) in this case.

o lf vou are reoresented bv an attornev:
G ive this Notice to your attorney. (Attornevs: see "lnformation for Attorneys" pg. 2).

o lf vou are not reoresented bv an attornev:
You will be served with all documents in paper and you must serye and file your
documents in paper, unless you choose to participate in e-filing.

lf you choose to participate in e-filing, you must have access to a computer and a
scanner or other device to convert documents into electronic format, a connection
to the internet, and an e-mail address to receive service of documents.

The benefits of participating in e-filing include:

r serving and filing your documents electronically

o free access to view and print your e-filed documents

o limiting your number of trips to the courthouse

o paying any court fees on-line (credit card needed)

To register for e-filing or for more information about how e-filing works:

o visit: http://www.nycourts.gov/efile-unreoresented or
r contact the Clerk's Office or Help Center at the court where the case was filed. Court

contact information can be found at www.nycourts.qov

Page 1 of 2 EF-3



To find legal information to help you represent yourself visit www.nvcourthelp.qov

lnformation for Attorneys

An attorney representing a party who is served with this notice must either consent or
decline consent to electronic filing and service through NYSCEF for this case.

Attorneys registered with NYSCEF may record their consent electronically in the manner
provided at the NYSCEF site. Attorneys not registered with NYSCEF but intending to
participate in e-filing must first create a NYSCEF account and obtain a user lD bnd
password prior to recording their consent by going to www.nvcou rts.qov/efile

Attorneys declining to consent must file with the court and serve on all parties of record a
declination of consent.

For additional information about electronic filing and to create a NYSCEF account, visit the
NYSCEF website at www"nvcourts.gov/efile or contact the NYSCEF Resource Center
(phone: 646-386-3033; e-mail: nyscef@nycourts.gov).

Dated: 0811712023

BRITTANYLEE PENBERTHY, ESQ.
Name

PENBERTHY LAW GROUP LLP

Firm Name

To: CITY OF LOCKPORT

ONE LOCKPORT PLAZA

LOCKPORT, NY 14094

227 NIAGARA STREET
Address

BUFFALO, NEW YORK 14201

716-803-8402
Phone

bpenbe epenlawgrou .com
a

616118

lndex # Page 2 of2 EF-3



2

3

4

5

NYSCEF Confirmation Notice
Erie County Supreme Court
The NYSCEF website has received an electronic filing on o8l1ol2o2g 07:02 pM. please keep this notice
as a confirmation of this filing.

810190/2023
DANIEL WARMUS v. CITY OF LOCKPORT

Assigned Judge: Amy Martoche

Documents Received on OB1LOIZOZS O7l.O2 pM

Doc # Document Type
1 PETITION

NOTICE OF PETITION ACCOMPANYING COMMENCEMENT DOC(S)

EXHIBIT(S) A

EXHIBIT(S) B

EXHTBTT(S) C

EXHIBIT(S) D

RJI -RE: NOTICE OF PETITION

Filing User

Brittany Lee Penberthy I bpenberthy@thepenlawgroup.com
227 Niagara St, Buffalo, NY 14201

E-mail Notifications
An email regarding this filing has been sent to the following on 08/10/20 23 07:02 pM

BRITTANY L. PENBERTHY - bpenberthy@thepenlawgroup.com

6

7

Michael P. Kearns, Erie County Clerk
Website : http://www.erie. gov/clerk

NYSCEF Resource Center, nyscef@nycourts.gov
Phone: (646) 386-3033 | Fax: (2L2) 4OL-9146 | Website: www,nycourts,gov/efile

Page 1 of 2



NYSCEF Confirmation Notice
Erie County Supreme Court

810190/2023
DANIEL WARMUS v. CITY OF LOCKPORT

Assigned Judge: Amy Maftoche

Role
Respondent

Pafty
CITY OF LOCKPORT

Attorney
No consent on record

* Court rules require hard copy service upon non-participating parties and attorneys who have opted-out or declined
consent.

Mlchael P. Kearns, Erie County Clerk
Website : http://www.erie. gov/clerk

NYSCEF Resource Center, nyscef@nycourts.gov
Phone: (646) 386-3033 | Fax: (2L2) 40L-9146 | website: www.nycourts,gov/efile

Page2 of 2



scEF DOC. NO. 1

rNDEX NO. 8t0I90/2023
RECEIVED NYSCEFT 08/IQ/2023

-t.t

RECE'I 'FJTHE STATE OF NEW YORK
SUPREME COURT: COUNTY OF ERIE

DANIEL WARMUS
d/b/a AUDITING ERIE COUNTY,

Petitioner,

v.

CITY OF LOCKPORT,

Respondent.

CITY CLERIi ,,'i-;CE

AUG t't r;t'v t1.,

h.,

ARTICLE 78
VERIr'!ED PETITION

Index No.:

l$''
t$t
Efl}"

ffi
*tr,'

[-.

ffi

Brittanylee Penberthy, Esq., an atiorney licensed to practice law in the State ofNew York,

being duly sworn, deposes and says:

l. I am attorney for Petitioner, DAI{IEL WARMUS dftla AUDITINO ERIE

COUNry, (hereinafter "Auditing Erie County") in the above captioned matter. As such, I am

familiar with the facts and circumstsnces in this action as set forth in ttris motion.

2. This Verified Petition is submitted in support of thc petition forjudgment granting

immediate access to documents requested prusuant to New York's Freedom of Information Law

(hereinaffer nfOIL"), and such other and further relief as this Court may deem just and proper.

sorlRcE or JURIsprcTroN

3. This Court may conduot "special proceedings" pursuant to Article ?8 of Now

York's Civil Practice Law and Rules. Sea CPLR $$ 7S0l-7806. Petitioner seeks review of

Respondent's determinations on its FOIL petition, pursuant to cpLR g zg03(3).

4, Respondent is a "body" subject to judicial review pursuant to Article ?8 of New

York's Civil Practice Law and Rules. ,See CPLR g 7S02(a).

rglw
8Fh'

1of6



NYSCEF DOC. NO. J.

INDEX NO. 81,0t90/2023

RECEIVED NYSCEF:. 08/I0/2023

16,:"
b'
h"
tr,

H,;
ry.
ltr,
h*
!

5. The instant matter is venued within the 8th Judicial District, pu$uant to CpLR $

506.

FACTS COMMON TO ALL CLAIMS

6. Petitioner, DAIIIEL WARMUS d/b/a ALJDITING ERIE COUNTY, on or abour

Febnrary 15,2023, duly submitted a FOIL request to Responden! requesting dooumentation and

police reports (including body camera footage) relevant to incident/police #BL-01900-23.

Attached hereto a made a part hcreof as Exhibit A is the subject request.

7. The information requested by Paitioner, DANIEL WARMUS d/b/a AUDITING

ERIE COUNTY, related to an incident that occurred on February 12,2A23 betwEen Petitioner

DAI'IIEL WARMUS d/b/a AUDITING ERIE COUNTY and Lockport Police Deparhnent, thus

there is no privacy concem's on Petitioneros ovy'n incident.

8. On or about March 20,2023,Respondent denied Petitioner's request for the subject

documentation, improperly indicating an investigation was pending that precluded any release of

reques'tcd material. Attached hereto a made aputhereof as Exhibit B is the denial of March 20,

2023.

9. Petitioner thereafter appealed the denial on or about March 23, 2023. Attached

hereto a made a part hereof as Exhibit C is the appeal denial of Marcb 23,2023.

10. Thereafter, Petitionet received a letter from Respondent dated April 16,2A23

indicating that his appeal had been denie4 citing thatttre records complied are for law enforcement

pqposes any may be used in a pending investigntion. Attaphed hereto and made a paft hereof as

Exhibit D is the denial dated April 16,2023.

tl. Upon inforrration and belief, there is no legitimately'lending investigation" that

would preclude release of the requeskd records.

hr'
4d:
h'r:

ffi'
l*r'

"1

|l*
Str.,
ldh.s..

ffi
#:
#P.

2of6



scEF DOC. NO. 1

rNDEX NO. 8L0L90/2023

RECEIVED NYSCEF. 08 / l0/2023

12. Respondents have failed to indicate how the records at issue would impede any

purport€d investigation, if one in fact cxists.

suMM+RY OF RESPONDEI{T'S ERRORSI

13. Respondent erred when it intentionally failed to provide documents and release the

same absent any proper media duly requested pursuant to New York's FOIL. Respondent was

obligatcd, ataminimum, to make a search forresponsive documents and rpleasc the sane absent

any prior legal exemptions applied prior to surnmarily denying Petitioner's valid FOIL r€quesl

14. With the recentrcpeal of Civil Rights Law 50-4 the Legislature has now eliminated

the prior confidentiality privileges ttrat once applied to police personnel records. There was no

valid reason for Respondent to deny Petitioner access to the requested docunents.

15. Therc was no valid rcason to deny access to public documents nor body cam of two

officers while they were on duty.

ARGUMENT

16. The Freedom of Infonnation Law, codified at Public Officers Law $$ S4-90,

expresses New York's s0ong commifrpnt to opcn govcmment and public accountability and

imposes a broad standard of disclosure upon the Starc and its agencies. Capital Newspapers v.

Burnsn 67 N.Y. 2d 562,565 (1986). FOIL affords all citizens ths means to obtain information

concenring the day-to-day firnctioning of State and local government, thus providing the electorate

with suffcient information to rnake intelligent, informed choices with respect to both thc direction

and scope of govcmmental activities. I4 at 565-66. FOIL is also an effectivc tool for cxposing

waste, negligencg and abuse on the part of govemment officers. Id. at j66.

17. FOIL provides that all records of a public agency arc presumptivoly open to public

inspection and copying unless othenrise specifically exempted.Id at 566. Excnrptions are to be

I

il#
&
&"

#i

ffi

ffi
{ilF
{r.+. J

l:

I

idi',

ffi 3of6



E
NYSCEF DOC. NO. 1

INDEX NO. 810790/2023

RECEIVED NYSCEF. 08/L0/2023

@
tr*{ffi*
{HF*re'x"#w
dh

namowly construed to provide maximurn access, and the agency seeking to prevent disclosure

carries the burden ol'demonstrating that the requested material falls squarely within a FOIL

exemption by articulating a particularized and specific justification f'or denying access. Id-

18. On denial of s FOIL, apetition to challenge said denial of access under Article ZB

of the Civil Practice Law and Rules may be made.

19. ln the matter at hand, Respondent utterly failed to provide media responsive to

Petiti.oner's duly served FOIL request.

20, Petitioner has good faith kncwledge and information as to the existence of the

requested information and communications.

2l' Petitioner respecf{ully requests that this Court issue an Order compelling

Respondent to immediately producs unredac.ted documents and any media responsive to

Petitioner's FOIL requests.

22. Lastly, as Respondent had no reasouable basis for denial of Petitioner's FOIL

requesi, pursuant to Public Officers Law $89(4)(c), Fetitioner seeks attorneys' fees aud litigation

costs relative to the instant action.

IVHEREFOI{E Petitioner respectfully requests that this Court issue a judgrnenr granring

Petitioner immediate access any rnedia responsive to his FOIL request; granting costs and

reasonable attomey's fees to cover expenses incurred in this proceeding; and such other and fudher

relief as this Court may deern just and proper.

Daled: August 10,2A23
Buffalo, New York

UP LLP

tl

1t,,

w
ffi"ffi"

ffiu,w
W,

By:

, Esq.
Attorney for Petitioner
227 Niagara Street
Buffhlo, New York rcz}l
Telephone: (716) 803.8402

4of6



a

NYSCEF DOC. NO. 1

INDEX NO. 8I0L90./2023

RECEIVED NYSCEF. 08/ t0/2023

TO: City of Lockport
Lockport Municpal Building
Ono Lncks Plaza
Lookporq NY 14094

5of6



NYSCEF DOC. NO. 1

rNDEX NO. 8t0t90/2023
RECEIVED NYSCEI'. 08/I0/2023

VERIFICATION

STATE OF NEW YORK

COI.JNTY OF ERIE

DANIEL WARMUS d/b/a AUDITING ERIE COLJNTY, being duly sworn, deposes and

says that he is the petitioner in this action; that he tus r€ad the foregoing VERIFIED PETITION and

knows the contents thereof; ttnt the same is tue to the knowlodge of deponen! except as to those

matbrs thercin stated to be alleged upon information and belie{, and tlrat as to those matters, she

believes itto be tue.

WARMUS
Swomto before me this

ss.
)
)
)

M^, of u/llrr,/ 2023
0-

gRITTAIIY IEE PE}IBERTHY
r'rfflnYruluo,ETAIEoFl{EtlYoRl( -dhurED[lERlEco,llrY n(
!ff o0ilRhhl Adt6Aseld 2{, 4.i9

6of6



NYSCET DOC. NO. 2

INDEX NO. 8t0r90/2023
RECEIVED NYSCEF:. 08/70/2023

).
b
0t

!r
Yli

I
{

h
ffi
ffi"
i

h

ffi
b;
Hh

THE STATE OF NEW YORK
SLJPREME COURT : COLJNTY OF ERIE

DAI.IIEL WARMUS
d/b/a AUDITING ERIE COUNTY,

RECEIVED

AUG 1 fi2023

CITY CLERK OFFICEIt..
1.,

t,

lr

t'

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that, upon the annexed Verified Petition, and exhibits attached thercto,
d*ed August 10,2023 an applic*ion will be fled in Supreme Court County of Niagara, State oi
Ncw Yorlq before Hon. .. , pari located at

Petitioner,

NOTICE OF PETITION

v

CITY OF LOCKPORT,

Respondent.
IndexNo.:

on or about ,2023 at_ am/pm, or soon thereafter as
counsel may be hear4 for a judgement pursuant to Article 78 of Civil Practice Law and Rules
CtPLFf) urd the Frcedom of Information Law ("FOIL'), holding that Rcspondent has failed to

lffi*-a duty eaigine{ Jpon the,m by and in an arbinary and capricious manner; directing
Relnodent to comply with their duty under FOIL to provide the information sought by petitionJ
in Petitioner's Febnrary_15,2023 roques{ awaxdfu€ reasonable attorney's fees ana costs pursuant
to New York Public Officers Law $ 89; and granting other relief the Court deems just and propcr.

PLEASE TAKE FURTI{ER NOTICE that, prusuant to C.P.L.R $ 7804 answering pap€rs, if any,
shall be received by the undersignedat leastfive (5) days bcforethiretrn date, andthebetitioneris
reply strall be scnyed at least one (l) day before the return date.

Dated: August 10,2023
Buffalo, New York Bv: stsriuanvlee Penberthv

Brittany Penberthy, Esq.
Attornoy for Petitioner
227 Niagara Steet
Bu{Ta,lo, New York 14201
Telephone (71 6) 803.8402

TO: City oflockport
Lockport Municipal Building
One Locks Plaza
Lockport, New York 14094

lofL



NYSCEF DOC. NO. 3

rNDEX NO. 8IOL90/2023

RECEIVED NYSCEF | 08/10/2023
I

ExhibitA



rNDEX NO. 810L90/2023

RECEIVED NYSCEF z 08/ l0 /2023NyscEF DOC. NO. 3

APPLICATIO}I FOR PUBUC ACCEgS TO RECORhI.

TO: RECOROS AccEss OFFIGER
CffY OF LOCKPORT
LOCKPORT. NY

I HEREBY APPLY TO

atntl o

MAIL ADDRESS

TTIE

{

RECORD:

t
lPn*a Pn"

f
.t[

o

-o0 I ao-a
DATE

3

Nr APPROVEO

DETEN F1OR REASON {gI CHECTED BEKtr
o G0NFIDENT|AL Dt$cLosuRE tr pARToF ttr{\tEsncAToRyFttEs

o UIIWARRANTEDINVASONOFpERSOItAtpRtVACy

D RECORO OF WHICH TTIIS AGXNCY IS I.FGAL CUSTODNN QAT.INOT BE FOUND

o RECORD F NOT MA|NTAT.|ED gy tHts AgENCy

o E,(EUPTEO EY$TATUTE 0TFIERIT{AN rHE FREEDoMoF INFoRMATpT.I AcT
o OIItER(6p.dn

RECEIVED

rEB 15t08

CITY CLERK OFFICE

StcurruFE rmE DATE

IIIOIEE: YqJ HAVE A RI9HT TO APPEAL A DEilI,It oF ntls ATPLFATpI{ To ntr HEAD of TTIFAGEilCV.

ilA,f,E AMRESS

WHOTTT'TFUITY EXPLAN HF REAFOI{E FORSUCII DETSATNWruTO'g IIFI'EI{ OAY1$ OFRECEuITOFAil APPEAL

IHENEBYAIPE/[I.:

qlilOs



NYSCEF DOC. NO. 4

rNDEX NO. 810190/2023

RECEIVED NYSCEF:. 08/10/2023

Exhibit B



rNDEX NO. 810t90/2023
NYSCEF DOC. NO. 4

CITY OF LbCriOONr, NEW YORK 
RECETVED NYSCEF Z O8/IO/2Q23

LOCKPORT MUNICIPAL BUILDINC
ONE LOCKS PLAZA

LOCKPORT, NY 14094

OFrICE OF CITY CLERK
Serah K l,anzo, Clty Cl€rk Offlcc (716) {39-6676

Far(715) {0l9{it02

March 20,2023

Daniel J. Warmus
4243 Abbot Road
Orchard Park, NY l4t2?
Aqditin geriqcouqty@,emai l. com

Dr. Mr. Warmus;

This letter is being sent to you in r€sponse to your FOIL request submitted to the City of
Lockport on Febnrary 15,2023. You requested police reports and documentation (including
body carnera footage) for IncidentPolice # BL-01900-23.

It has been determined that the records that you requested are not required to be made available
as the requested records are compiled for law enforcement purposes and may be rslative to a
pending law enforcement investigation.

You have 30 days from receipt of denial of access to records to appeal.

Thank you,

Sincerely,

SarafrK tatao

Sarah K. Lanzo
City Clerk



INDEX NO. 810190/2023

RECEIVED NYSCEF .. 08 / LO / 2023NYSCEF DOC. NO. 5

Exhibit C



NYSCEdDOC. NO. 5

{Ar, ;s a, o.ff'ea

' ry', 7/ tf/]2. n &4 "llL"
.,,..tggp', 'l[a R.q*st L',q!

"(u^p;leo\ $. hu enforcr* erl p, i pot, s" and il "flAY " b. Rel,lr..rc Jo

ls C o( L.xp.|i fuo,nl of R bl,c fr.uoods tS ,tot Lcr.l$*l &odtt

' ni fil kpu,"t ff#""ilT;"'ii1i;i1,3tr'
Rrq'nrsY is 6Blo,, o{ {he 6oflo* '( J',n*

D" n ie I 3l"J ,dr[. t'h *} i ] Ln/as f'nlo'nolto,

l"]
INDEX NO. 810190/2023

ar

5

o^. prArng t.*,s e qforuw*l Tnve>l;qolr"n,

, 
*Ja5ftr,.[]' ,puilr,c 

frcco,d*, r],, ,1f, Trn"l"t^^{ Luho lh" fr,u'c F,ron}t

, Also Sh{rl ?ie Reco,r}.* W(. fcq*sl,l j/ttOY" te 5qb5J *o,* l.,ooJ Epfo,*.*a

Tnwsl;u,Xl;a,t , The l4ott 5|"lzl io {Jro':"0}fi lel ft1o,,n di* nol neut hh'e

irbl;; R i".o, 'r6rd fo,.l "{ a iqvrsl rga4ret 'l

)<.

^
pcol

0r
43 a. LnJarnryl^ "o'aq
Dc:o;al oI lr; pvbi,Lic

€) Itcsol'l in a A'l,col 7tPTNETRTHY
Lnw GnoUP LLP

Bdttarulso Penbor0ty, Esq.

. Putnq
r2?Nhgam$t . Buftab, NY . 14201

r 716,8$$1100 Err 2 c 71p.9$9.1922 F 716.408.0308
G bponbrthy@th€p$he,gt€r.lp.com

w thepsnlo$Oroup.com

Cen*' Aol;ons, All.ahal flow

fnU All.'ny
t. t*t froas bhd

t $ yo't lln", ctn ffrvre

3

RECEIVED
RECQRDS' :

ilAn 23 ?llts

CITY CTEHK OFFICE

APPLICATION FOR FUBLIC ACCESS TO

TO: RECORDSACCESS:OFF|CER
ctwoF tocKPORT
LOCKPORT, NY

APPLY TO INSFECT TTIE RECORD:

*

atl o { Pt4 ^d PN

o

3

tr on

Oo-



NYSCEF DOC. NO. 5

rNDEX NO. 8L01"90/2023

RECEIVED NYSCET' | 08/10/2023

Exhibit I)



NYSCEF DOC. NO. 5

rNDEX NO. 8L0L90/2023

RECEIVED NYSCEF. 08/L0/2023

{Departmesrt af &fiat
Le*r*'*, Mx$ftdll Benedicb Corpar*tiofi Ceuwel

,lasi,r,n,l " t'*forett* Deputy t*uxvet
Pulrtri* l,l. N&rath lleputy Coune*l

Loekpart Municipol Suilding
One Loeks Plsar
t.ockport. Her* Yc* 140f4
Fh*nc (716)439-6670

Apdl 16,?0?3

DanielJ, Warm*s
4243 Abbott Road
Orchard Park, ftV Wl27

RE; FCIL Roquect Denhl Appert

Dsar Mr. Wannus:

Plen$s be advised that the undersig*ed is thc FOIL apo*ls officer for ttre Ciry *f
Lackport" I hre reviewed your Appeal of the City Clerk'* Denisl of your FOIL Kequest. Ths
satne is hercby denied. 'l'hc recolds compiled are for l*x esfsrcement purposeq and upon
speaking with the Chief cf Police. I wss notified that the rccorde mey be uritizsd for a pending
lew oforwmetrt investigation,

Yo*rs sincerelg

lm*"C ffiatKAe&r

Iaura A. Misksll Bsadict

Cc Lcckport City Clerk
fockport Chief af Folioe



NYSCEF DOC. NO. 6 L
rNDEx NO. 810190/2023

RECEIVED NYSCEF: 08/ t0/2023
Buildlrlg

ot{E Lctct(s PtAz
LOC|(pOST, tGW YOFK t {004

Lockport Munlclpt Bultdlng
ONE LOCI(SPTAZA

l.ocKPofi r€yrYoff( 14094

StJFFA|-{) t-tY 1"rS

18 AFR aO23 Fn 2

tI$posTAGEsF{r€t'F4Ee

UEHE
Vw
3r lio* I m0,600
0000373066APR 17 aO23

ug PCNITA0E$F.+.E\, qtr€s

ffi-1/@

;'f ;i*o $ {x}0.800
0000373086rPR r? ?o23

Dani€l J. Warmrs
4243 Abbott Road
OrghadPart,l{Y l4l?7

i*ig"i$atrs ffi lli"t,lrl,frt $iry{i\tl,yJllhrJslll{,,4UiI'l$

trafUol.f. tbII)Lth
.ffii-iiw+Y Kd
ff*r,d fal\ NY l+l z?

14t22-?''/.7343 r,/fllllllf plllll,llf 
f 
llsf ,l,llrrf lf \lrfllllill'f th{',f l'l



D
NYSCEF DOC. NO. 7

INDEX NO. 810190 /2023
RECEIVED NYSCEFl. 08/ l0/ 2023

ucs-840
(rcv.0210112022)

lndex No

REQUEST FOR JUDtCtAL TNTERVENTTON

Supreme COURT, COUNry OF Erie

Date lndex lssued

DANIEL WARMUS DBA AUDITING ERIE COUNTY

CITY OF LOCKPORT

fl contested

NOTET lf there are children under the age of 18, complete and attach the
MATRTMONTAL Rlt Addendum (UCS-&AOM).

For Uncontested Matrimonial actions, use the IJncontested Divorce RJt (UD-13).

n
!
!
n
!

Business Entity (includes corporations, partnerships, LLCS, LLps, etc.)
Contract

lnsurance (where insurance company is a party, except arbitration)
UCC (includes sales and negotiabte instruments)

NOTET For Commercial Division assignment requests pursuant to 22 NrCRR 202.70(d),
complete and attach the coMMERctAL Dtvtstou Rlt ADDENDttM (UCS-& OC).

Other Commercial (speclfy)

! Condemnation

! Mortgage Foreclosure (specify)t ! Residential

NOT& For Mortgage Foreclosure actions involving a one to four-family, owner-
occupied residential property or owner-occupied condominium, complete and
attach the FoREcLosuRE Rtt ADDENDUM (UCS-84OF).

D Partition

NOTE: Complete and attach the pARTtTtON Rlt ADDENDUM (UCS-84O|),

! Tax Certiorari (specify): Section: Block: Lot:

D Tax Foreclosure

Property Address:

fl Commerciat

fJ Otner Real Property (specify):

! l4otorVehicle

! Products Liability (specify)i

n Otner Negligence (specify)i

! Other Professional Malpractice (specify):

n OtherTort (specify)i

! Adult Suruivors Act

! Asbestos

! Environmental (specify):

E Medical, Dental or Podiatric Malpractice

! Child-Parent Security Act (specity):l Assisted Reproduction I Surrogacy Agreement
! CPLR Article 75 - Arbitration lsee r\rOIE in COMMERCTAL section]
E CPLR Article 78 - Proceeding against a Body or officer
fl Election Law

! Extreme Risk Protection Order

n MHL Article 9.60 - Kendra,s Law

! MHL Article 10 - Sex Offender Confinement (specify)t n tnitiat ! Review

n MHL Article 81 (Guardianship)

! Otner Mental Hygiene (specify):

I Other Special Proceeding (specify)l

fl Certificate of lncorporation/Dissolution lsee irofF in COMMERCTAL section]
! Emergency Medical Treatment

! Habeas Corpus

n Local Court Appeal

n Mechanic's Lien

! Name Change/Sex Designation Change

! eistot Permit Revocation Hearing

! Sale or Finance of Religious/Not-for-profit property

! Otner gpecify)i

Has a summons and complaint or summons with notice been filed?

Has a summons and complaint or summons with notice been served?

ls this action/proceeding being filed post-judgment?

lf yes, date filed:

lf yes, date served:

lf yes, judgment date:

NE
rtr
na

lnfant's Compromise

Extreme Risk Protection Order Application

Note of lssue/Certificate of Readiness

Notice of Medical, Dental or Podiatric Malpractice Date lssue Joined:
Notice of Motion Relief Requested:

Notice of Petition Relief Requested:

Order to Show Cause Relief Requested:

Other Ex Parte Application Relief Requested:

Partition Settlement Conference

Poor Person Application

Request for Preliminary Conference

Residential Mortgage Foreclosure Settlement Conference

Writ of Habeas Corpus

n
n
!
n
tr
a
n
u
u
u
!
!
!
n Other (specify)i

Arti.le 7g lBo.lv dr Offi.crl
Return Date:

Return Date:

Return Date:

Iof2



rNDEX NO. 810190/2023

RECEIVED NYSCEF: 08/IO/2023NYSCEF DOC. NO. 7

I AFFIRM UNDER THE PENALW OF PERJURY THAT, UPON INFORMATION AND BELIEF, THERE ARE NO OTHER RELATED ACTIONS OR
PROCEEDINGS, EXCEPT AS NOTED ABOVE, NOR HAS A REQUEST FOR JUDICIAL INTERVENTION BEEN PREVIOUSLY FILED IN THIS

ACTION OR PROCEEDING,

Dated: 08fi02029 BRtrrANy LEE PENBERTHY

469't465

Signature

BRITTANY LEE PENBERTHY

Name: WARMUS, DANIEL

Role(s) : Plaintiff/Petitioner

BRITTANY PENBERTHY, PENBERTHY LAW GROUP LLP,227
NIAGARA ST, BUFFALO, NY 14201,
bpen berthy@thepenlawgroup.com trYES ENO

Name: CITY OF LOCKPORT

Role(s) : Defendant/Respondent

One Locks Plaza, Lockport, NY 14094

NYES ANO

Name:

Role(s) trYES trNO

n Name:

Role(s): trYES trNO

Name:

Role(s) trYES trNO

Name:

Role(s) trYES NNO

Name:

Role(s) trYES !NO

n Name:

Role(s) NYES NNO

Name:

Role(s): trYES trNO

Name:

Role(s) trYES trNO

Attorney Registration Number

2of2

Print Name
This form was generated by NYSCEF



RE SIDENTIAL REVIEW APPLICATIoN 2022
SECTION II

Please Print

Lrsr FouR COMPARABLE PROPERTTES (recent sares or assessments)

Sale 1. Locations2 H"ni.onA* S.B.L. 109.s0-3-50

Sale Price!!,0!!__ Sale DateTls/1 3

Assessed value 177,000

Square Footagem4z _ Styledo rVt"
Condition Additional Features
Comments on Sales Comparison

Sale 2. Location2slivinspm
sale Price170,000

sEr L 109.42-1-50

$6.ls|12ls64t21
Assessed \,rahls 170,000

Square Footage3,aos-- old

Condition Additional Features
Comments on Sales Comparison

Sale 3. Locationsgl Wahrt Sr*"t S.B.L.109.50-2-55
Sale Pricelso,m Sale
Assessed Valus90,000
Square F 2,186 old style

Condition Additional Features
Comments on Sales Comparison

Sale 4. LocationzO Elrira Sto"i s.B.L. 10e.50-3-61

Sale Price-l!0,00Q__ Sale Date4/30/21
Assessed value 169,000

Square Footage 2,016 old

Condition_ Additional Features
Comments on Sales Comparison

Based on the sale of the above properties, I believe that the estimated FULL IVIARKET VALUE for the
subject property i5 151,500

I cedify that all statenents made on this application are true and correct to the best

f)ate2l25l22

an
of my knowledge and

4114t23Zachanr
Signature of Owner Date



RECEIVED
RPTL 730-A UCS 900 (Rev. July 2019)

PETITION
SMALL CLAIMS ASSESSMENT REVIEW

IN COUNTIES OUTSIDE NEWYORK CITY
(one petition per parcel) CR€ery4t FTLTD

AUc 0 7 ?023

hr \r ! e

PART I

GENERAL INFORMATION
iul 2 S 2023

JOSEPH A. JASTRZEMSsuPREMEcouRr couNTYot 
RAcouruTyclEf

1.

2.

3.

Filing # 5Cr'o?-\ -oooLq Calendar#

Assessing Unit e e c'C L r?
Date of final completion and filing of assessment roll July 1,2A23

252,000(a)
(b)
(c)

Total
Exempt amount
Taxable assessed value (3a-3b)

0

252,000

4. Date of filing (or mailing) petition
7t28t23

5. Name of owner or owners of property Zachary Nolan

Address: 50 Utica Street, Lockport, NY 14094

Telepho ne#. 716-535-0804

6. lf applicable, name and address of representative of owner, if representative is filing application:
(Owner must complete Designation of Representative section.)

Name of Representative:

Address:

lblephone #:

7. Description of properly as it appears on the assessment roll

Tax Map # Seclon 109.50 Block 3 y61 24.1

8. Location of Property (street, Road highway number, and city, town or village)

50 Utica Street, Lockport, NY 14094

PASD

iul ? I 20?3

i,?iElil'e?i"J,#:f:ffi

JUAN rtrilitrJt\
sc2023-00019
0712812023 11:56:37AM
Receipt 2023606959
Pages 5

Joseph A. Jaslzemski, Niagara County Clerk Clerk: LMK



PART II
GROUNDS FOR PETITION

ASSESSMENT REQUESTED

A. Assessment requested on the complaint form filed with the Board ofAssessment Review

1. Total assessment 1S1,gOO

2. Exempt amount, if any 0

3. Taxable assessment 151

MMIMUM REDUCTION

B. Calculation of equalized value and maximum reduction in assessment

1. n Properly is NOT in a specialassessing unit.

ASSESSED VALUE + EQUALIZATION RATE

252,000 100%

2. tr Properly lS in a special assessing unit.

ASSESSED VALUE - CLASS ONE RATIO

3.

EQUALIZED VALUE

252,000

EQUALIZED VALUE

tr lf the EQUAL|ZED VALUE exceeds $450,000, enterthe ASSESSED VALUE here:
Multiply the ASSESSED VALUE by: x.25
Enter the result here:
The result is the maximum total assessment request reduction allowable.

c. ./ UNEQUALASSESSMENT

1 The total assessment is unequal because the property is assessed at a higher percentage of full (market)
value than (check one).

D t"l the average of all other propefi on the assessment roll, or

./ (b) the average of residential properly on the assessment roll

2. Full (market) value of property: * 151 ,500

Based on one or more of the following, petitioner believes this property should be assessed d 10Q 
"/o

of full (market) value:

1[ The latest State equalization rate for the assessing unit in which the property is located (enter latest
equalization rate: %).

2. t] The latest residential assessment ratio for the assessing unit in which the property is located (enter
residential assessment ratio: _ _%).

J. r' A sample of market values of recent sales prices and assbssments of comparable residential
properties on which petitioner relies for objection (list parcels on a separate sheet and attach).

4. n Statements of the assessor or other local official that properiy has been placed on the roll at
_%.
Petitioner believes the total assessment should be reduced to This amount may
not be less than the total assessment amount indicated in Section A (1), or Section B (3), whichever
is greater.



D.t EXCESSIVEASSESSMENT

1. L I The total assessed value exceeds the fuJl{n;i4pt) value of the property.
Total assessed value of property: $ zcz,uw
Complainant believes the total issessrnent sfroutO Oe reOuced to a full value e1 E 151,000
Attach list of parcels upon which complainant relies for objection, if applicable.
This amount may not be less than the amount indicated in Section A (1), or Section B (3).

2. [ ] Thetaxableassessedvalueisexcessivebecauseofthedenial ofall oraportionofapartial
exemption.Speciffexemption-(e.g.,aged,clergy,veterans,etc).

Amountofexemptionclaimed:$-'Amountgranted'ifany:
This amount may not be greater than the amount indicated in A (2).
lf application for exemption was filed, attach a copy of application to this petition

E. INFORMATION TO SUPPORT THE FULL (market) VALUE CLAIMED (Check One)

1. I I Purchase price of property $

Date of purchase

Relationship,ifany,betweensellerandpurchaser

2. I I lf property has been recently offered for sale:

When and for how long:

How offered:

Asking price: $

3. [ ] lf property has been recently appraised:

wrren.2019 By WhOm: PREMIER REAL ESTATE sERVlcEs, lNc.

Purpose of appraisal: Refinance

Appraised value: $ 150,000

4. I I lf buildings have been recently remodeled, constructed, or additional improvements made, state:
year remodeled, constructed, or additions made. new fOOf, Siding

Date commenced: March 2020 Date compHs6' June 2020

Cost $ 30,000

5. [ ] Amount for which your property is insured: g

Name of insurance company and policy number: Travelers 6031 5491 1 -633-1

6. I I Purchase price of comparable property(ies) recently sd6.g 180,000

PART III
LISTING OF TAXING DISTRICTS

Names of Taxing Districts

1. CoUNTy: Niagara

2.

3.

4.

TOWN

VILLAGE:

SCHOOL DISTRICT Lockport



PART IV
DESIGNATION OF REPRESENTATIVE TO FILE PETITION

as petitioner (or officer thereof) hereby designate

_ to act as my representative in any and all proceedings

before the Small Claims Assessment Review of the Supreme Court in County for

purposes of reviewing the assessment of my real property as it appears on the _ year assessment roll of

(assessing unit)

Signature of Ovrrner

Date

PART IV
ELIGIBI LIry AND CERTIFICATION

I certify that:

(b) The property is improved by a one, two or three family, owner-occupied residential structure
used exclusively for residential purposes, and is not a condominium; except a condominium
designated as Class 1 in Nassau County or as "homestead" Class in an approved assessing unit.(c) The requested assessment is not lower than the assessment requested on the complaint
filed with the assessor or the Board of Assessment Review.

(d) lf the equalized value of the property exceeds $450,000, the requested assessment reduction
does not exceed 25 percent of the assessed value.

(e) I will mail, by certified mail, return receipt requested, or, deliver in person, within ten days after
the day of filing this petition with the County Clerk, one ('l) copy of this petition to the clerk of
the assessing un it, or if there by no such clerk, then to the officer who performs the
customary duties of that official.

(0 I will mail by regular mail within 10 (ten) days after the filing of the Petition with the County
Clerk one (1) copy of the Petition to:
(1) The clerk of the school district(s)- within which the real property is located, or if there

be no clerk or the name and address cannot be obtained, then to a trustee,
(2) The treasurer of the county in which the property is located, and
(3) The assessor, or, the chairman ofthe board ofassessors
(4) The clerk of the village, where the village has ceased being an assessing unit in

accordance with Real Property Tax law S 1402(3), if the assessment to be reviewed
is on a parcel located within such village.

I certify that all statements made on this application are true and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief,
and I understand that the making of any willful false statement of material fact herein will subject me to the
provisions of the Penal law relevant to the making and filing of false instruments.

,7?"".->.42,&o
Signature of owner or representative

Check here if evening hearing is desired r'
(NO]E: Yoy are not required to file with the Buffalo City School District, the Rochester City School District, the Syracuse
City School District or the Yonkers City School District.)



DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

07nat202e
THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERNFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER TI{E COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICTES
BELOW. THIS GERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTTTUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE |SSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORTZED
REPRESENTATIVE OB PRODUCER, AIiID THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPOHTANT: lf the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDffiONAL INSURED proviiioni of be andtrsed;---
ff SUBROGATION lS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions ot the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement, A etaiement on
this certilicate does not conter any rights to the certilicate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s),

PRODUCER

USI lnsurance Services LLC
12 Gill Stret, #5500
Woburn, MA 01801

855 874-0123

Selectlve CSC Nat SCL

IH8.Nr,tEo. e,rt, 877 396-3800 877-77s-OfiA
servicecenter@selective.com

INSUREB{S} AFFOHDING COVERAGE NAIC }
IN9URER a I Selecllve lnsurance Gompany ol SG 1S259

INSURED

Niagara Celtic Heritage Society lnc
6447 Phillips Road
Burl, NY 14028

INSIJREH B:

INSURER C

INSURER D

INSUR€R E ;

INSURFR F :

z

COVERAGES

ACoRD 25 (2016/03) I ot 1
#s407718041M4A77180A

client#:1681200 NIAGACEL

ACORD,- CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

CEFTIFICATE REVISION NUMBER:

@ 198&2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are reglstered marks ot ACORD

JASCF

THIS IS TO CEFTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSUHANCE LISTED BELOW HAVEBEENISSUED TOTHE INSURED NAMEDABOVE FORTHE POLICYPERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY BEQUIREMENT, TERM OH CONDITIONOF ANY CONTRACTOR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY TFIE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY FAID CLAIMS.

TYPE OF INSURANCE POUCY NUMBER Lti{Ts

EACH OCCURRENCE $1.000.000
DAMAGF TO NENI
PnFMISFS rF, m s500.000
MED EXP (Anv one persn) $15.000
PERSONAL & ADV INJUBY $1.000.000
GENERAL AGGREGATF $2,000,000
PRODUCTS - COMPDP AGG 02.000.000

A COMI'ERCIAL GETIERAL UABIUTY
i---.... l

cLATMs.MADE : Xi occun

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PEH:

[-*l pno
I lJEcr t l LOCPOLICY

OTHER:

x s1968916 an023 ov10no21

$

s1,000,000
BODILY INJUBY (Per persn) $

BODILY INJURY (PeI amident) $

$

AUTOiIOBILE LIABlLITY

ANY AUTO
OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON.OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

s1968916 ,a1w2a2s 03110/2024

$

EACH OCCURBENCE $
UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS LIAB

OCCUR

CTAIMS.MADE AGGFEGAIE s

nFn FETENTION S $
I PER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT s

E.L. DISEASE. EA EMPLOYEE

WORKERS COTTIPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS',UABILTTY v/N
ANY PFOPRIETOF.PARTNERiEXECUTIVEf -'-i
OFFICERA4EMBEF EXCLI.JDED? i I

(Mddarory in t'lH) i I

li yes, de$ribe undsr
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIoNS below

N,/A

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT s

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIOI{S / LOGATIONS / VEHICLES {ACORD 1 01, Addllional Rsarks Schedulq may be atlached ll more Epsce is reguired}
The City of Lockport is included as additionally insured, as reguired by written contract, as it relates to
the use ol the City's right-ot-way on East Ave. and Lake Ave. on Sept. 3rd through Sept. 16, 2019 for the
purpose ol hanging banners across East Ave at Davison Rd and Lake Ave near the clty line

Clty ol Lockporl
One Locks Plaza
Lockport, NY 14094

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELMERED IN
ACCORDANGE \II'ITH THE POLICY PBOVISIONS.

AUTHOFIZED REPRESENTATIVE

*-uUar-*



3

EAF Mapper Summary Report Thursday, February 2,2023 3:20 PM

Disclaimer: The EAF Mapper is a screening tool inlended to assist
project sponsors and reviewing agencies in preparing an environmental
assessment form (EAF). Not all questions asked in the EAF are
answered by the EAF Mapper. Additional information on any EAF
question can be obtained by consulting the EAF Workbooks. Although
lhe EAF Mapper provides the most up{o-date digiial data available to
DEC, you may also need to contact local or other data sources in order
to obtain dala not provided by the Mapper. Digital dala is not a
substilute for agency delerminations.

IShort EnvironmentalAssessment Form - EAF Mapper Summary Report



knowitlgly waives any and all claims foi damages against any and all of the entities co'nprising Niagara County tltat may arise fro0) ihe mapping data. A

0.03 0.07 0.13 mi

Report run date: February 2,2023

Parcel Report
0

Prcl l{umb: 55

Prop Code: +sa

Fronk 180

DePth: 183

lnfonnation reflects Final Assessment Roll 2022

58L: 109.5s-1-10 Owner: City Of Lockport

prcl Streeh Main St prcl Muni: Lockport

Prop Code Description' Parking lot

Sqft Living Area: 0 Total Assessed Value; 300,000

Year Builh 0 Land Assessed Value: 295,000

Acres (approx): 1.29

Full Market Value: 300,000



Agency flse Only IIf applicablel

Project:

I)atc:

S ltort Environmentol Assessment Form
Purt 2 - Impoct Assessment

Part2 is to be completed by the Lead Agency.
Answer all of the following questions inPart2 using the information contained in Part I and other materials submitted by
the project sponsor or otherwise available to the reviewer. When answering the questions the reviewer should be guided by
the concept "Have my responses been reasonable considering the scale and context ofthe proposed action?"

No, or
small
impact
may
occur

Moderate
to large
impact

may
occur

l. Will the proposed action create a material conflict with an adopted land use plan or zoning
regulations?

2. Will the proposed action result in a change in the use or intensity of use of land?

3. Will the proposed action impair the character or quality of the existing community?

4. Will the proposed action have an impact on the environmental characteristics that caused the
establishment of a Critical Environmental Area (CEA)? {

5. Will the proposed action result in an adverse change in the existing level of traffic or
affect existing infrastructure for mass transit, biking or walkway? {

6. Will the proposed action cause an increase in the use of energy and it fails to incolporate
reasonably available energy conservation or renewable enerry opportunities?

7. Will the proposed action impact existing:
a. public / private water supplies?

b. public / private wastewater treatment utilities? V
8. Will the proposed action impair the character or quality of important historic, archaeological,

architectural or aesthetic resources?

9. Will the proposed action result in an adverse change to natural resourees (e.g., wetlands,
waterbodies, groundwater, air quality, flora and fauna)? V

10. Will the proposed action result in an increase in the potential for erosion, flooding or drainage
problems? V

I l. Will the proposed action create ahazard to environmental resources or human health? V

PRINT FORM Page I of2
SEAF 2019



Use lrf
Project:

Date;

Short Environmental Assessment F orm
Part 3 Determination of Significance

For every question inPart 2 that was answered "moderate to large impact may occur", or if there is a need to explain why a
particular element of the proposed action may or will not result in a significant adverse environmental impact, please
complete Part 3. Part 3 should, in sufficient detail, identify the impact, including any measures or design elements that
have been included by the project sponsor to avoid or reduce impacts. Part 3 should also explain how the lead agency
determined that the impact may or will not be significant. Each potential impact should be assessed considering its setting,
probability of occurring, duration, ineversibility, geographic scope and magnitude. Also considerthe potential for short-
term, long-term and cumulative impacts.

The Spalding Mill is designated in the State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO) database (known as CRIS) as USN
#06342.000544. The building was evaluated by the SHPO in March 2017, and was at time determined be Not
Eligible for inclusion in the National Register. lnformation noted is that the top three floors were removed in the
1970s. Though the SHPO may not be interested in the property, this building remains a local point of interest.

Remedial actions on the site are not required. The site does not require any legislative action, is not in a Critical
Environmental Area, will not affect or disrupt current traffic patterns, will not include/require municipal water or
sewer, does not connect to a waterway, encroach into a wetland or affect endangered species, and is not located in
a flood plain.

This project is funded in part by the New York State Department of State as part of a Downtown Revitalization
lnitiative (DRl). Short-term, long term, and cumulative impacts are anticipated to be positive for the local community
and out-of town visitors, providing a safe overlook of the Flight of Five Locks on the Erie Canal.

No significant environmental impact is anticipated.

Check this box ifyou have determined, based on the information and analysis above, and any supporting documentation,
that the proposed action may result in one or more potentially large or significant adverse impacts and an
environmental impact statement is required.

Check this box ifyou have determined, based on the information and analysis above, and any supporting documentation,
that the proposed action will not result in any significant adverse environmental impacts.

City of Lockport August 23,2023
Name of Lead Agency Date

Michelle Roman Mayor

Print or Type Name of Responsible Offrcer in Lead Agency Title of Responsible Officer

Signature of Responsible Officer in Lead Agency Signature of Preparer (if different from Responsible Officer)

PRINT FORM Page2 of2



-frp*lYI
Resource Evaluation

Date: AAATZUT

Staff: James Finelli

USNNumber: 06342.000544

Name: Holly Edison Building

Location: 55 Main Street, Lockport NY 14094

Resource Status:

1. Determination: Not Eligible

2. Contributing: False

Criteria for lnclusion in the National Register:

A.

B.

D.

Associated with events that have made a significant contribution to the broad patterns in our history.

Associated with the lives of persons significant in our past.

Embodies the distinctive characteristics of a type, period or method of construction; or represents the work of a
master; or posses high artistic values; or represents a significant and distinguishable entity whose components
may lack individual distinction.

Have yielded, or may be likely to yield information important in prehistory or history.

Summary Statement:



S h o rt Env iro nmental As s es s ment Fo rm
Port I - Project Information

Instructions for Completing

Part I - Project Information. The applicant or project sponsor is responsible for the completion ofPart l. Responses become part ofthe
application for approval or funding, are subject to public review, and may be subject to further verification. Complete Part I based on
information currently available. If additional research or investigation would be needed to fully respond to any item, please answer as
thoroughly as possible based on current information.

Complete all items in Part l. You may also provide any additional information which you believe will be needed by or useful to the
lead agency; attach additional pages as necessary to supplement any item.

Part I - Project and Sponsor Information

City of Lockport

Name of Action or Project:

Renovations to Spalding Mill Building and Site

Project Location (describe, and attach a location map)

55 Main Street, Lockport, NY 14094

Brief Description of Proposed Action:

Priorities for the proposed project include:

To stabilize the building structure in support ofthe load increases ofthe proposed roof
To improve the building envelope for weather-tightness and preservationiconservation
materials.
To improve the site landscaping, including accessibility.

top overlook and future event space.
of historical character-defining attributes of the building and

Name of Applicant or Sponsor:

Michelle Roman, Mayor

Telephone: 7rc 4gg 6zz6

E-Mail: mlawson@tockportny.gov

Address:

1 Locks Plaza

City/PO:
City of Lockport

State:

NY

ZipCode:
14094

1 . Does the proposed action only involve the legislative adoption of a plan, local law, ordinance,
administrative rule, or regulation?

IfYes, attach a narrative description ofthe intent ofthe proposed action and the environmental resources that
may be affected in the municipality and proceed to Part 2. If no, continue to question 2.

NO YES

2. Does the proposed action require a permit, approval or funding from any other government Agency?
If Yes, list agency(s) name and permit or approval: Department of State: DRI funding

NO YES

3. a. Total acreage ofthe site ofthe proposed action?
b. Total acreage to be physically disturbed?
c. Total acreage (project site and any contiguous properties) owned

or controlled by the applicant or project sponsor?

1.29 acres

.3 acres

acres

4. Check all land uses that occur on, are adjoining or near the proposed action:

f] urban n Rural (non-agriculture) f] Industrial fl Comm ercial V Residential (suburban)

f] For.rt fl Agriculture I Aquatic A Other(Specify): Municipal

n Patkland

Page 1 of3 SEAF 2019



I

I
s

I

5. Is the proposed action,

a. A permitted use under the zoning regulations?

b. Consistent with the adopted comprehensive plan?

NO YES N/A

6. Is the proposed action consistent with the predominant character ofthe existing built or natural landscape?
NO YES

V
7. Is the site of the proposed action located in, or does it adjoin, a state listed Critical Environmental Area?

If Yes, identiff

NO YES

V
8. a. Will the proposed action result in a substantial increase in traffic above present levels?

b. Are public transportation services available at or near the site ofthe proposed action?

Are any pedestrian accommodations or bicycle routes available on or near the site of the proposed
action?

c.

NO YES

V
V
V

9. Does the proposed action meet or exceed the state energy code requirements?

Ifthe proposed action will exceed requirements, describe design features and technologies:

Light fixtures will be replaced with LED luminaries. While additional fixtures will be placed. the light levels will remain very low so as
not to impact night viewing of the Flight of Five Locks. We do not anticipate any impact or change to the amount of energy consumed.

NO YES

n
10. Will the proposed action connect to an existing public/private water supply?

If No, describe method for providing potable water:

Potable water is not required for the project.

NO YES

I l. Will the proposed action connect to existing wastewater utilities?

If No, describe method for providing wastewater treatment:

Wastewater treatment is not required for project

NO YES

12. a. Does the project site contain, or is it substantially contiguous to, a building, archaeological site, or district
which is listed on the National or State Register of Historic Places, or that has been determined by the
Commissioner of the NYS Office of Parks, Recreation and Historic Preservation to be eligible for listing on the
State Register of Historic Places?

The Spalding Mill is not listed or eligible to be listed. lt is registered on the SHPO's CRIS system.

b. Is the project site, or arry portion ofit, located in or adjacent to an area designated as sensitive for
archaeological sites on the NY State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO) archaeological site inventory?

NO YES

n
13. a. Doesanyportionofthesiteoftheproposedaction,orlandsadjoiningtheproposedaction,contain

wetlands or other waterbodies regulated by a federal, state or local agency?

b. Would the proposed action physically alter, or encroach into, any existing wetland or waterbody?

IfYes, identifi the wetland or waterbody and extent ofalterations in square feet or acres

NO YES

Page2 of3



1 4. Identify the typical habitat types that occur on, or are likely to be found on the project site. Check all that apply:

Eshoreline I Forest I Agricultural/grasslands E Early mid-successional

nwetland fl Urban !suburban

15. Does the site of the proposed action contain any species of animal, or associated habitats, listed by the State or
Federal government as threatened or endangered?

NO YES

16. Is the project site located in the 10O-year flood plan? NO YES

V
17. Will the proposed action create storm water discharge, either from point or non-point sources?
If Yes,

a. Will storm water discharges flow to adjacent properties?

b. Will storm water discharges be directed to established conveyance systems (runoff and storm drains)?
If Yes, briefly describe:

NO YES

18. Does the proposed action include construction or other activities that would result in the impoundment of water
or other liquids (e.g., retention pond, waste lagoon, dam)?

If Yes, explain the purpose and size of the impoundrn

NO YES

{

19. Has the site ofthe proposed action or an adjoining property been the location ofan active or closed solid waste
management facility?

If Yes, describe:

NO YES

{

20.Has the site ofthe proposed action or an adjoining property been the subject ofremediation (ongoing or
completed) for hazardous waste?
If Yes, describe:

Site remediation is nnnrrrrino on sites in the vininilv of lhe Snaldino Mill but not of the conliouous sites are rrnder cleanrrn action

NO YES

{

I CERTIFY THAT THE INFORMATION PROVIDED ABOVE IS TRUE AND ACCURATE TO THE BEST OF
MY KNOWLEDGE

Applicant/sponsor/name City of Lockport / Michelle Roman )a1q 8123123

Signature Title: Mayor

PRINT FORM Page 3 of3



Lt

Short Environmentul Assessment Form
Part I - Project Information

Instructions for Completing

Part I - Project Information. The applicant or project sponsor is rcsponsible for the complction of Part 1. Responses become part ofthe
application for approval or funding, are subject to public review, and may be subject to further verification. Complete Part 1 based on
information currently available. If additional research or investigation would be needed to fully respond to any item, please answer as
thoroughly as possible based on current information.

Complete all items in Part 1. You may also provide any additional information which you believe will be needed by or useful to the
lead agency; attach additional pages as necessary to supplement any item.

Part I - Project and Sponsor Information

City of Lockport

Name of Action or Project:

Lowertown Loop Trail Comfort Station Rehabilitation and Pavilion

Project Location (describe, and attach a location map):

Market St. at North Adam St. bridge

Brief Description of Proposed Action:
Upgrades to existing comfort station and addition of pavilion adjacent to existing comfort station funded by NY Canalway Grant.

Name of Applicant or Sponsor:

Michelle Roman, Mayor

Telephone: 7 16-439-6776

E-Mail: mlawson@lockport.gov

Address:

One Locks Plaza

CitylPO
Lockport

State:
NY

Zip Cod,e:

14094

L Does the proposed action only involve the legislative adoption of a plan, local law, ordinanceo
administrative rule, or regulation?

IfYes, attach a narrative description ofthe intent ofthe proposed action and the environmental resources that
may be affected in the municipality and proceed to Part 2. If no, continue to question 2.

NO YES

2. Does the proposed action require a permit, approval or funding from any other government Agency?
If Yes, Iist agency(s) name and permit or approval: NY Canal Corp.

NO YES

n
3. a. Total acreage ofthe site ofthe proposed action?

b. Total acreage to be physically disturbed?
c. Total acreage (project site and any contiguous properties) owned

or controlled by the applicant or project sponsor?

.45 acres
1 0 acres

NA - R.O.W. acr€s

4. Check all land uses that occur on, are adjoining or near the proposed action:

5. f,Z Urban E Rural (non-agriculture) E Industrial I Commercial E Residential (suburban)

E Forest ! Agriculture ! Aquatic E Other(Specify):

E Parkland

Page 1 of3



5. Is the proposed action,

a. A permitted use under the zoning regulations?

b. Consistent with the adopted comprehensive plan?

NO YES N/A

V
V

6 Is the proposed action consistent with the predominant character ofthe existing built or natural landscape?
NO YES

V
7. Is the site of the proposed action located in, or does it adjoin, a state listed Critical Environmental Area?

If Yes, identifu:

NO YES

8. a. Will the proposed action result in a substantial increase in traffic above present levels?

b. Are public transportation services available at or near the site ofthe proposed action?

c. Are any pedestrian accommodations or bicycle routes available on or near the site of the proposed
action?

NO YES

n
V

9. Does the proposed action meet or exceed the state energy code requirements?

Ifthe proposed action will exceed requirements, describe design features and technologies:

NO YES

V
10. Will the proposed action connect to an existing public/private water supply?

If No, describe method for providing potable water:
Existing connection to City of Lockport Water Distribution System

NO YES

1 L Will the proposed action connect to existing wastewater utilities?

IfNo, describe method for providing wastewater treatment:
Existing Connection to City of Lockport Sanitary Sewer System

NO YES

n
12. a. Does the project site contain, or is it substantially contiguous to, a building, archaeological site, or district
wltich is listed on the National ol State Register of I{istoric Places, or that has been deterunined by the
Contmissioner of the NYS Office of Parks, Recreation and Historic Preservation to be eligible for listing on the
State Register of Historic Places?

b. ls the project site, or any poftion ofit, located in or adjacent to an area designated as sensitive for
archaeological sites on the NY State Historic Preservation Office ( SHPO) alchaeological site inventory?

NO YES

V

13. a. Does any portion ofthe site ofthe proposed action, or lands adjoining the proposed action, contain
wetlands or other waterbodies regulated by a federal, state or local agency?

b. Would the proposed action physically alter, or encroach into, any existing wetland or waterbody?

IfYes, identif, the wetland or waterbody and extent ofalterations in square feet or acres:
Adjacent to Erie Canal. Wll not encroach Canal.

NO YES

V
El

Page 2 of 3



1 4. Identify the typical habitat types that occur on, or are likely to be found on the project site. Check all that apply:

flShoreline f] Forest ! Agricultural/grasslands fI Earty mid-successional

nwetland Z] urban fl Suburban

15. Does the site ofthe proposed action contain any species ofanimal, or associated habitats, listed by the State or
Federal government as threatened or endangered?

NO YES

V
16. Is the project site located in the 100-year flood plan? NO YES

V
17. Will the proposed action create storm water discharge, either from point or non-point sources?
If Yes,

a. Will storm water discharges flow to adjacent properties?

b. Will storm water discharges be directed to established conveyance systems (runoff and storm drains)?
If Yes, briefly describe:

Drainage from Pavilion will be surface drained to surrounding greenspace.

NO YES

n

n

18. Does the proposed action include construction or other activities that would result in the impoundment of water
or other liquids (e.g., retention pond, waste lagoon, dam)?

IfYes,explainthepurposeandsizeoftheimpoundment:

NO YES

V
19. Has the site of the proposed action or an adjoining properly been the location of an active or closed solid waste

management facility?
If Yes, describe:

NO YES

V
20.Has the site ofthe proposed action or an adjoining property been the subject ofremediation (ongoing or
completed) for hazardous waste?
If Yes, describe:

Misc. spills per DEC website

NO YES

{

I CERTIFY THAT THE INFOR]VIATION PROVIDED ABOVE IS TRUE AND ACCURATE TO THE BEST OF
MY KNOWLEDGE

ApplicanVsponsor/name :
Michelle Roman Date:

Signature: Title: Mayor

PRINT FORM Page 3 of3



EAF Mapper Summary Report Thursday, August 17,2023 6:37 AM

Disclaimer: The EAF Mapper is a screening tool intended to assist
project sponsors and reviewing agencies in preparing an environmental
assessment form (EAF). Not all questions asked in the EAF are
answered by the EAF Mapper. Additional information on any EAF
question can be obtained by consulting the EAF Workbooks. Although
the EAF Mapper provides the most up-to-dat6 digitial data available to
DEC, you may also need to contact local or other data sources in order
to obtain dala not provided by the Mapper. Digital data is not a
substitute for agency determinations.

Partl I Question 7 [Critical Environmental
Areal

No

Parll lQuestion 12a [National or State
Register of Historic Places or State Eligible
Sitesl

Yes

Partl lQuestion 12b [Archeological Sites] Yes

Part I I Question 13a [Wetlands or Other
Regulated Waterbodiesl

Yes - Digital mapping information on local and federalwetlands and
waterbodies is known to be incomplete. Refer to EAF Workbook.

Part'l I Question 15 [Threatened or
Endangered Animall

No

Partl lQuestion 16 [100 Year Flood Plain] Yes

Part 1 I Question 20 [Remediation Site] Yes

Short Environmental Assessment Form - EAF Mapper Summary Report



Agency Use Only IIf applicablel

Plojeet:

l)atc:

S hort E nvironmentol Assess ntent Form
Pqrt 2 - Impact Assessntent

Part 2 is to be completed by the Lead Agency.
Answer all of the following questions inPart2 using the information contained in Part I and other materials submitted by
the project sponsor or otherwise available to the reviewer. When answering the questions the reviewer should be guided by
the concept "Have my responses been reasonable considering the scale and context ofthe proposed action?"

No, or
small
impact
may
occur

Moderate
to large
impact

may
occur

l. Will the proposed action create a material conflict with an adopted land use plan or zoning
regulations? V

2. Will the proposed action result in a change in the use or intensity of use of land? a
3. Will the proposed action impair the character or quality of the existing community?

4. Will the proposed action have an impact on the environmental characteristics that caused the
establishment of a Critical Environmental Area (CEA)?

5. Will the proposed action result in an adverse change in the existing level of traffic or
affect existing infrastructure for mass transit, biking or walkway?

6. Will the proposed action cause an increase in the use of energr and it fails to incorporate
reasonably available energy conservation or renewable energy opportunities?

7. Will the proposed action impact existing:
a. public I private water supplies?

b, public / private wastewater treatment utilities?

8. Will the proposed action impair the character or quality of important historic, archaeological,
architectural or aesthetic resources? V

9. Will the proposed action result in an adverse change to natural resources (e.g., wetlands,
waterbodies, groundwater, air quality, flora and fauna)? V

10. Will the proposed action result in an increase in the potential for erosion, flooding or drainage
problems?

I L Will the proposed action create ahazard to environmental resources or human health? V

PRINT FORM Page I of2
SEAF 2019



Use

Project:

Date:

Short Environmental Assessment F orm
Part 3 Determination of Significance

For every question inPart 2 that was answered "moderate to large impact may occur", or if there is a need to explain why a
particular element of the proposed action may or will not result in a significant adverse environmental impact, please
complete Part 3. Part 3 should, in sufficient detail, identify the impact, including any measures or design elements that
have been included bythe project sponsorto avoid or reduce impacts. Part 3 should also explain howthe lead agency
determined that the impact may or will not be significant. Each potential impact should be assessed considering its setting,
probability of occuring, duration, irreversibility, geographic scope and magnitude. Also consider the potential for short-
term, long-term and cumulative impacts.

Work will be done to existing comfort station and pavilion will be located within areas of prior disturbance.

PRINT FORM

Check this box ifyou have determined, based on the information and analysis above, and any supporting documentation,
that the proposed action may result in one or more potentially large or significant adverse impacts and an
environmental impact statement is required.
Check this box ifyou have determined, based on the information and analysis above, and any supporting documentation,
that the proposed action will not result in any sigrificant adverse environmental impacts.

City of Lockport August 23,2023

Name of Lead Agency Date
Michelle Roman Mayor

Print or Type Name of Responsible Officer in Lead Agency Title of Responsible Officer

Signature of Responsible Officer in Lead Agency Signature of Preparer (if different from Responsible Officer)

Page2 of2



5

CITY OF LOCKPORT
BUILDING INSPECTION DEPARTMENT

oNE LocKS PLAZA PHONE-439-6754 EMAll-mbrewer@lockportny.gov

BUILDING PERMIT APPLICATION FOR
DUMPSTERS

JobLocation: 77 mo;,m t+ Date 8l1le,l
Owner: Address (if different) tA Frvn n,
phone: A,ot -tlsgaf{ city: 2-a'" 0?4t11,

Dates ofplacement:

Size of dumpster:

0 3 b I

Contractor(s): Ert-
Dumpster location: o

Please acknowledge the following:

1. The street upon which any roll-off container is to be placed must be a minimum
26 feet, curb to curb.

2, The roll-off container must be placed parallel to the curb with the street side of
the container no more than 8'6" from the nearest curb adjacent to the container.

3. The roll-off container shall only be placed on the side of the street that is
designated for parking and shall not be placed within 10 feet of a neighboring
driveway.

4, The roll-off container shall have a permanent installation of not less than 16 s.f. of
diagonal reflectorized stripping material on each side of the roll-off container.

5. The roll-off container owner/lessee must provide the proper insurance documents

6. +il:#;ffi*THi,'ffii,1 n,&d"y, (g)
The Owner/ Applicant agrees to conform to all applicable laws of this jurisdiction, adhere to the plans and
specifications affixed hereto and permit Building Department personnel to perform required inspections.

Applicant's Name:(if different than

Fro

Owner/ Applicant Signature:





CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DD/YYYY}

0711412023

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOTAFFIRMATIVELYOR NEGATIVELYAMEND, EXTEND ORALTER THE COVERAGEAFFORDED BYTHE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFIGATE OF INSUR.ANCE DOES NOT CONSTTTUTEACONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER,

IMPORTANT lf the an policy(ies) must have prov or
lf SUBROGAflON lS WAIVED, subiect to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policles may require an endorcement, A statement on
this certificate does not confer hts to the certificate holder ln lieu of such

PRODUCER

Pavese - Mccormick Agency

3759 U.S. Highway 1 South

Suite 200

Monmouth Junction

Wingen

(732) 247-9800 (732)

pattiw@pavesemccormick.com

AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC *
NJ 08852 American Altemative lnsurance 19720

INSURED

Pyramid ETC Companies LLC, DBA: T/A ETC Companies LLC

275 North Franklin Turnpike

PO. Box 369

Ramsey NJ 07446

tNsuRER B : Selective Fire & Casualty lnsurance Company 14377

|NSURER c : Berkley National lnsurance Company 38911

tNsuRERD: Twin City Fire lnsurance Company 29459

tNsuRERE : Travelers Casualty & Surety 1 9038

tNsuRERF : Evanston lnsurance Company 35378

CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 23-24 Maslet REVISION NUMBER:
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR
INDICATED. NOTWTHSTANDING ANY REOUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTMCT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WTH RESPECT TO W.{ICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOVI/N MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS,

THE POLICY PERIOD

tNsR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE tNsn POLICY NUMBER

TVLIVT EAT
IMMTDDfYYYYI LIMITS

EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000

$ 100,000

MED EXP (Anv one @rcon) $ 5,000

PERSOML&ADV INJURY $ 1,000,000

GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 2,000,000

PRODUCTS - COMP/OPAGG $ 2,000,000

A

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

.LA.M.-MADE lX oaa*

GEN'LAGGREGATE LIMITAPPLIES PER:

,or,." lXISF"oi
OTHER:

LOC

8842G10004487 071o112023 0710112024

$

$ 1,000,000

BODILY INJURY (Per persn)

BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $

$

B

ANYAUTO

O\^NED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

NON-OVVI\ED
AUTOS ONLY

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS s 2310017 071o1t2023 oTlo'v2024

x X EACH OCCURRENCE $ 5,000,000UMBRELI-A LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

OCCUR

CI AIMS-MADF AGGREGATE s 5,000,000c
DED 10,000

MKC11100105 071o112023 07to1t2024

$

x PER
STATI ITF

UIH-
FR

E L EACH ACCIDFNT $ 1,000,000

E.L. OISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE s 1,000,000
D

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY
ANY PROPRI ETOR/PARTNER'EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory ln NH)
lf yes, describe und€r
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS b€low

N

Y/N
N/A l3WEAAM3WTM 071o112023 071o1t2024

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT $ 1,000,000

A
Excess Liability

93A2FFl 000053 0710112023 07t01t2024

Each Occurrence

Aggregate $5,000,000

DESCRIPTTON OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD l0l, Addltlonal Remrks Schedule, my bs attached tf morc space b requtred)

RECEIVED

AUo 1 1 2023

HOLDER CANCELLATION

O 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rlghts roserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of AGORD

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOIICE WLL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

NY 14094Lockport

City of Lockport

One Locks Plaza

frau;t*
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016t031



b

Clerk

From:
Sent:
lo:
Subject:

Roland Davis < lockportrampage@gmail.com>
Saturday, August 12,2023 8:31 PM
Deputy City Clerk

IEXTERNALI Re: FW: 071223.7

Good evening,

We were just made aware that a league game was unable to complete due to weather. As a result the entire
league post-season schedule must be pushed back. The Lockport Wildcats will not need the field on August
Igth, 2023 so please do not paint the field. We will still be using the the facilities August 26th,2023 and are
asking for use of the facilities on Septemb er 9,2023 for the Championship game.

Roland Davis
President, Lockport Wildcats, Inc.

on Fri, Jul28, 2023 at 9:28 AM Roland Davis <lockportrampage@gmai wrote:
Good Moming,

The Lockport Wildcats will not have a game on August 5th,2023. We do not need the field lined for that date

Thank You,

Roland Davis

on Thu, Jul 13, 2023 at9:37 AMDeputy City clerk <deputyclerk@lockpoffi wrote:

Good morning,

Please see attached for the Resolution from the July L2 Common Council Meeting.

Thank you!

ermLLg stoddard

Deputy City Clerk / Registrar of Vital Statistics

Phone: (7t61 439-6667

Fax: (716) 439-6702

1

de putvclerk@ lockportnv.gov



8

PAYMENT IN LIEU OF TAXES AGREEMENT
BY AND AMONG

HARRISON LOFTS HOUSING DEVELOPMENT FUND COMPANY,INC.,
HARRISION LOF'TS LIMITED PARTNERSHIP, AND

THE CITY OF LOCKPORT

WHEREAS, the Harrison Lofts Housing Development Fund Company, Inc. is aNew York
Not-for-Profit corporation organized pursuant to Arlicle XI of the Private Housing Finance Law
("PHFL"), having its principal place of business at clo YWCA of the Niagara Frontier, Inc., 32
Cottage Street, Lockport, NY 140494 ("HLHDFC"); and

WHEREAS, HLHDFC was formed for the purpose of providing residential rental
accommodations for persons of middle income and low-income; and

WHEREAS, HLHDFC is, or will be, the legal owner of record, as nominee for Hanison
Lofts Limited Partnership, a New York limited partnership having its principal place of business
at c/o The Kearney Realty & Development Group lnc.,57 Route 6, Suite 207,Baldwin Place, New
York 10505 ("Partnership"), of real property located at160 Washburn Street, Lockport, New York
14094 (SBL # 109.14-4-20.1), being Part of Lot 8, 10 & 12, Section 15, Township 14, Range 6 of
the Holland Land Company's Survey in the City of Lockport, County of Niagara and State of
New York more particularly described in the Nussbaumer & Clarke, Inc. Survey Project No. 1905-
0035, dated December 23,2019 annexed hereto as Exhibit A (the "Property"); and

WHEREAS, HLHDFC and the Partnership will develop, own, consftuct, maintain and
operate a mixed use of commercial use and residential housing project for persons of middle
income and low income at the Property (the "Project"); and

WHEREAS, HLHDFC's and the Partnership's plan for the use of the Property constitutes
a "housing project" as that term is defined in the PHFL; and

WHEREAS, HLHDFC is a'ohousing development fund company" as the term is defined
in Section 572 of the PHFL; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 577 of the PHFL, the local legislative body of a
municipality may exempt the real property of a housing project of a housing development fund
company from local and municipal taxes, including school taxes, other than assessments lbr local
improvements, to the extent of all or apart of the value of the property included in the completed
project; and

WHEREAS, Section 577 of the PHFL permits housing development fund companies and
local legislative bodies of a municipality to enter into a Payment in Lieu of Taxes ("PILOT" or
"Tax Exemption") Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council Members of the City of Lockport, New York, by
Resolution adopted
Agreement; and

2021, approved and authorized the execution of a PILOT



WHEREAS, the City of Lockport Common Council has considered the land use and
financial implications and other policy issues relating to the Tax Exemption,

NOW, THEREFORE, THE UNDERSIGNED PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS:

l. Pursuant to Section 577 of the PHFL, the City hereby exempts from local and
municipal taxes, other than assessments for local improvements, one hundred percent (100%) of
the value of the Property, including both land and improvements,. "Local and Municipal Taxes"
shall mean any and all real estate taxes levied by Niagara County, the City of Lockport ("City")
and the Lockport City School District or other taxing jurisdiction (collectively, the "Taxing
Jurisdictions"), but exclude any sales taxthatmay be due and owing from commercial tenants.

2. The tax exemption will commence on the date HLHDFC acquires the Property and
expire on the thirty-first (31') anniversary of the date the Project obtains a Certificate of
Occupancy. This PILOT Agreement shall not limit or restrict the HLHDFC's or the Partnership's
right to apply for or obtain any other tax exemption to which it might be entitled upon the
expiration of this PILOT Agreement. As stated above, the exemption extended pursuant to Section
577 of the PHFL and this PILOT Agreement does not include exemption from special assessments
and special ad valorem levies. During the term of this PILOT Agreement, the Partnership shall
pay arry service charges, special ad valorem levies, special assessments and improvement district
charges or similar tax equivalents which are or would be levied upon or with respect to the Project
by the Taxing Jurisdictions or any other taxing authority.

3. So long as the exemption hereunder continues, commencing one year after the
Project obtains a Certificate of Occupancy, the Partnership shall make annual PILOT payments in
the amount set forth below, which payments shall cover all Local and Municipal Taxes owed in
connection with the Property and the Project, and which payments shall be shared by the Taxing
Jurisdictions on the same basis as property taxes would be shared if the Property and the Project
were fully taxed. The PILOT payments shall be in the initial amount of $80,000 per year,
increasing by two percent (2Yo) awt:ually. So long as the tax exemption remains in effect, tenant
rental charges shall not exceed the maximum established or allowed by law, rule or regulation, and
the Property shall be operated in conformance with the provisions of Article XI of PHFL. PILOT
payments shall be due on February 15 of the calendar year following each taxable year to which
this PILOT Agreement applies. Payments shall be mailed via First Class mail through the United
States Postal Service or personally delivered to the City of Lockport Treasurer One Locks Plaza,
Lockport, New York 14094, or such other address as the City may specify in writing.

4. The tax exemption will continue for the term described above provided that (a) the
Property continues to be used as housing facilities for persons of middle income and low income
in accordance with the income and rent limitations, and (b) any of the following occur (i) the
HLHDFC and the Partnership operate the Property in conformance with Article XI of the PHFL;
(ii) the HLHDFC assumes sole legal and beneficial ownership of the Property and operates the
Property in conformance with Article XI of the PHFL; or (iii) in the event an action is brought to
foreclose a mortgage upon the HLHDFC, and the legal and beneficial interest in the Property is
acquired at the foreclosure sale or from the mortgagee, or by a conveyance in lieu of such sale, by



a housing development fund company organized pursuant to Article XI of the PHFL, and such
successor in interest shall operate the Property in confonnance with Article XI of the PHFL.

5. The failure to make any required PILOT payment will be treated as failure to make
payment of taxes and will be govemed by the same provisions of law as apply to the failure to
make payment of taxes, including, but not limited to, enforcement and collection of taxes to the
extent permitted by law. In addition to failure to pay any amount when due, HLHDFC and the
Partnership shall be in default of this PILOT Agreement in the event of material failure to observe
and perform any other covenant, condition of this PILOT Agreement on its part to be observed
and performed, and continuance of such failure for a period of thirty (30) days after written notice
specifying the nature of such failure and requesting that it be remedied; or any warranty,
representation or other statement by or on behalf of HLHDFC and/or the Partnership contained in
this PILOT Agreement shall prove to have been false or untrue in any material respect on the date
when made or on the effective date of this PILOT Agreement. Any payment not received by its
due date shall accrue interest and penalties at the rates provided for late payment of taxes to the
Taxing Jurisdictions.

6. All notices and other communications hereunder shall be in writing and shall be
sufficiently given when delivered to the applicable address stated above (or such other address as
the party to whom notice is given shall have specified to the party giving notice) by registered or
certified mail, return receipt requested or by such other means as shall provide the sender with
documentary evidence of such delivery.

7. This PILOT Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon the
City, HLHDFC and the Partnership and their respective successors and assigns, including the
successors in interest of HLHDFC and the Partnership. There shall be no assignment of this
PILOT Agreement except with consent of the other parties, which consent shall not be
unreasonably withheld, provided that the assignee or its general partner or managing member shall
be a housing development fund company subject to Article XI of the PHFL, the assignee shall
have assumed the obligations of this Agreement in writing reasonably satisfactory to the City, and
the assignee shall have provided such financial and other information as shall be reasonably
requested by the City in order to assure the proper completion and operation of the housing project
and the compliance with the terms of this PILOT Agreement and all applicable laws, regulations
and covenants.

8. This PILOT Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New York. If any provision of this PILOT Agreement or its application is
held invalid or unenforceable to any extent, the remainder of this PILOT Agreement and the
application of that provision to other persons or circumstances shall be enforced to the greatest
extent permitted by law.

9. This PILOT Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts with the
same effect as if all the signing parties had signed the same document. All counterparts shall be
construed together and shall constitute the same instrument.



10. This PILOT Agreement constitutes the entire agreement of the parties relating to
payments in lieu of taxes with respect to the Property and supersedes all prior contracts, or
agreements, whether oral or written, with respect thereto.

I 1. Each of the parties individually represents and warrants that the execution, delivery
and performance of this PILOT Agreement, (i) has been duly authorized and does not require any
other consent or approval, (ii) does not violate any article, by-law or organizational document or
any law, rule, regulation, order, writ, judgment or decree by which it is bound, and (iii) will not
result in or constitute a default under any indenture, credit agreement, or any other agreement or
instrument to which it is a party. Each party represents that this PILOT Agreement shall constitute
the legal, valid and binding agreement of such party, enforceable in accordance with its terms.

Remainder of page intentionally left blank.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Lockport, Harrison Lofts Housing Development Fund
Company, Inc. and Harrison Lofts Limited Partnership have caused this Agreement to be executed
in their respective ruImes by their duly authorized representatives and their respective seals to be
hereunder affixed, all as ofthe _ day of 202_.

CITY OF LOCKPORT' NEW YORK

DATED: 20 By:
Name: Michelle Roman
Title: Mayor

HARRISON LOFTS HOUSING DEVELOPMENT
FUND COMPANY,INC.

DATED 20 B
Name:
Title:

HARRISON LOF'TS LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

By: Harrison Lofts Associates, LLC, its
managing general partner

DATED: 20 By:
Name:
Title:



1

TERMINATION AND RELEASE

Re: 1 16 Main Street and720 Main Street, City of Lockport, New York (the "Property")

WHEREAS, E.A. Granchelli Developer LLC, a New York limited liability company
having its place of business at 36 Pine Street 2nd Floer, Lockport, Niagara County, New York (the
*LLC"), is the fee title owner of the Property described on attached Schedule A; and

WHEREAS, the City of Lockport, a municipal corporation organized under the laws of
the state of New York having its place of business at 1 Locks Plaza, Lockport, Niagara County
New York ("City") is the successor in interest to the Lockporl Urban Renewal Agency under the
Urban Renewal Plan for Project (N.Y. R-86) Central Business Area adopted by the Lockport
Urban Renewal Agency, approved by the Common Council of the City of Lockport on
February 20,1963 and Revised dated June, 1964 and recorded September 15,1964 atLiber 1429
of Deeds page 812 and further Revised dated November, l97l and recorded January 78,1974 at
Liber 1553 of Deeds atpage 384 (herein collectively referred to as the "Urban Renewal Plan");
and

WHEREAS, the Property is presently encumbered by the covenants, conditions and
restrictions contained in the Urban Renewal Plan, and a Deed running in favor of the City,
singularly and as successor in interest to the Lockport Urban Renewal Agency, recorded
February 5, 1975 in Book 1566 of Deeds at Page 839 in the Niagara County Clerk's Office (the
"Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions"); and

WHEREAS, the City is desirous of releasing the Property from the Covenants, Conditions
and Restrictions contained in the Urban Renewal Plan, and Deed, in accordance with the Deed.

NOW THEREFORE,

1. The City hereby releases, and forever discharges the Property and prior and current
owners from and with respect to any and all claims, proceedings, causes of action, orderso
obligations, contracts and agreements, and liabilities whatsoever, on account of or arising out of
the Covenant, Conditions and Restrictions being hereby released.

2. The City herby terminates its right of reversion as set forth in the Deed.

3. The City acknowledges that this Termination and Release shall also constitute the
Certificate of Completion and Paragraphs Second, Third and Fourth of the Deed are hereby
terminated.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City has executed this Release and Termination as of
_,2023.

CITY OF LOCKPORT

By:
Name:

Title:

STATE OF NEW YORK

COUNTY OF NIAGARA

On the 

- 
day of in the year 2023,before me, the undersigned, a notary public in

and for said state, personally appeared _ personally known to me or proved
to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the individual whose name is subscribed to the
within instrument and acknowledged to me that he executed the same in his capacities, and that by
his signatures on the instrument, the individual, or the persons on behalf of which the individual
acted, executed the instrument.

Notary Public
Commission expires

SS

)
)
)



SCHEDULE A

ALL THAI TRACT OR PARCEL OF LAilD, situat€ in the City of Lodrport County of Nhgara and $rate of New york, being
plrt of Lof 12, $ocffon 14, Torvnshp 14, Rangp 6 of the Holland Land Compsny's $urvw and b€ing pan qf Lois Nos, 32 and
3! qnd all of Lob 9d and 96 $ituab on tha sou8r linc of Main $&eot eccoding O a map of Lockpori rirade by J. P. HEinee ln
1&15, wai additions ln 1866 end ffed in ste Nicgara Qounty Clerkb Ofrca on Novsrb€r 21, 1866 ln Book ,5 ot Microfrlmed
Meps 8l page 2{33, bounded and dascvtbed as bloilrs: Beglnnlrg sl a polnt ln the soulh lina of Meln $treet {[,tain Strset bsing
82.5 faet tl'idg) dltttnt &{47 te6t nofilr 72' 39'$}" emt measurad along Ete souti }ln6 of Main Straet trom ils intersecton wlth
the ?ast lln€ of Lqcust $ttwt (Locu* Srest being 69.5 fset wide); $ence nu+&72" 39' 00o east along the south line of said
Main $se€t a dbbneE d 241 2i laelto a pokrt whhtt b 89. 96 feet west of lhg intetlection of the sdJ& line ol Main Steet
wilh tie wost line of Elm Sbeat lhence south 17"1820" east a dbtanca of f SO.ee feei to tn iitr"".Aeo" *if, Ut* nolth line ot
Psad Sltsat tP€arl Slraet beirE 53 fagt wide); thence soulh ?2" 27' 20's,st along the nortft line of P6arl Slrsst s dlsbncs of
173. S2 fsetta a point, sdd polnt baing 130 feel nffir72o 27'20'east m€asured aloqg lhe norlh lino of Pearl Streel ftom irts
int€Is€ciion with tho eastlins of Locust Strsel; lhenoo nortr 18' 10'20'nrest panallel wiU ne east $ne of Locust Strest I
dlstancs of 86. 83 lggt tt e point thene soulh 72' 39' 00' w€st parallel wilh tire south lins ot Msln Sseet a dbtancs ot 60.43
fset ta a polntl tl-rnce norfi 18' 15' 30' w€st a disbncs of 70 fu;t tc $e polnt or plaee of
b€ghntng.

Together wilft an ea8amslt and rlght of way ov6r the fullowing parcsl of land a* provided in Essement Agreement betwaen
John T. Revelae and Nbgara Fronthr Mall of Lodrport lno. diud Aptil24,1g75",and recorded May 13, igfs n Liber ii69 of
Oeeds 8t page 793: ,Ul $at bad or parcel of land. glhrata ln fre Clty of Lockport, County o't Nlsgar€ 6nd $tate of New Yod<,
bslng pato!L9! l'la. 12. Sec{ion 14, Tovmahlp 14, Reng€ 6 of tha itotlanO Land Cornpiny's Suivey accading b a msp
tacle!y.l P. Halnes in 1&{5, wlth addilions kr {866 and fild ln lhe Nlagara Coung Cb*b Office on Novembor21, 1-SSO in
Book 25 of Mbraflmed Mop-s,at prye 2433, bounded and desdbed as follows: Begtnni4g al a point in lhe nor$ line of pearl
$ttoet {Poad Sboet behg 53 foet nida) distani 132 bet eaat€rly as msasurd abnd saiO norttr iins of Peert $teat Fom lB
lntsrss{tion with the esst llne of Locusl $treel (Locust $Feet being 69. 5 bet wne}; thsncs north 18" 10'20'weet a dktencs of
86,83 fest tlsnce ssilh 72" 39 00" weat a dlstancs of 68 ftet; trfurce eouth t 8: i0' 20' eaet a dletance of I 0 fmt thence
no th 72'39'00'eesl a dlstanee of 25.6 foeli lh€rr,e south 18" 10'20- msl a dlstance of 20 [3et th€nc6 north 72'39'00'
east a distrance of 30. 4 feet b a polnt l0 feot wesbrly of the east line of aald Ld 32; $r6nca aoulirerly parallel wlth the east
line of ssU Lot 32 b 6 point in tfte norfir llns of Peart iXreet Ctstant f 2 leel wertcrf tom tre potnt of 6eginning; thence eastedy
a dbt8nc€ of 12 t€6t lo ths polnt or dacs of begtnnlng.



1[

Crry op LocxpoRr
One Locks Plaza
Lockport, New York 14094
(716) 439-6631
E-mail: husso@lockportny.gov

TIM RUSSO
Director of Finance

* FINANCAL OPINION MEMO -

Iuly 22,2023

To: Mayor Roman and Common Council
From: Timothy Russo, Director of Finance

Regarding: Update to Unrepresented Agreement
Data used in Determination: Proposed Agreement, New world personnel Data
other Parties consulted / Referenced / Involved in Determination: N/A

The unrepresented agreement has not been fully reviewed or modified in many years. This
alteration would amend the document with a number of alterations, but notably includes the
following:

' A new cost of living adjustment (COLA) that takes place January l't of each year
beginning inFY 2024. It is defined as the average of the COLAs found in the CSEAand
Department Head contracts.

r Incorporation of the3%o COLA retro dated to l/112023 forthe Corporation Counsel and
Deputy Corporation Counsel positions (as approved in the FY 2023 appropriation).

' A newly included City Clerk position is added into the agreement per recent judge ruling,
established at a rate equivalent to that of a department head grade 2 step 2. This would
take effect when Council approves this contract.

Current and Future Costs

The below exhibit shows costs from FY 2023 to FY 2026 for current employees firstly
based on the existing agreement and secondly based off ofthis proposal (which incluOes the new
coLA).

FY 2023 FY 2AZ4 FV zO?5, FY 2026

Wages $ gtg,zgg S zzt,lll 5 tgs,llz 5 E+&goz
FICA $ 24,+aE $ 2s,gg1 S zs,ogz $ ze,sso

Retirement S t6,Boo s L7,647 5 tl,G4l S r&szg
Total $ lot,osE S Ez4so4 S gzg,ros $ Egg,sae

Cost $ a,zzt s 13,061 $ z4esa $ zgrgo

(^
!q
o(J

{-is
AJl\

()

b
Ee
Ot4a-oo(J

o-

FY 2023 ,FV 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026
Wages S:zs,+ot 5 343,414 5 zst,ogt 5 374,235

FICA 5 zA,BgE 5 26,27r S 27,364 5 28,629
Retirement S tl,ozg S tg,tgo 5 18,898 5 tg,gtz

Total Sgel,zzd $ rezges S ao3,gsg $ 422,676



Costs in FY 2023 amount to $6,271, of which $4,000 has already been budgeted in the FY
2023 appropriation (this being the 3%6 COLA for the City and Deputy Attomeys). The remaining is
due to the increased salary of the City Clerk, which would not require a budget amendment due to
vacancy savings experienced in the department earlier this year. In FY 2024, costs would increase

by $13k compared to today's costs, which is the equivalent of a 0.L0% property tax rate increase.

The following year, costs increase by $25k, or $l8k greater than the last year, which is an

equivalent property tax rate increase of 0.14% from FY 2024.Finally in FY 2025, costs compared

to the current contract increase by $29,130, which is a 0.08% property tax rate increase from the
prior year.

The cunent CSEA and Department Head contracts only go until FY 2026 and as such, no

FY 2027 or FY 2028 analysis is provided.

Thank you,

Tim Russo

FinanseDirector

2



Purpose

The purpose of this policy is to provide Unrepresented Department Heads, Management
Employees, and Management-Confidential employees with a reference for the basic terms and
conditions of employment with the City of Lockport.

The City is committed to providing the highest quality of services to the citizens of the City of
Lockport. The administrative employees of the City are one of the essential elements required
to fulfillthis commitment. Through their leadership and professionalism, the City's philosophy
and policy is manifested in the efficient and effective operation of the City Departments.

The City Councilvalues the dedication and service of its administrative employees. The policy
and the provisions contained herein establish and provide the terms and conditions of
employment for Unrepresented Department Heads, Management, and Management-
Confidential personnel in the employment of the City of Lockport Government. This policy
statement is intended to provide those employees with a better understanding of the privileges
and responsibilities of their positions and to assist in the mission of the professional delivery of
services in the City of Lockport.

Guidelines

The term "Administrative employee" is used in this policy manual to refer to all employees who
occupy positions that are exempt from the bargaining unit under the Taylor Law. For the
purposes of this manual, we have defined the administrative employees by using four major
categories, which are explained below. Policies or benefits that apply to all employees have
been referred to as applying to Administrative employees or employees covered by this policy.
Specific benefits or responsibilities that pertain to specific groups of employees, for example,
Unrepresented Department Heads, have been noted as such.

The following guidelines apply to this policy:

L IJnrenresentpd oartment Heads - Employees who are appointed by the Mayor,
whether or not the appointment is required to be confirmed by the City Council or
respective governing Board, but not represented by the Department Head Association,
Unrepresented Department Heads function in the primary leadership position in the
department and are directly responsible for the development of departmental policies
and the implementation of legislative initiatives.

Director of Finance

Corporation Counsel

Citv Clerk

2. Management or Confidential- Employees who perform support functions for
management positions and/or other assignments, which require them to be
unrepresented by collective bargaining agreements.



Citv Clerk
Deputv Corporation Counsel
Confidentia I Secreta rv
Confidentia I Assista nt

3. Elected Officials - Employees who are elected by popular vote. Due to their unique
status, Elected Officials are exempt from leave and attendance requirements. They are
also exempt from the probationary period.

l. Appointments

L. Full-Time Appointments

Unrepresented Department Heads, Management employees, and
Management/Confidential employees are for fixed or continuing terms.

a. Fixed Term Appointments - Certain appointments are for a pre-
established number of years as prescribed by the N.Y.S. Constitution,
State Law, City Charter, General Municipal Law, and Local Law or Rule.
lncluded in this category are appointments which are made for the "Term
of the Council", which is two years.

b. Continuous Term Appointment - The remainder of the appointments is

continuous, and may be afforded Civil Service Status and Protection, and
is renewed contingent on satisfactory performance and authorization by
the City Council and/or the Mayor. This group includes administrative
employees who are appointed "at the pleasure of" the Mayor, within the
confines of applicable Civil Service Law. lnformation regarding the type of
appointment is provided to candidates during the recruitment and
selection process. Questions concerning the term of appointment may be
directed to the Human Resources/Civil Service Office.

2. Part-time Appointments and Benefits

ln certain cases, the City Council may establish part-time positions and/or
temporary positions to accommodate unique situations. Employees appointed to
part-time positions and who work less than the standard work week shall receive
the approved salary for the position and the statutory benefits referenced
herein, including Retirement (if eligible), Unemployment lnsurance, Social
Security, Worker's Compensation and, in some cases, Health lnsurance. There
shall be no earned leave benefits unless said part-time appointment consists of a
regular schedule equal to or greater than one-halt (l/2) of the standard work
week for the position. ln this case, leave benefits shall be prorated. Corporation
Counsel and Deputy Corporation Counsel titles shall not receive any leave, paid



time off, or health insurance benefits unless otherwise provided by City Council
resolution,

Fringe benefits shall be limited to the above-referenced items unless otherwise
approved by the City Council.

3. Probation Period

Employees in the classified service are subject to a probationary period in
accordance with the City of Lockport Civil Service Rules. The classified service
includes the competitive, Non-competitive, Exempt, and Labor classes of civil
service. Employees who have been promoted to a position in the classified
service are also subject to a probationary period.

Employees in the unclassified service or elected classification are not subject to a

probationary period.

4. Promotions

Administrative positions are critical to the efficient and effective operation of
City government. lt is the policy of the City of Lockport to seek professionals with
the qualifications and experience necessary to fulfill its goals. Emphasis will be
placed on recruitment of current employees who possess the qualifications,
experience, and employment history necessary for the quality operation of the
department. Employees who are promoted or working out-of-title shall be
placed at the minimum of the new grade unless the current hourly rate is above
the minimum, in which case, they will be placed in the step immediately above
their current hourly rate. No one shall exceed the top of the range for the new
grade. Out-of-title shall be defined as duties and responsibilities assigned beyond
that of an employee's regular position for a period greater than five consecutive
business days due to absence, exclusive of annual leave.

5. Secondarv Emplovment

Employees covered by this policy understand and agree that their employment
with the City is of basic and primary importance, and that secondary
employment must not inhibit or impede the efficient and effective performance
of their job duties, responsibilities, or attendance; nor shall it impair their
judgment in the exercising of their official duties. Employees engaged in
secondary employment will notify the Mayor's Office in writing of the details of
their employment.

certain positions covered by this manual also have a prohibition on secondary
employment embodied in New York State statute or local law.



ll. Compensation

1. Annual Salarv

The City of Lockport maintains a competitive salary structure and benefit
package for administrative employees.

A. A six step increment system (equal to a5% increase between two year steps)
shall be implemented fitting each employee into the proper grade and step
in accordance with the duties and responsibilities of an employee's position
and length of service in an employee's title. All employees covered by this
policy manual are placed in the graded salary schedule which has been
adopted by the City Council. This graded salary schedule shall receive an

annual salary review during budget deliberations. At the conclusion of this
annual review, a total compensation plan, including any cost of living
adjustment, shall be submitted to the City Council for approval.

B. Employees sha ll move to the next step upon the com pletion of the 2nd, 4rh,

6th, 8ti', and 10th year in the title upon their respective anniversary in that
position. No employee may exceed the job rate of the grade.

C. Employees shall begin employment at the Step l for the grade unless the
Mayor determines the need for the services or the employee's experience
requires that compensation be fixed at a higher Step.

D. Employees shall receive an annual cost of living increase in their respective
salary. The cost of living increase shall be the average of the contractual
wage increases negotiated for the same year for the City's Department Head

Union and CSEA. The cost of living increase shall be effective on January 1't of
each year.

E. The Grade and Step schedule for employees covered by this policy is

attached hereto and incorporated by reference as Exhibit A.

2. Health lnsurance

A. Health lnsurance

The City of Lockport provides group health, hospitalization, major medical
insurance, and prescription drug coverage through various self-insured Point
of Service plans for all full time and part-time employees covered by this
policy and their eligible dependents. Effective January L,2019, both the full
and part-time employee share of this coverage shall be fifteen percent (15%1,



except for those employees covered under Resolution L221O5.9 and the
respective agreements memorizing said resolution. The City's Health Benefits
Program is fully described in the Plan Booklet. Effective January I,2Ot9,
employees shall only be eligible to receive benefits equivalent to the Blue
Cross POS 298-Class 3 Plus SO/SZO co-pay plan.

Prescription Drug Coverage

The City Health lnsurance Plan includes a three tier formulary plan for
prescription drugs. Each employee who participates will contribute $7.00 co-
pay for generic prescriptions, $t5.00 co-pay for formulary (brand name)
prescriptions and S35.00 co-pay for non-formulary prescriptions.

Employees shall be required to fill all prescriptions with the generic brand
when available. Should the employee voluntary elect not to fill with the
generic brand, the employee will be responsible for the cost between the
generic and the drug selected (name brand or formulary), plus the co-pay for
the name brand or formulary. ln the event that the employee cannot take a

generic drug due to a medical reason determined by the prescribing medical
provider, the employee will not be required to pay the difference between
the generic drug and the drug selected. The employee will be responsible for
the formulary co-pay. Employees will be afforded the opportunityto utilize a

generic multi-month maintenance medication program at one (1) co-pay per
prescription. Generic maintenance medications can be filled for a three (3)

month supply with one co-pay.

Em plovee contributions/Elieibilitv:

Employee contributions for the health insurance premium shall be deducted
in equal amounts from each bi-weekly paycheck. Coverage for new
employees shall commence upon hire.

Enrollment in the health insurance plan shalltake effect as described herein
or during the open enrollment period during the month of October of each
year.

The Employer provides the LR.S. Section 105 Health Reimbursement Account
plan for employee contributions toward Health and other authorized and
applicable health care costs. The plan is administered by a Third Party
Administrator of the City's choice and conforms to l.R.S. regulations. The City
will not contribute to an employee's HRA account and any balance remaining
at the end of a plan year shall become property of the City and used in
accordance with l.R.S. regulations.



3. Health lnsurance coverage upon retirement

Except for those employees covered under Resolution L22105.9 and the
respective agreements memorializing said resolution, employees shall be eligible
to continue health coverage for themselves and any eligible dependents in
retirement at the same employee contribution as of the date of retirement,
provided they have met the following requirements:

a. Completion of a minimum of ten (10) years continuous service with the City
of Lockport during which the employee was eligible to receive Health
lnsurance; and

b. Are employed by the City of Lockport at the time of retirement; and
c. Are enrolled in the health plan at the time of retirement; and
d. Provide the Employer with proof of retirement and otherwise meet the

definition of retirement as specified by the NYS Retirement System; and
e. Be at least 55 years old.

The retiree share of this coverage shall be the same as paid as an active
employee.

For All Retirees: Upon qualification for Medicare Part B, all retirees, the eligible
spouse or eligible dependent must enroll and provide the Medicare Part B

required information to the Payroll Office. Any employee retiring on or after
January L,2016, shall be responsible for all Medicare Part B co-payments and/or
deductibles.

The surviving spouse or eligible dependent of any employee retiree may
continue to participate in the City's Health Plan upon payment of 100% of the
monthly premium equivalent.

4. Retirement

The City participates in the New York State Employee's Retirement System with
all rights and benefits presently provided by the Career Retirement Plan under
Section 75i and 14b of the Retirement and Social Security Law. All permanent,
full-time employees are enrolled in the New York State and Local Retirement
System. A Retirement System booklet is provided at orientation. This booklet
provides all basic information on the Retirement System benefits. Due to
changing legislation and regulations, you should check with the N.Y.S. and Local

Retirement System directly to obtain information regarding your benefits.

ln addition, the City of Lockport offers the following Retirement Enhancements
* May not apply to 14b members



a. Section 4IU) - the application of unused sick leave accruals toward
additional service credit upon retirement.

5. Not Independent Contractors

Personnel covered by this contract shall not be considered independent
contractors and shall receive compensation reportable through a W-2 form

6. Worker'sCompensation

Employees that suffer an injury or illness that is directly related to their
employment shall be eligible for Worker's Compensation Benefits amounting to
a maximum of two-thirds of an employee's salary, depending on the degree of
injury. lnjuries must be reported within 24 hours to the appropriate City
contacts.

7. Emplovee Assistance Program

The City will provide an Employee Assistance Program through a qualified
provider of the city's choice. Employees will be responsible for any co-payments
applicable to the services provided. All records of the Employee Assistance
Program are confidential between the employee and the provider. The fact that
an employee utilizes such assistance shall not impact promotional opportunities
or job security.

8. Defense and lndemnification

The City of Lockport shall provide for the defense and indemnification of
personnel/employees covered by this policy for actions or omissions made in the
ordinary course of their employment in accordance with the City's Policies and
Procedures.

9. Deferred Compensation Plan (457c)

A Deferred Compensation Plan is a voluntary savings program created by Federal
and state Law that enables public employees to save a portion of their gross pay
before Federal and state income taxes are deducted. The amount deferred
accumulates tax free until the funds plus earnings are distributed. This program
is to be offered to unrepresented employees and information regarding the
complete details of the Deferred Compensation Program and payroll deduction
forms are available in the Payroll Office.

10. Direct Deposit



An employee shall have the right to elect direct deposit as a payroll option

l-l-. Travel for C itv Business

Employees covered by this policy will be reimbursed for necessary and
reasonable expenses incurred in the performance of City business in accordance
with the City's policies. Mileage will be reimbursed at the rate provided by the
lnternal Revenue Service.

Travel authorization and conference attendance shall be required as provided in
the City's Travel policy and within budgetary appropriation.

12. CivilService Exam Fees

Employees covered under this Policy that seek to take City of Lockport civil
service examinations shall pay only the fee assessed to the City by the New York
State Municipal Service Division.

13. Safetv Equipment

The City will, at is cost, provide employees with the necessary safety equipment
and/or uniforms to carry out their respective job duties. Requests for
reimbursement, if applicable, must be submitted to the Director of Finance.

lll. Attendance and Time off

1. Office Hours

With the exception of the Corporation Counsel's Office, all City Offices shall be
open for the conduct of business and convenience of the public in strict
accordance with the hours prescribed by the Mayor.

2. Base Work Dav/Work Week

A. Employees are responsible for performing the duties of their office. The work
day is determined by the tasks to be performed. The full-time work week
shall be a minimum of 35 hours per week or 40 hours per week, depending
on the position, Unrepresented Department Heads and Management
employees are not eligible for overtime compensation or compensatory
time. Part-time employees shall work the amount of hours prescribed by the
Mayor.

B. Employees covered under this Policy are required to work the weekly
schedule and hours as determined by their direct supervisor. Employees may



be entitled to receive overtime compensation subject to the approval of their
Department Head and the Mayor. Employees, with the exception of
corporation counsel, may accrue compensatory time provided they have
received prior approval from their Department Head. compensatory time
may be accumulated as follows:

- For a thirty-five (35) hour regular work week, a maximum of thirty-
five (35) hours may be accumulated on leave accruals at one time;

- For a forty (40) hour regular work week, a maximum of forty (40)
hours may be accumulated on leave accruals at one time;

C. All employees covered by this party, except elected officials and Corporation
Counsel, are required to complete time and attendance forms in accordance
with City policy.

3. Holidavs

Employees covered by this policy will be allowed time off with pay to observe
the following holidays, provided that the employee shall have worked the work
day immediately preceding such holiday and provided such employee works the
work day immediately following such holiday unless the employee is using paid
benefit time, other than sick time, for which prior approval has been given.
Employees who are required to work on a holiday will receive equal time off in
lieu of the holiday.

Specific holidays afforded to personnel/employees covered by this policy shall be
the same as provided to those employees covered by the csEA bargaining
agreement.

Annual holidays are subject to change. An annual holiday calendar will be issued
by the Payroll Office designating when holidays will be observed.

lf an employee is absent from work due to illness on either the last regularly
scheduled work day prior to the holiday or the first regularly scheduled work day
following the holiday, shall not be paid for the holiday unless the absence is
verified by a medical provider's statement.

4. Sick Leave

Absence from duty by an employee of the city of Lockport by reason of the
employee's own sickness, disability, or medical/dental appointments or that of
their immediate family, shall be allowed as provided in this section. Absence
from duty for such reasons, if granted by the Mayor, shall be considered and
known as "sick leave". corporation counsel and deputy corporation counsel do
not accrue sick leave time.



A. Sick leave shall be credited at the rate of one and one-half (1%)days per
month. Half-time employees shall earn a pro-rated amount of sick leave.
Employees shall be charged sick leave time for actual hours used, in a
minimum increment of fifteen (15) minutes. Sick leave credits will be earned
when an employee is on full and active pay status for fifty (50%) of the
working days in the calendar month. Days during which an employee is out
on Worker's Compensation, in excess of 20 days, are not considered to be

days on full pay status for purposes of earning sick leave.

B. An employee who is absent on sick leave shall report his absence, and reason
therefore, to the Mayor at the earliest possible time, but no later than 9:30
AM.

C. The Mayor shall have the authority to grant sick leave. Employees that are
absent under the provisions of this section shall notify the Mayor if the
absence is anticipated to be of an extended nature and/or if it will interfere
with departmental operations.

D. After 3 consecutive days of illness or after 12 cumulative days of illness
during a 12 month period, the employee may be required to provide
documentation verifying their sick leave from a medical professional. lf the
Mayor suspects a pattern of sick leave abuse, the Mayor may request the
employee to provide proof of illness at any other time. The City also may
require the employee to be examined, at the City's expense, by a physician
designated by the Mayor and/or City Council.

E. Employees may utilize sick leave during the statutory waiting period while
under Worker's Compensation.

F, Accrual of sick leave shall be unlimited. However, the total amount of sick
leave that will be considered for credit purposes will be capped at 350 days
Employees shall have sick leave accrued time applied up to the maximum
credit allowed toward retirement service credit under 41J. The remainder
will be bought back by the City at the rate of 4A% of the employee's final
average salary.

5. Sick Bank Policv

A. Purpose and lntent. The purpose of this Article is to enable employees to
donate paid leave time to other members who are confronted with a

personal or family emergency.
B. Donations. An employee may donate accrued vacation, compensatory,

floating holiday, personal, or sick leave hours to the "Sick Bank" by



completing and signing a "Donation to the Sick Bank Pool" form available in
the Personnel/Civil Service Office.

C. Administration. The Personnel/Civil Service Office shall keep track of the total
hours available in the pooland provide alloversight of the pooland usage.

D. Use of Pool. ln conformance with the rules, the Personnel Officer is

authorized to permit the use of hours in the pool by any current employee
covered by this policy whose request to the Personnel/Civil Service Office is

approved. All decisions by the Personnel/Civil Service Office shall be final and
binding.

E. lnter-Union Use. The employees covered by this policy may utilize sick time
off from another City bargaining unit's "Sick Bank" if said request is

approved. Employees covered by this policy may donate sick time off to a

member of one of the City's bargaining units.

6. Familv Sick Leave

Notwithstanding the benefits afforded under the Family Medical Leave Act,
an employee shall be allowed to utilize accumulated sick leave for absence
from work necessitated by illness of the employee's parent (including
stepparents and foster parents), spouse, child (including stepchild and foster
child), sibling (including step sibling), grandparent, grandchild, parent-in-law,
son/daughter-in-law or person who is a member of the household. The City
may request written documentation from the employee to verify residency
of other household members.

7. Vacation

A. Annual Leave will be earned and credited monthly. New employees must
start on or before the 15th of the month to receive annual leave credit for
that month. Annual leave will be credited as follows and can be used when
earned:

Years of Credit Days of Vacation Accrued
Monthly

Maximum Days

Earned Annually
1 month through
year 4

0.8333 10

Year 5 through
year 9

L.25 15

Year L0 through
year L4

L.4L67 L7

Year L5 through
year 19

L.6667 20

Year 20 through
vear 24

1.8333 22



25 or more years 2.0833 25

Part-time employees regularly scheduled to work greater than half of the Full

Time Equivalent will receive a pro-rated value of annual leave. Employees shall
not accrue vacation leave for any period during which they are off the payroll for
more than half of the working days per month.

B. Employees may carry a maximum of twenty-five (25) days of accumulated
annual leave credit.

C. Upon the termination of an employee, either by resignation or retirement,
and when at least two weeks' notice is given by such employee of his/her
intended termination, any unused annual leave credits are to be
compensated at the employee's regular rate of pay. Employees that provided
the appropriate notice will receive a lump sum payment in the form of a

check mailed to them six weeks after termination/resignation date.
D, Employees shall submit requests for approval of use of vacation time to the

Mayor, in writing, of their intent to use consecutive days of vacation time off.
Said request shall be made at least one (1)week in advance of the intended
leave date, except in the event of special circumstances. Employees shall
notify the Mayor when expecting to not report for work for the day.

E. Vacation days may be used in increments of one-half day or full days only.

8. Personal Leave

1. Personal leave with pay shall be granted for religious observance or personal
business.

2. Effective January L't of each year, employees shall be credited with three (3)

days of personal leave. Employees who work at least half time shall receive
prorated personal leave. Employees hired after January 1 shall receive a

prorated share of personal leave credit.

3. Whenever possible, a request for personal leave should be submitted to the
Mayor at least forty-eight (48) hours prior to the requested date(s) off.

4. Unused personal leave time shall be carried over at the end of the year shall
be converted to sick leave.



9. Familv Medical Leave

Family Medical Leave shall be provided in accordance with the rules included in
the City of Lockport Employee Handbook.

10. Leaves of Absence

A. A leave of absence without pay of up to one year may be granted to
employees covered by this policy. A written request for a leave of absence
must be submitted to the Mayor at least four (4) weeks prior to the
requested date of leave describing the reason for said leave and the
anticipated duration of the leave.

B. A leave of absence shall not be granted to accept other employment.

C. No leave shall be authorized which may exceed the remaining period of a

term appointment.

D. Not less than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of an employee's leave,
the employee shall be required to submit written notification to the Mayor
or Department Head of their intention to return to work.

E. When an employee is on a leave of absence for one-half of a month or
longer, sick leave, longevity and vacation will be pro-rated to reflect the
leave. Employees on an unpaid leave of absence will be required to
contribute the full cost of health insurance and any other paid fringe benefits
for the period beyond three (3) months, except as otherwise provided by law
or rule.

11. Bereavement Leave

A. ln the event of the death of an employee's parent (including stepparents and
foster parents), spouse, child (including stepchild and foster child), sibling
(including step-sibling), grandparent, grandchild, parent-in-law, and any
other person who is a member of the household (the City may request
written documentation from the employee to verify residency of other
household members), the employee shall be excused from work, if the
employee was scheduled to work, with pay at his/her request, for up to four
( ) days. One (1) day of the four (a) may be retained for later interment (if
applicable).

B. ln the event of the death of any relative not outlined in Section A of this
Article, the employee shall be excused from work at his/her request for a



maximum of two (2) days to attend the funeral utilizing accrued personal
leave, vacation leave, floating holiday or compensatory time.

C. Employees covered by this agreement who are less than full-time shall
receive a pro-rated value of the full-time equivalent of the scheduled full-
time hours.

12. Jurv Dutv

Upon receipt of proof of the necessity of jury services or appearance as a witness
to subpoena or other order of the court (for job related actions only), employees
shall be granted leave with pay to provide time as needed for such service. Any
compensation received, less expenses, for said service shall be returned to the
City Treasurer within five (5) working days from the time it is received by the
employee. An employee, who is dismissed for the day or from service within two
(2) hours or more remaining in his/her regular scheduled work day is required to
report to work.

1"3. Militarv Leave

Military Leave shall be provided pursuant to the City of Lockport Employee
Handbook.

lV. Discipline and Discharse

Employees and Personnel covered by this policy shall be "at will" and may be
terminated by the Mayor or his/her designee for cause. Any discipline or discharge
shall be at the sole discretion of the Mayor. The employee shall have no right to seek
review or appeal of the discipline or discharge.

V. Miscellaneous

The City of Lockport Employee Handbook shall apply regarding all workplace rules,
guidelines and procedures not covered herein,



-Un resented Em

tl Ll 2023 - t2l 37/ 2023 Sala Schedule

*City Attorney and Deputy City Attorney incorporates a budgeted 3% cost of living adjustment rcItoto 7/!/2023.

tl2024 Salary Schedule*

ULlzazs - t2l3tl2o25 Sala Schedule*

tlLl2o26 - t2l3t/2026 Sat Schedule*

* Annual salary schedules estimated based on cost of living adjustments in the existing CSEA and Department contracts {which produce an

average of 1.75% in FY 2024,2.0O% in FY 2025, and I.75% in FY 2026). Subject to change per section ll.D of this policy.

Step 1

Hire

Step 2

Complete 2

Step 3

Complete 4

Step 4

Complete 6

Step 5

Complete 8

Step 6

Complete 10

Director of Finance S 9i",107 5 95,562 S roo,++s S 105,468 5 u.a,74r $ 1,16,278
Citv Clerk $ sg,oez s 61,989 S 6s,o8g $ 68,343 5 7L,760 S zs,E+a

City Attorney* S s4,916 $ s7,7zs $ oo,e tt S ez,aqz S 66,824 S 70,1GG

Deputy City Attorney* S zo,qat s 31,991 s 33,590 S 35,zlo s 37,034 s 38,885
Confidential Assistant S 1e.23oo S 20.191s $ zt.zan $ 22.661t $ zt.ztqz $ zq.sqzg
Confidential Secretarv S 23.sG37 $ 24.i4t9 S 2s.9790 $ 2t.27$o 5 zs.o+rg S 3o,o74o

Step 1

Hire

Step 2

Complete 2

Step 3

Complete 4

Step 4

Complete 6

Step 5

Complete 8

Step 6

Complete 10

Director of Finance 5 92,70t S gz,:go $ to2,2o3 S tot,ztq S Lt2,6i9 $ 118,313
Citv Clerk S oo,ozo $ 63,a74 S 66,228 s 69,539 $ 73,016 5 7G,667

City Attorney S 55,938 $ 59,236 $ 6r,672 S o+,zss $ at,ggq 5 7r,i94
Deputy City Attornev S :r,oor S sz,ssr s 34,178 $ 3s,ggg 5 37,682 5 3g,se s
Confidential Assistant s 1s.s66s $ zo.sqqg $ zt.stzt $ 23.0s77 S ztJazz S 24.9724
Confidential Secretarv S 23.9761 5 zs.nqg $ 26.4336 5 27.7ss4 5 29.t43L S 30.6003

Step X

Hire

Step 2

Complete 2

Step 3

Complete 4

Step 4

Complete 6

Step 5

Complete 8

Step 6

Complete 10

Director of Finance s 94,555 S 99,283 $ toq,z+l S 109,460 S 114,933 S r2o,6ie
City Clerk $ 6L,272 $ s+,ggs S ez,ssE S 70,930 s 74,476 s 78,200

Citv Attornev S st,ost S sg,sro $ 6z,goo $ 66,oso s 69,354 S n,ezt
Deputy City AttorneV $ 31,62r $ sg,zoz $ g+,goz S se,eos $ 38,ats $ 40,356
Confidential Assistant S 19.9s79 S zo.gssz S 22.0036 5 23.s188 S z4.2sss $ zs.47rg
Confidential Secretary 5 24.4ss6 $ zs.ile+ S 26.9623 s 28.310s $ 2e.7260 S 31.2123

Step 1

Hire

Step 2

Complete 2

Step 3

Complete 4

Step 4

Complete 5

Step 5

Complete 8

Step 6

Complete 10

Director of Finance $ go,zro S ror,ozo $ too,ozt S 111,376 S 116,944 $ tzz,lst
City Clerk $ 62,344 S 65,461 S 68,735 S tz,ttt S ts,ttg S 79,568

City Attorney S sa,oso S e o,gsg $ 6+,ooe 5 67,206 5 70,s67 5 74,096
Deputy City Attorney $ 3z,tlq $ gg,zgg $ zs,qlz S zt,zqa S ss,roa s 41,063
Confidential Assistant $ 20.3071 $ zt.Ezzs 5 22.3386 S 23.e304 S 24.G834 $ 2s.9176
Confidential Secretary S 24.ss36 $ 26.1278 5 27,434r S 2s.8ose S 30.2462 $ rr.zsss



L'L

City of Lockport - Resolution Request Form

Agenda Description: ffUdit ACCeptanCe

Presented tr Finan6e DifeCtOf Date submittea: $/l 512023
Topic Area (Select Most Applicable Option):

Community Event

Budget Amendment
Contract Approval

Donation Acceptance

Grant Application / Award
Fund Utilization Request

Local Law Change

Community Development
Community Event

Engineering Process

Code and Planning

Other

{

Pieose Wovide to Clerk dt leost g colenddr davs ptior to Councl! meeting, Othen ise request wlll go to tollowing meetlng,

mmary of Resolution

The City RFP'd for audit services and obtained one quote for said services, from Lumsdem
McCormick. The Audit Committee has reviewed said bid and recommended to proceed with
the bid based on the group's governmental expertise.

Explanation of Attachments:

(1) 811612023 audit committee minutes

Please include all backup correspondence, purchase order, quotes, meeting minutes, emails, etc.., tf any of this information is confidential and cannot
be released publically, please denote a check in this field: _

Cl erk/ Leg o l/Fi n a n ce Ap p rova I :
Notes:

Name:Tim RUSSO Date of Approval: 81 1 12023



CITY OF LOCKPORT

AUDIT COMMITTEE

REGULAR MEETING - OFFICIAL RECORD

Site: M24

Wednesday, August L6,2A23 at 4:3O pm

Present: Treasurer S. Mawhiney, Director of Finance T. Russo, Member Matt
Sova (Member Mary Ann Bucolo and Member Cassy Schurr provided virtual
responses read during meeting)

Meeting called to order at 4:30

Agenda:

o Review audit bid response from Lumsden Mc0ormick
o Discussed governmental expertise of the group and other

governmental clients they have serviced
o Discussed change in rates and reasonability associated to them
o Discussed context of the need to RFP for audit services in the City

o Review email responses from two members not able to make physical
meeting (both concurred bid was acceptable)

o Goncur that said bid is recommended to be pursued, reviewed attached
letter saying as such

r Meeting adjourned at 4:55 pm

The next meeting of the Audit Committee will be scheduled in coming months
(meets quarterly).

Respectfully,

Tim Russo-Director of Finance



Crrv or Locxponr
Aunrr Conanarrrpp
One Locks Plaza
Lockport, New York 14094

August 16,2023

'fo: Mayor and Common Council
From: Mary Ann Bucolo, Matt Sova, Cassy Schun (Audit Committee Members)

Re: RFP for Auditing Services

The City of Lockport published a request fbr proposal (RFP) for auditing services on July 14,
2423 with one bid being received prior to the deadline on August 11,2023.

Said bid, from Lumsden McCormick, has been reviewed by the Audit Committee members
virtually and in-person on811612023, and members have unanimously recommended to pursue said
vendor's bid.

Thank you,

Audit Committee Members



lb

City of Lockport - Resolution Request Form

Agenda Description, FY 2023 BUdget Cleangp

Presented av' FinahCe DifeCtOf Date submitted: B/1 512023
Topic Area (Select Most Applicable Option):

Community Event

Budget Amendment
Contract Approval

Donation Acceptance

Grant Application / Award
Fund Utilization Request

Local Law Change

Community Development
Community Event

Engineering Process

Code and Planning

Other

{

Pleose Wovide to Cte* at tedst 9 co!gl!!e!!!eyt ptiot to Counclt meeting. othetwise requett wtll go to loltowing meetlng,

Summary of Resolution:

A number of line items throughout the 2023 general fund have tilted towards becoming
deficient either soon or in coming months prior to year-end. This budget amendment request
alleviates these deficiencies by amending other available line items in the general fund. lt
should be noted that projections for the fund contain a positive variance at year end
regardless, and that this budget clean-up is intended to mitigate short term issues with said
lines.

Explanation of Attachments:

(1) budget explanation printout

Please include all backup correspondence, purchase order, quotes, meetlng minutes, emails, etc... lf any of this information is confidential and cannot
be released publically, please denote a check in this field: _

Clerk/ Leg ol/F i n a nce App rovol :
Notes:

Name:Tim RUSSO Date of Approvar: 81 1512023



Due to tilnandto

tnDue

from NYs-Due to
with

Due to rwenue.
Due to serurc6.with

Due to increased us of in-houe

Due to increase costs with s€asonal work
Due to increa$ Gts with *asnal work

Dueto lower than anticipated costs.

oue to movement of HEo position 1042 from 7u0 to 1620 to b€tter fft neds of public works division-

200.000

10.000

1.793

L,792

5 2,574

S 23.440

s 11.641

s 5{n.000
5 26.@0

I ls.ooo
S ls.mo
s 20.000

s 400,000

5 23,440
s L79a
s \.792
s 2578

5 10.@o

s 11.641

s 6.00047180-51060 Temporary Seasoml

41540-54300 Vehi€le Maintename and Repair

A0@O.32r101 lnterest and Earninas
4.1355.33(x19 Other Gwmmental State Aid

A-3410.31640 Ambulance Grar*es
A.3620.32555 Buildina Permits
A,142O-5104O Part Tjme Wages

A.3410.5110O Overtime
A"714{1.51060 Temffiaru Seasotral

A-8510.54515 Special Supplis
47110.51010 Full fime Was6

A.7110.58010 F|CA

47110.58O2O Workers Comp€nsation
A.7110.58050 Retircment

A-71105EO40 Medicl lnsunne
A.1520.51010 Full'iime Waces

A"1620.s8010 FICA

A-1620.58020 Workers Compen$tis
A.1620,58050 Retirement

A.1620.58Ot1O MediEl lnsucnce

Code and Safety lnspection

CrtyGaraae

General R€venue

SuildimMaintenre

Plilgrounds and Retreation

Assessor

Fire

gtyAttom€v

Fire

Community Pml
Communw B€utifiction

Parks

Pa*s
Pa*s
Park
Park

BuildirE Maintenance
EuildirE Maintenance
Buildim Maintenare
Buildim Maintenare



lLl

July 25,2023

tg1. 19gt
Steven Pump
City of Lockport
One Locks Plaza
Lockport, NY 14094

$ ANp

Re: City of Lockport
Lockport Raw Water Pump Station
Generator Purchase Specification
File No )1.11-O1 19

Dear Mr. Pump:

On July 21,2023, one (1) bid was received, opened and publicly read aloud for the referenced project.
Nussbaumer & Clarke, lnc. (Nussbaumer) has reviewed the price and corresponding total.

Frey Electric Construction Co. (Frey), 100 Pearce Avenue, Tonawanda, NY 14150 (716-874-1171)
was the only bidder in the total bid amount of $188,000.00.

Nussbaumer, having reviewed the bid, herein recommends the contract be awarded to Frey in the
amount of $188,000.00. We have worked successfully with Frey on similar projects in the past, and we
have been satisfied with their capabilities.

Enclosed for the Village's use and information is one (1) copy of Frey's bids documents. Nussbaumer
shall keep the original submitted documents, pending the contract award, at which time Nussbaumer will
use the original documents to prepare the contract books.

Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact us at your convenience.

2
o

Sincerely,

NUSSBAUME NC

Christopher Freese
Construction Services Manager

Enclosures

c: File - 02 and 16

3556 LakeShore Road I SuiteSOO I Buffalo, NYl42l9 | |:716,827-8000

J:\2021\011 9 Lockpoft AenentoMwad Recpnnendation Lefter.dod,

nussclarke.com



r.
i
I

!-'

Bid Form for General Contract

Lockport, New York

To The Mayor and Common Csuncil
City of Lockport, New York

I, Frey Electric Construction Co., lnc.

We, the underslgned, h€reb! propose to elter into a contract for the Loeknort Raw Water
PUEIStation Gener$tor Purchase Specifi.cAtion end to furnish all the materials, laboro and
equipment, and to perform all the work necessary to fully complete said work in accordance
with the Plans antl Specilicatlons, for the sum of

Zera

TOTAL (BASE BID SEE PAGE 3 ITEMS l-3) g 188 ^o00 - 0f)

NAME OF FIRM: Frey Electric Construetio.n Go,, lnc.

ADDRESS: 100 PearceAvenue

M15A

BY; Vice President

NO"r 716-874-1710

Bidder acknowlcdges receipt o,f:

Addendum No. lCINE Dated:

Addendum No,-* Dated: 
.

Addendurn No._ Dated:_

Addendunn No._ Dated:_
'llhe Bidder further agrees to accept the following Unlt Prices for additions or deductions in
accordanca with the terms of the.eontraot, plans an{,specifications.

Bid Form Page 1 of 3

1

i,

I

I

L

IL

I

I

:L

t_

L



Bid Form for General Contract

CENERAL BtD - Bidder will complete the work in accordance with the gontract Documents for the follrrwing price::

BASE BID. CENERAL CONTRACT (LUMP SUM PRTCES)

TOTAL BID - CENERAL CONTMCT {tr-.}tvtP SUM PRICES)

$ lBBrooo.ooOrie Httdrd Eighty Ei"ght

Ttpr:sand Dollars
BASE BID ITEMSTOTAL

Alt applicable Federal and State ofNew York mxes are excluded fronr the l,ump Surn and Stipulated Prices.

Bid Form Page 2 of 3

r*# .wq r*

UNIT PRICE

$ 16:,ooo.oo'

$ 21.soo.oo

S* 3,5oo,oo

$ lgg,ooo"oo

UNIT FRICE (IN WORDS)

One Hundred; -

Sixty fhree lfousand

T\rventy Orre ltrousand
Ar*r:x G--i*l

ttrree Thousarrl Eiinze }lrndr
One ttundfed Eighty

UNTT

LS

LS

LS

DESCRIPTION

LTJ'MP SUM FOR PROVIDNG A 4OOKW. 48AYJ2?7V, DIESEL
STAND.BY CENERATOR WITFI WEATHER PROTECTED
ENCLOSURE. SUB.BASE FUEL TANK ANDALL ASSOCIATED
APPURTENANCES _ PURCHASE AND DELIVERY TO SITE
LUMPSUM FOR PROVIDINGA I.600A. 480V1277V.3 PI{ASE"
WIRA AUTOMATIC TRANSFER SWITCH - PURCT{ASE AND
DELTVERV TO SITE
LUMP SUM FOR START.UP AND TRAININc AFTER
INSTALLATION

ITEMS 1.3

BID ITAM
NO.

BASE BID I

BASE BID?

BASE BID3

T,OTAL



,
i

t
i
I
I

I

I
t

t"*

Nots L

2.

3,
4.

q

6.

7.

Frey Electric

TURE

Bid Form forCeneral Contract

Amounts arc lo be $hown in both words and figutes. ln the event of a discrepancy, $g-a$gU$
shown in words shall eovem.
Totals for each item are shown for convenience in comparing Sids only. ln the event of a

discrepaney, the unif,grice{s),shown shall govern.
slDDERs MUSTBID QN /dLL ITEMS.
The Orvner reserve$ the right to f.qiect any and allbids orreduce the scopc of work accgrding
to the budgeted f0nds rvailable at the time of the bid opening,
The Owner reseryes the right to compare bids on the basis of available funding,
The Owner reserves lhe right to negotiatstime schedulcs for construction bastd on the work
qualifications of the successful bidder.
The award of the Conlract shall be made to the lowestBidder who, in rhe opinion of the City,
is qual!fied to perform the work required and is responsible and rcliabtc. The lowest bid shall
be delermined by the City an lhe bf,sis of the grcss,sum for which lhc, cntirc work wilt be
performed, anived at by a conect computalion of all thc items specified in the bid, therefore,
ai the lump sum andlor unit price, if any, contsined in the bid, When alternatp bid itsm* are
required in thc bid, the City rcscrycs the right to sclect any alternate or combination of
alternates and the contract rvill be arvardcd to that re$on$ible Bidder rvhose bid fol the
alternale or combinqtion of altcmales, selected by the City is the lowe$t

Co", lnc 7 ?

DATE

Vice Fresident

TITLE

I

I

I

I

I"

I

I

I
t_

I

i

I

i
i-.

I

L

I
I
L

l
I
L.

i
I

I
IL

Bid Forrn Page 3 of 3



t
I
i
t

I

I
I

!
I

f-

NpN.COLLUflTYE BIDDING CSRTIFICATION

By submission af this bid or proposal, the bidder certifies thatr a) This bid or proposal has

been independently anived at without collusion with any other bidder or with any competitor or
potential competitor; b) This bid or proposal has not been knowingly diselosed and will not be

knowingly disclosed prior to the opening of bids or proposals for this project, to any other bidder,
competitor, or potential competitor; c) No attempt has been or will be made to induce any other
person, partnership, or corporation to submit or noi to submit a bid or proposal; d) The person

signing this bid or proposalcertifies that he has futly informed himself regarding the accuracy of the
staternents contained in this certification and under the penalties of perjury, affirms thetruth thereof,
such penalties being applicable to the bidder as well as to the person signing in its behalf; e) That
attached hereto (if corporate bidder) is a certified copy of resolution authorizing the execution ofthis
certificate by the signature ofthis bid or proposal in behalfofthe corporate bidder.

Bl':

Resolved gr*1 Salvatore Sciandra / Vice President be authorized to
sign and submit the bid or proposal of this corporaiion for the following project:
Lockpott Raw Water Pump Station - Generator 6ndto include in such bid

or proposal the certificate as to non-collusion required by Section one hundred three-D ( I 03-D) of
the general municipal law as the act and deed of such corpofation, and for any inaccuraoies or
nrisstatements in such eertificate this corporate bidder shall be liable under the penalties ofperjury.

The ts a true and correcl copy of the resolution adgpted by
at a meeting of its Board of Directors held on the ,ll* day ofFrey Electric Construction Co.,

Julv,2A23.

ti

I
1

i

l

lt-

I

L

t

It
I

I

lt
i
I

t
I
I

L*

-f-fil
Secretary

(sEAL)

End of Non-Collusive Bidding Certification

Non-Collusive Bidding Certification Page I of 2



Blank Page

Non-Collusive E:idding Cerrification Fage 2 of 2



Bid Bond

CONTR.AGTOR:
(Name, legal status arud atldress)

FREY ELECTRIC CONSTRUCTION CO., INC.
100 Pearce Avenue
Tonawanda, New York 14150

OWNER;
(Narne, legal status and address)
CITY OF LOCKPORT
One Locks Plaza
Lockport, New York 14094

(Witness)

SNA,S{-ftrffiY'y

(Titte)
Western Surety Company

(SuretX)

(Tille) AprilA. Aftorney-in-Fact

Executed in Duplicate

Bond No. NIA

SURETY: Western Surety Company: South Dakota Corporation
(Name, legal status and. principal place
of business)

151 N. Franklin Street
17th Floor
Chicago, lL 60606 This document has important legal

consequences. Consultation with
an attorney is encouraged with
respect to its complelion or
modification.

Any singular reference to
Contraotor. Surety, Owner or
other party shall be considered
plural where applicable.

(Seal)

BOND AMOUNT: Ten Percent of the Amount of Attached Bid-------- (10% Amt Bid)

PROJECTT
(Name, lacation or add.ress, and Project number, if any)

Lockport Raw Water Pump Slation Generator Purchase Specifications

The Contractor and Surety are bound to the Owner in the amount set forth above, for the payment of r,vhich the
Contractor and Surety birrd themselves, their heirs, executors, adrninistrators, successors and assigns, jointly and
severally, as provided herein. The conditions ofthis Bond are such that ifthe Owner accepts the bid ofthe Contractor
within the time specified in the bid documents, or within such time period as may be agreed to by the Owner and
Contractor, and thc Conttaetor either (1) enters into a contract with the Owner in accordance with the terms of such
bid, and gives such bond or bonds as may be specified in the bidding or Contract Documents, with a surety ailmifted
in the jurisdiction of the Project and otherwise acceptable to the Owner, for the faithful performance of such Contract
and for the prompt payment of labor and material furnished in the prosecution thereof; or (2) pays to the Owner the
di-fference, not to exceed the amount of this Bond, between the amount specified in said bid and such larger amount
for which the Owner may in good faith contract with another pady to perforrn the work covered by said bid, then this
obligation shall be null and void, otherwise to remain in full force and effect. The Surety hereby waives any notice of
an agreement between the Owner and Contraetor to extend the time in which the Owner may accept the bid. Waiver of
notice bythe Surety shall not apply to any extension exceeding sixby (60) days in the aggregate beyond the time for
acceptance of bids specifred in the bid documents, and the Owner and Contractor shall obtain the $urety's consent for
an extcnsion beyond sixty (60) days.

Ifthis Rond is issued in connection with a subcontractor's bid to a Contractor, the torm Contractor in this Bond shall
be deemed to be Subcontractor and the term Owner shall be deerned to be Contractor.

When this Bond has been furnished to comply with a statutory or other legal requirement in the location of the Project,
any provision in this Bond conflicling with said statutory or legal requirement shall be deerned deleted herefrom and
pnovisions conforming to such statutory qr other legal requirenrent shall be deerned incorporated herein. When so
furnished, theintent is that this Bond shall be construed as a statutory bohd and not as a comlnon law bond.

Signed and sealed il1is 2'lst - - day of July ?g?3

FREY co. lNc.
(Principal)

cFo
(Seal)

Printed in cooperation with the American lnstitute of Architects (AlA).

The language in this document conforms to the language used in AIA D:ocument A31O - Bid Bond - 201A Editian.



POWER OF ATTORNEY APPOINTING INDIYIDUAL ATTORNEY.IN.}'ACT'

Knorv Atl Men By These Presents, That WESTIRN SURETY- COMPANY, a South Dakota corporation, is a duly organized and existing corporation

having its pdncipal office in the City of Sioux Falls. and State ofSouth Dakota, and that it does by virue offhe signature and seal herein affixed hereby make,

consdrute and appoint

Bruce W Rogers, Candace J Casey-Wnek, Bradle)'E Byer, Michael W Karl, Larvrence DiGiulio,
Suzanne Coonradt, Andrew J Tokasz, Michael Robert Bonetto, Todd McMahon, Timothy J
Geigero Cynthia A Scharfn April A Adams, Lauren Bordonaro, Steven Blumhagen, Individually

of Buffalo, NY, its true and lawful A.ttomey(s)-irr-Fact with full power and authodty here.by conferred to sign, seal and execute for aud on ils behalf bonds,

undertakings and other obligatory instnrmcnts of similar nature

- In Unlimited Amounts -

and to bind it thereby as fully and to the same extent as ifsuch instruments were signed by a duly authorized officer ofthe corporalion and all thc acts ofsaid

Attomey, pursuant to the authority hereby given, are hereby ratified and confirmcd.

This Power ofAttomey is made and executed pursuant to and by authority ofthe By-Law printed on thc reverse hereof, duly adopted, as indicated, by

the shareholders of thc corporation.

In Witness Whereof, WESTERN S{.JRETY COMPAI.{Y has caused these presents to be sigrred by its Vioe Presidenl and its corporate seal to be hereto

a{Iixed on this l3th day ofAugust,Z0?|.

WESTERN SURETY COMPANY

Bruflat, President

Western Surety Company

thiir\\srrrisr\i\\eaq$c ti M. grHr 
".i@!8tiffJtil+:@i

+rsqqsq5q6sr.cc$rsss$rir I

State of South Dakota

County of Minnehaha

My commission expires

March2,2026

II ss

On this l3th day ofAugust, 2021, befors me personally came Paul T. Bruflat, to me knorvn, who, being by me duly srvom, did depose and ray: that he

resides in the City of Sioux Falls, State of South Dakota; that he is the Vice Pre.sident of WESTERN SURETY COMPAI\IY described il and wbich executsd

the above instrumcnt; thathe knows the seal ofsaid corporation; that thc seal affixed to thc said instrumcnt is such corporate scal; that it was so affixed punuant

to authority given by the Board of Directors of said corporation and that he signed his name tho'elo pursuartt to like aulhority, and acknowledges sarne to be

the act and deed ofsaid corporalion.

M. Ben! Notary Public
CERI'IFICAIII'

I, L. Nelson, Assistant Secrotary of WESTBRN SURETY COMPANY do hereby cerlify that the Power of Attorney hereinabove set forth is still in force,

andfurthercertiSthattheBy-Larvofthecorporationprintedonthereversehcreofisstillinforce. Intestimonywhereoflhavehercuntosubscribcdmynamo

and affi xed the seal of the said corporation this 2lst day of July, 2023'

WESl'ERN SURETY COMPANY

L. Sccretary
Fotrn r*428A-1-2012

Go to tirlv_111."cnffglety.gom > Owner / Obligee Services > Validate Bond Coverage, if you want to verify bond authenticity



Authorizlng By-Law

ADOPTED tsY THE SHARETIOLDERS OF WESTERN SURETY COMPANY

This Po\,eer of Attomey is made and executed pursuont to and by authority of the followirg By-Law duly adopted by the shareholders

of tLe Company,

Section 7. All bonds, policies, undertakings, Powers of Attomey, or othcr obllgations of &e corporalion shall be executed in the

corporate name of the.Company by tbe Presiden! Secretary, and Assistant Secretary, Treasurer, or any Vice President, or by such other

officers as'the Bqard of Dlrectors may ruthorize. The President, any Vice President, Seoretary, any Assistant Secretary, of the Treasurer may

ap. point Attorneys in Fact or agents who shall have authority to ilsue bonds, policies, or undertakings in the name of the Company. The

corporate seal is noineoessaryforthe validip.ofanybonils,policies,undertakings, Powers'ofAttomey otather obligations oftlre corporation.

The rignature of.any zuch officer and fhe corporate seal may be printedby facsimile.



\YESTERN SURETY COMPANY
Sioux F'alls, South Dakota

Statement of Net Admitted Assets and Liabilities
December 31,2A22

ASSETS

Bonds
Stocks
Cash, cash equivalents, and,short-term investments
Receivables for securities
lnvestment income due and accrued
Premiums and considerations
Amounts recoverable from reinsurers
Current federal and foreign income tax recoverable and interest thereon
Net deferred tax asset
Receivable from parent, subsidiaries, and affiliates
Other assets

Total Assets

UW
Losses
Loss adjushnent expense
Commissions payable, contingent commissions and other similar charges
Other expenses (excluding taxes, license and fees)
Taxes, License and fees (excluding federal and foreign income taxes)
Federal and foreign income taxes payable
Unearned premiums
Advance premiums
Ceded reinsurance premiums payable (net of ceding commissions)
Amounts withheld or retained by company for account of others
Provision for reinsurance
Payable to parent, subsidiaries and affiliates
Payable on security transactions
Other liabilities

Total Liabilities

$ 1,963,735,416
16,356,743

842,484
50,000

Lg,2gg,44g
58,660,A94
31,a99,427

16,569,622

1.3 85
$ 2,i05-,593,621

191,034,021
52,287,429
12,240,432

$

3,809,360
6,216,918

288,685,277
7,968,594
6,756,776
9,359,697

280,055
|a,262,439

I4:9,6t2
$ 589,010,150

Surplus Account:
Common stock
Gross paid in and contributed suqplus
Unassigned funds
Surplus as regards policyholders

Total Liabilities and Capital

I, Julie stant Vice President of Western Surety
of the financial statement of the

Departments and is a true and
that date.

$ 4,000,000
286,896,195

L,225,697,276
s 1.516.583.471W

Company hereby certify that the above is an
Company dated December 31, 2022, as filed
correct statement of the condition of Western

WESTERN SURtsTY COMPANY

nu frtilt* f,u'' Y r Assislant Vice President, Extcrnal Reporting

"Marqh , .,2023.and sworn t0 me this 14Lh- day of
.OFFICIALSEAL"
YOTANDA JIMENEI

No'rry Publlc, SHte Of llllnol3
fl? C0r,rnis!ion Explre: 690{?025

My commission expires:

542740

By
ivotar,y Fu6iii


